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Mr. Speaker: 
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British Columbia. It summarizes my findings and recommendations and 
the responses of the Board in each case. 
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’’ Karl A. Friedmann 
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INTRODUCTION 

I n  t h i s ,  my t h i r d  Spec ia l  Report t o  t he  Leg i s l a t ive  Assembly on the  

Workers' Compensation Board, I r epor t  on f i v e  cases  i n  w h i c h  t h e  

Workers' Compensation Board and I have not been ab le  t o  agree.  Two 

of t he  cases  (Mr. Cheveldave and Mr. Swistak)  demonstrate t he  

d i f f i c u l t i e s  t h a t  workers can encounter i n  t r y i n g  t o  prove hern ia  

c la ims.  Because hern ias  develop slowly over a per iod  of time and 

because t h e i r  a c t u a l  occurrance is not capable of observa t ion  a t  t h e  

time c l e a r  evidence t h a t  they occurred a t  work is  o f t e n  d i f f i c u l t  t o  

produce. I n  the  two cases  repor ted ,  i t  is my view t h a t  t h e  evidence 

produced by the  workers is a s  c l e a r  a s  is  poss ib l e  f o r  a hern ia .  

The Workers' Compensation Board neve r the l e s s  seems t o  want more. 

I n  Mr. McCargar's case  the  Board has denied h i s  claim f o r  back 

i n j u r i e s  i n  s p i t e  of t h e  evidence i n  h i s  favour.  The  Board 

specu la t e s  without any evidence t h a t  t h e  i n j u r y  m u s t  have had some 

o the r  cause.  

I n  the  fou r th  case ,  Mr. Fo r re s t  su f f e red  a compensable lower back 

and r i g h t  h ip  i n j u r y .  However, he w e n t  back t o  work before  h i s  

condi t ion  had resolved and aggravated i t .  Again, the  Board has 

denied h i s  claim i n  s p i t e  of t he  evidence i n  h i s  favour.  

F ina l ly ,  i n  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  case the  i s sue  is whether h i s  s p i n a l  

fus ion  was the  r e s u l t  of previous compensable i n j u r i e s .  The Board 

r e l i e s  on t h e  opinion of i t s  or thopedic  consu l t an t  t o  deny t h e  

claim. Against t h i s  a r e  t h e  opinions of two o the r  or thopedic  

consu l t an t s  who support  the  claim and who have very s p e c i f i c  

c r i t i c i s m s  of t h e  opinion of t h e  Board's or thopedic  consu l t an t .  I n  

my view, the  evidence is balanced i n  favour of Nr. C h a t r e r ' s  claim. 
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I have met with Mr. Walter Flesher, the Chairman of the Workers' 

Compensation Board, t o  discuss these cases. However, the BoarJ'8 

position remains unchanged. Each of these cases was also the 

subject of an individual report to the Lieutenant Governor in 

Council. 

Each complainant has consented to the use of h i s  name in this 

Special Report to the Legislative Assembly. 
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Mr. Peter Cheveldave 

R e :  I n ju ry  of a Hernia 

Mr. Cheveldave worked i n  and around T r a i l ,  B.C.  and was known a s  a 

s k i l l e d  cabinetmaker and carpenter .  H e  was known t o  have a somewhat 

d i s t i n c t i v e  l i f e s t y l e  and worked h i s  own hours b u t  h i s  work was 

always above reproach. He was a l s o  known t o  be a " n a t u r a l l y "  

c a r e f u l  worker. 

I n  May 1 9 7 9  Mr. Cheveldave had a hern ia  t h a t  was not r e l a t e d  t o  any 

work a c t i v i t i e s .  

On October 2 0 ,  1980 Mr. Cheveldave was p u t t i n g  a new s h e d  over a 

small  b o i l e r  a t  a cement products  p l a n t .  W h i l e  he was doing t h i s  

work t h e  foreman asked him t o  he lp  move a r o l l  of p l a s t i c .  The r o l l  

was 4 f e e t  long, weighed between 60  and  80 l b s .  and was c a r r i e d  by 

t h e  use of a p ipe  through t h e  center. According t o  t h e  foreman, i t  

was " p r e t t y  well impossible"  f o r  one man t o  c a r r y  t h e  r o l l .  The two 

men moved the r o l l  of p l a s t i c  and i n  doing so had t o  manoeuvre over 

some o b s t a c l e s  so  t h a t  t he  load was l i f t e d  t o  chest high on one 

occasion.  As wel l ,  t h e  move was done hu r r i ed ly  and awkwardly. 

According t o  Mr. Cheveldave, "As I was a t  t h e  r e a r  of t h e  load and 

the man i n  f r o n t  was making f a s t  and sudden  movements or  manoeuvres 

I had t o  absorb s e v e r a l  sudden  j a r s . "  H e  not iced a sudden  pain and  

immediately put h i s  end  of t h e  load down al though the  foreman had no 

r e c o l l e c t i o n  of t h e  load being set  down when i n t e r v i e w e d  l a t e r .  

Later i n  t h e  a f te rnoon Mr. Cheveldave's doctor  diagnosed a r i g h t  

hernia  as a r e s u l t  of " l i f t i n g  heavy r o l l  of p l a s t i c " .  

The Board denied M r ,  Cheveldave's claim f o r  compensation. 

Mr. Cheveldave complained t o  my o f f i c e  i n  December 1982 and I 

s u b s t a n t i a t e d  h i s  complaint aga ins t  t h e  Board i n  February 1984. 

I n i t i a l l y  t h e r e  had been, i n  my v i e w ,  an i n c o r r e c t  a p p l i c a t i o n  of 
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Board p o l i c y  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  whe the r  t h e  1980  h e r n i a  was a 

r e c u r r e n c e  of t h e  1979  h e r n i a .  The Board e v e n t u a l l y  agreed t h a t  t h e  

p o l i c y  i n  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  s u c h  as  Mr. C h e v e l d a v e ' s  was u n c l e a r  and  t h e  

Commissioners  unde r took  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  claims ad judica tors  are  aware 

o f  t h e  correct p o l i c y .  

As a r e s u l t  of  my P r e l i m i n a r y  Report, t h e  Board carr ied o u t  a n  

i n v e s t i g a t i o n  i n t o  t h e  f ac t s  of t h e  a c c i d e n t  and  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  

t h e r e  was a lack of  e v i d e n c e  t o  s u p p o r t  Mr. C h e v e l d a v e ' s  claim t h a t  

t h e  i n j u r y  had occurred a t  work. I n  a r r i v i n g  a t  t h i s  c o n c l u s i o n  t h e  

Commissioners  accepted t h e  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  of  t h e i r  f i e l d  

i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t  t h e r e  had been  no obstacles i n  t h e  way of t h e  move 

as r e p o r t e d  by Mr. Cheveldave .  I found  t h i s  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  was n o t  

correct.  T r a n s c r i p t s  of i n t e r v i e w s  w i t h  t h e  foreman who helped 

Mr. Cheveldave  move t h e  r o l l  of  p l a s t i c ,  i n  f a c t ,  r e v e a l e d  t h a t  

t h e r e  was e v i d e n c e  t h e  load had t o  be managed a round  obstacles 

a l t h o u g h  n o t  t h e  obstacles t h a t  Mr. Cheveldave  recollected.  The 

f i e l d  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  a l s o  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  t h e  w i t n e s s  i n t e r v i e w e d  had 

n o t h i n g  t o  g a i n  by b e i n g  o ther  t h a n  s i n c e r e  b u t  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t s  

i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h e  w i t n e s s  d i d  n o t  want  t o  g o  a g a i n s t  t h e  company o r  

t h e  Board b e c a u s e  he  had a n  i n j u r e d  f o o t  and he  d i d  n o t  want t o  

endange r  h i s  p o s i t i o n  i n  a n y  way. 

The Commissioners  t h e n  stated t h a t  t h e  w e i g h t  i n v o l v e d  was not 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  b r i n g  a b o u t  t h e  o c c u r r e n c e  of  a h e r n i a .  My r e p l y  t o  

t h i s  was t o  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  t h e  Board 's  own r e s e a r c h  i n t o  t h e  

i n c i d e n t s  of h e r n i a s  s u g g e s t s  t h a t  t h e  o c c u r r e n c e  of  a h e r n i a  

r e q u i r e s  two f a c t o r s  o p e r a t i n g  a t  t h e  same t i m e .  One is i n c r e a s e d  

p r e s s u r e  on t h e  abdominal  wal l  and  t h i s  c a n  be c a u s e d  by a normal  

f o r c e ,  The o ther  f a c t o r  is a c o n g e n i t a l  weakness  i n  t h e  abdominal  

wal l .  So a h e r n i a  is b r o u g h t  a b o u t  by t h e  e f f e c t  of  normal  l i f t i n g  

on  a p r e - e x i s t i n g  weakness .  As w e l l ,  I p o i n t e d  o u t  t h a t  f o c u s i n g  on 
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t h e  w e i g h t  o f  t h e  l o a d  i g n o r e s  f a c t o r s  s p e c i f i c  t o  a p a r t i c u l a r  case 

s u c h  a s  i n d i v i d u a l  s t r e n g t h ,  s p e e d  o f  t h e  l i f t ,  movements  r e q u i r e d ,  

a n d  obstacles t h a t  h a v e  t o  b e  manoeuvred  a r o u n d .  

F i n a l l y ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  s i m p l y  s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e y  c o u l d  see no 

reason t o  p r e f e r  my w e i g h i n g  o f  t h e  e v i d e n c e  over t h e i r s .  However, 

I p o i n t e d  out  t h a t  t h e r e  was a work  a c t i v i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  h a v e  g i v e n  

r i s e  t o  t h e  i n j u r y  c o m p l a i n e d  o f ,  t h e  i n j u r y  was r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  

e m p l o y e r  a s  s o o n  as p rac t i cab le  a s  r e q u i r e d  by t h e  A c t ,  a n d  t h e  

d o c t o r  c o n f i r m e d  t h e  i n j u r y  o n  t h e  same d a y  t h a t  Mr. C h e v e l d a v e  h a d  

a h e r n i a .  The  o n l y  a l t e r n a t i v e  e x p l a n a t i o n  is t h a t  Mr. C h e v e l d a v e ' s  

h e r n i a  o c c u r r e d  b e f o r e  h e  came t o  work o n  October 2 0 ,  1 9 8 0 .  T h e  

o n l y  e v i d e n c e  s u p p o r t i n g  t h i s  c o n c l u s i o n  is  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  

Mr. C h e v e l d a v e  d i d  n o t  e x p l i c i t l y  s t a t e  h e  was i n  p a i n  a t  t h e  time 

o f  t h e  i n j u r y .  I n  my e x p e r i e n c e ,  a worker who is f a k i n g  a n  i n j u r y  

w i l l  make a n  e x a g g e r a t e d  show o f  b e i n g  i n j u r e d .  T h i s  d i d  no t  occur 

h e r e .  The w e i g h t  o f  e v i d e n c e ,  i n  my v i e w ,  i s  i n  favour of 

Mr. C h e v e l d a v e .  

Recommendation 

T h a t  t h e  B o a r d  a c c e p t  Mr. C h e v e l d a v e ' s  claim. 

Anticipated Impact 

Payment  o f  a p e r i o d  of  wage l o s s  p l u s  r e l a t e d  m e d i c a l  e x p e n s e s .  
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Mr. P e r r y  S w i s t a k  

Mr. S w i s t a k  is  a young man who used  t o  be  a l a b o u r e r  o n  t h e  g r e e n  

c h a i n  - g e n e r a l l y  acknowledged  as a s t r e n u o u s  occupation. 

h e  d e v e l o p e d  an  i n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  on h i s  l e f t  s i d e  w h i l e  he  was a t  

work, and  r e c e i v e d  compensa t ion .  On J a n u a r y  23, 1980,  he  saw h i s  

f a m i l y  d o c t o r  f o r  a r o u t i n e  p h y s i c a l .  Among o t h e r  t h i n g s ,  h e  was 

checked  f o r  a h e r n i a  o n  h i s  r i g h t  s i d e  a s  he had been  e x p e r i e n c i n g  

some d i s c o m f o r t ;  none was found ,  b u t  some weakness  of  t h e  r i g h t  

g r o i n  area was n o t e d .  Two d a y s  l a t e r ,  on J a n u a r y  25, Mr. S w i s t a k  

r e t u r n e d  t o  h i s  p h y s i c i a n ' s  o f f i c e  b e c a u s e  a small b u t  d e f i n i t e  lump 

had deve loped .  

I n  1979  

Between s e e i n g  d o c t o r s  on J a n u a r y  23 and  J a n u a r y  25, Mr. S w i s t a k  

worked t h e  Janua ry  24 l a t e  s h i f t .  H e  n o t i c e d  t h e  lump  when he  

a r r i v e d  home a f t e r  m i d n i g h t .  

h o u r s  l a t e r  and  was s e n t  t o  a spec ia l i s t  as  a r i g h t  i n g u i n a l  hezrria 

was s u s p e c t e d .  On F e b r u a r y  1 8 ,  he underwent  s u r g e r y .  

H e  saw h i s  p h y s i c i a n ' s  associate a few 

I n  s p i t e  of  t h i s  s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d  s e q u e n c e  of e v e n t s ,  t h e  Board 

c o n t r a d i c t e d  t h e  Janua ry  23 m e d i c a l  o p i n i o n  of  Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  r e g u l a r  

p h y s i c i a n  and  d e n i e d  h i s  claim on t h e  g r o u n d s  t h a t  h i s  h e r n i a  

a c t u a l l y  o c c u r r e d  on J a n u a r y  1 0 ,  and  n o t  be tween J a n u a r y  23 and  

J a n u a r y  25. The B o a r d ' s  r e a s o n  was t h a t  t h e  associate who d i a g n o s e d  

t h e  h e r n i a  on  J a n u a r y  25 had e n t e r e d  J a n u a r y  1 0  as t h e  d a t e  of o n s e t  

on t h e  i n j u r y  on  t h e  compensa t ion  a p p l i c a t i o n  form t h a t  he  f i l l e d  

o u t  fo r  Mr. S w i s t a k .  

Mr. Swis t ak  b e l i e v e s  t h a t  t h e  associate  c o n f u s e d  t h e  d a t e  o f  t h e  

b e g i n n i n g  of d i s c o m f o r t  (wh ich  was J a n u a r y  1 0 )  w i t h  t h e  d a t e  t h a t  

t h e  h e r n i a  a p p e a r e d ,  and  made a simple r e c o r d i n g  e r roc ;  several  s u c h  

e r r o r s  are obvious on  b o t h  fo rms  t h a t  t h i s  p h y s i c i a n  f i l l e d  o u t ,  3nd 

I a g r e e  t h a t  t h i s  is t h e  o n l y  r a t i o n a l  e x p l a n a t i o n .  O t h e r w i s e ,  t h e  
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f i r s t  medical examination would have found a hern ia  on January 23. 

The a s s o c i a t e  himself wrote a l e t t e r  Supporting Mr. Swis tak ' s  claim 

expla in ing  t h a t  Mr. Swis t ak ' s  regular  phys ic ian  could f i n d  only a 

weakness of t h e  r i g h t  gro in  on January 23. Long before  any 

controversy over d a t e s  a rose ,  t h e  s p e c i a l i s t  a l s o  put  i n  wr i t i ng  

t h a t  January 1 0  was the da t e  when discomfort  s t a r t e d ,  and January 25 

was t h e  d a t e  t h a t  a hern ia  appeared. 

B u t  t h e  board p re fe r r ed  t o  d is regard  t h i s  evidence,  and continued t o  

r e j e c t  Mr. Swis t ak ' s  c la im on t h e  grounds t h a t  h i s  hern ia  had 

occurred on January 1 0 ,  two weeks before  he saw e i t h e r  doc tor .  I n  

my opinion,  t he  Board has made a mistake of f a c t .  

- Recommendation 

That t h e  Board compensate Mr. Swistak f o r  t h e  time l o s s  h e  incur red  

a s  a r e s u l t  of h i s  r i g h t  inguina l  hern ia .  

Ant ic ipa ted  Impact 

Payment of s e v e r a l  week's wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s .  
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Mr. Craig McCargar 

At age 18, Mr. McCargar was involved in a work accident in April, 

1979. Although his employer reported to the Board that Mr. McCargar 

had suffered injuries to his left hand, elbow, shoulder, and back, 

the Emergency Department of the hospital Mr. McCargar attended 

diagnosed only his bruised left hand. It did not mention any other 

injuries. The Board accepted his claim for a left hand injury and 

paid him wage loss benefits. 

Almost a year later, in March, 1980, Mr. McCargar suffered a second 

work accident when he slipped on oil and fell down in a sitting 

position. The employer reported that Mr. McCargar's back had been 

bothering him since his 1979 accident. Mr. McCargar's doctor 

reported in February 1980 that Mr. McCargar had complained of 

recurring low back ache for the past 10 to 11 months. This would 

mean that Hr. McCargar had complained of low back symptoms since 

approximately his first work accident. His recurring pain worsened 

and he was admitted to hospital in August 1980. In September 1980 

he underwent surgery to a disc in his low back. 

The Board adjudicator disallowed Mr. McCargar's 1980 claim. 

Mr. McCargar appealed this decision to the boards of review. They 

obtained an opinion from the surgeon who performed Mr. McCargar's 

back surgery. The surgeon stated that, although Mr. McCargar's 

condition could have existed for years or months prior to becoming 

symptomatic, there must always be an initial insult to produce the 

type of disruption of the anulus of the disc which Mr. McCargar 

suffered. The boards of review concluded that, since Mr. McCargar 

was young and he denied any previous injuries to his back, it was 

unreasonable to look beyond the injuries reported by Mr. McCargar to 

explain his symptoms and subsequent disc surgery. The boards of 

review upheld his appeal in a majority decision. However, 
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Mr. M c C a r g a r ' s  s u c c e s s  was s h o r t - l i v e d .  The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  of t h e  

B o a r d  o v e r t u r n e d  t h e  d e c i s i o n  o f  t h e  boards o f  r e v i e w  o n  t h e  g r o u n d s  

t h a t  it was a g a i n s t  t h e  o v e r w h e l m i n g  w e i g h t  o f  t h e  e v i d e n c e .  

I f o u n d  t h a t  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s '  d e c i s i o n  t o  disal low Mr. M c C a r g a r ' s  

1 9 8 0  claim was u n j u s t .  They had o b j e c t e d  t o  t h e  b o a r d s  of review 

dec i s ion  on t h e  g r o u n d  t h a t  t h e  s u r g e o n ' s  r e p o r t  d i d  n o t  p r o v i d e  a 

r e a s o n a b l e  b a s i s  f o r  t h e  d e c i s i o n  o f  t h e  b o a r d s  o f  r e v i e w .  The 

C o m m i s s i o n e r s  c o n t e n d e d  t h a t  a s  t h e  1 9 7 9  i n j u r y  was o n l y  a l e f t  hand 

i n j u r y  a n d  d i d  n o t  a f f e c t  t h e  b a c k ,  t h e  " i n i t i a l  i n s u l t "  r e f e r r e d  t o  

by t h e  s u r g e o n  c o u l d  n o t  h a v e  been c a u s e d  by work. 

The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  claimed t h a t  Mr. M c C a r g a r ' s  1 9 7 9  i n j u r y  d i d  n o t  

a f f e c t  h i s  b a c k  because of t h e  lack o f  r e f e r e n c e  t o  a b a c k  i n j u r y  i n  

t h e  r e p o r t s  r e c e i v e d  a t  t h e  time, a n d  t o  t h e  l ack  of e v i d e n c e  o f  

Sack c o m p l a i n t s  e x p e r i e n c e d  b e t w e e n  t h a t  time a n d  F e b r u a r y  1 9 8 0 ,  a n d  

a g a i n  b e t w e e n  F e b r u a r y  1 9 8 0  a n d  March 28, 1980.  

F o l l o w i n g  my repor t  t h e  Commissioners r a i sed  two f u r t h e r  

ob jec t ions .  F i r s t ,  t h e y  s t a t e d  t h a t  i f  Mr. McCargar had  s u f f e r e d  a 

s i g n i f i c a n t  back i n j u r y  i n  t h e  1 9 7 9  i n c i d e n t ,  it would  h a v e  b e e n  

m e n t i o n e d  a t  t h e  time when t r e a t m e n t  was f i r s t  s o u g h t  or s o o n  

a f t e r w a r d s .  I p o i n t e d  o u t  t h a t  among t h e  r epor t s  r e c e i v e d  a t  t h e  

time o f  t h e  1 9 7 9  a c c i d e n t  was o n e  from Mr. M c C a r g a r ' s  e m p l o y e r ,  

w h i c h  s t a t e d  t h a t  Mr. McCargar i n j u r e d  h i s  back. As f o r  a lack o f  

e v i d e n c e  o f  back c o m p l a i n t s  b e t w e e n  t h e  two i n j u r i e s ,  Mr. McCargar  

s u b s e q u e n t l y  o b t a i n e d  w i t n e s s  s t a t e m e n t s  f r o m  h i s  p a r e n t s  a n d  f e l low 

e m p l o y e e s  t o  t h e  e f f e c t  t h a t  h e  d i d  h a v e  back p r o b l e m s  i n  t h i s  time 

p e r i o d  a n d  d e s c r i b i n g  how t h e s e  p r o b l e m s  a f f e c t e d  h i s  work 

p e r f o r m a n c e  a n d  a c t i v i t i e s .  
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I d i d  n o t  a g r e e  t h a t  Mr. McCargar needed  t o  have  s u f f e r e d  a 

s i g n i f i c a n t  back  i n j u r y  i n  A p r i l  1979 i n  order  t o  damage and weaken 

t h e  a n u l u s  o f  t h e  d i s c  a s  r e p o r t e d  by h i s  s u r g e o n .  I n  f a c t ,  h i s  

s u r g e o n  had allowed € o r  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  Mr. McCarga r ' s  back 

i n j u r y  may n o t  have  been  a s i g n i f i c a n t  one i n  s t a t i n g  t h a t  h i s  

c o n d i t i o n  c o u l d  have  e x i s t e d  f o r  y e a r s  o r  months p r i o r  t o  necominq 

symptomat i c ,  depend ing  o n  t h e  d e g r e e  of weakness  o r  i n j u r y  f rom t h e  

i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  and  f rom t h e  v a r i o u s  c h a n g e s  t h a t  o c c u r r e d  r e s u l t i n g  

f rom s u b s e q u e n t  s t ress  and  i n j u r i e s .  

Second,  t h e  Commiss ioners  c o n t e n d e d  t h a t  Mr. McCarga r ' s  t e s t i m o n y  

was c o n t r a d i c t o r y  as t o  w h e t h e r  he s u f f e r e d  back c o m p l a i n t s  a f t e r  

t h e  1979 i n c i d e n t .  S p e c i f i c a l l y ,  t h e  Commissioners p o i n t  t o  a 

statement f rom Mr. McCargar t h a t  he had no f u r t h e r  back  p a i n  a E t e r  

t h e  1979 i n j u r y .  Mr. McCargar d o e s  n o t  reca l l  making t h i s  

statement, and  s t a t e s  t h a t  h i s  t e l e p h o n e  c a l l  t o  t h e  Board on t h e  

d a t e  t h e  s t a t e m e n t  was r e c o r d e d  was made f rom t h e  h o s p i t a l  j u s t  

p r i o r  t o  h i s  s u r g e r y  a n d  when he was on m e d i c a t i o n .  T h i s  s t a t e m e n t  

s t a n d s  o u t  i n  i s o l a t i o n  a g a i n s t  a l l  t h e  o t h e r  e v i d e n c e  on f i l e .  

T h i s  e v i d e n c e  c o n s i s t s  o f  Mr. McCarga r ' s  o t h e r  s t a t e m e n t s  t o  t h e  

Board:  statements by h i s  p a r e n t s  and  f e l l o w  employees  r e g a r d i n g  

t h e i r  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  h i s  back problems a f t e r  h i s  1979  i n j u r y ;  and  

h i s  d o c t o r ' s  report  of  F e b r u a r y  1980 t h a t  Mr. McCargar s t a t e d  he had 

had a r e c u r r i n g  back  a c h e  f o r  t h e  pas t  t e n  t o  e l e v e n  months.  

T h e r e f o r e ,  t h e  p r e p o n d e r e n c e  of t h e  e v i d e n c e  p o i n t s  t o  t h e  

c o n c l u s i o n  t h a t  Mr. McCargar d i d  experience back p rob lems  be tween 

h i s  two w o r k  i n j u r i e s .  

The Commiss ioners  d i d  n o t  d i s p u t e  Mr. McCarga r ' s  e v i d e n c e  t h a t  he 

had no back  p rob lems  p r i o r  t o  h i s  1979 i n c i d e n t ,  and  t h e y  d i d  n o t  

d i s p u t e  h i s  e v i d e n c e  b e f o r e  t h e  b o a r d s  of review t h a t  he had no back 
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i n j u r i e s  p r i o r  t o  h i s  work i n j u r i e s .  Considering those f a c t s  along 

w i t h  h i s  surgeon 's  opinion t h a t  Mr. McCargar's condi t ion was 

cons i s t en t  w i t h  a back in ju ry  a t  any time p r i o r  t o  the surgery,  t h e  

only back i n j u r y  the surgeon could be r e f e r r i n g  t o  would be e i t h e r  

the 1 9 7 9  or the 1980 back in ju ry ,  both of which occurred a t  work. 

Ins tead ,  the  Commissioners have in t e rp re t ed  the  s p e c i a l i s t ' s  repor t  

t o  mean t h a t ,  without r e a l i z i n g  i t ,  Mr. McCargar could have suf fered  

a work or non-work in ju ry  p r i o r  or subsequent t o  h i s  1 9 7 9  work 

acc ident  w h i c h  d i d  not immediately produce symptoms but was t h e  

cause of h i s  subsequent condi t ion.  

- 

The Commissioners s t a t e  i t  is specula t ive  t o  f i x  upon t h e  Apri l  1 9 7 9  

inc ident  a s  the s i g n i f i c a n t  one. Although t h e  back in ju ry  would not 

have needed t o  be a s i g n i f i c a n t  one, I be l ieve  i t  is more 

specu la t ive  t o  f i x  upon poss ib le  acc idents  t h a t  would have been s o  

minor i n  nature  t h a t  Mr. McCargar would be unaware of them a s  the 

cause of h i s  l a t e r  back pain and surgery.  By emphasizing these 

unknowns the Board is  not giving Mr. McCargar t h e  benef i t  of the 

doubt when the p o s s i b i l i t i e s  a r e  equal ly  balanced, contrary t o  S .99  

of the Workers Compensation Act. 

T h i r d ,  t h e  Commissioners cont ras ted  the opinion of Mr. McCargar's 

s p e c i a l i s t  w i t h  t h e  s p e c i f i c  opinions of t h ree  Board doctors  t h a t  

t he re  was no r e l a t ionsh ip  between Mr. McCargar's complaints and h i s  

1 9 7 9  i n ju ry .  

I t  is cor rec t  t h a t  the Board doctors  were of t h e  opinion t h a t  

Mr. McCargar's complaints were not r e l a t ed  t o  h i s  1 9 7 9  or 1980 

i n j u r i e s .  However, two of t h e  Board doc tors '  opinions were based 

p a r t l y  on what the  Board re fer red  t o  a s  Mr. McCargar's i ncons i s t en t  

statement - t h a t  he had recovered from h i s  1 9 7 9  i n j u r y  without any 

pain.  The two doctors  f a i l e d  t o  r e f e r  t o  o ther  evidence t h a t  h i s  
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back had been sore off and on since the 1979 injury. Therefore, 

their opinions apparently were not based on all available evidence. 

The third Board doctor felt that there was not adequate evidence to 

support a relationship between the 1980 accident and Mr. McCargar's 

symptoms regarding hospitalization, nor any apparent relationship 

between his 1979 accident and later problems. However, she did not 

and could not consider the report of Mr. McCargar's surgeon which 
was not yet available, in coming to this conclusion. In my opinion, 

the surgeon's report provided adequate evidence to support such a 

relationship. It was my belief that the medical opinions which had 

to be balanced were those of one Board doctor, who based her opinion 

on a file review, and of Mr. McCargar's surgeon. 

I therefore concluded that the Board's decision to disallow 
Mr. McCargar's 1980 claim as a new incident which aggravated his 

pre-existing condition resulting from his 1979 accident was unjust. 

In this case I believe the Board has drawn incorrect inferences of 

fact from the evidence. 

Report to the Cabinet and Meeting with the Chairman of the 

Workers' Compensation Board 

After submitting my report of this case to the Cabinet on 

March 27, 1985, I met with Mr. Flesher, Chairman of the Workers' 

Compensation Board to discuss personally my findings and 

recommendation. That discussion did not result in any change in the 

Commissioners' decision to reject my recommendation. 

Aftermath 

Mr. McCargar's work accident, his resulting disability, and the 

Board's refusal to accept his claim have had a devastating impact on 

his life. Prior to Mr. McCargar's first work injury at age 18, he 
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had worked for approximately three years after leaving school at the 

end of grade 9. His work experience consisted primarily of 

physically demanding, unskilled jobs which he was able to obtain 

with his limited education and no doubt assisted by a more buoyant 

economy. After his second work injury and surgery, he continued to 

work for his employer who allowed him to work at lighter duties. 

This arrangement continued until the company went out of business. 

Mr. McCargar then found light work with another employer, who 

unfortunately also went out of business after a few months. Since 

that time, Mr. McCargar has been unable to find steady employment 

within his physical capabilities. His employment options, already 

restricted by his level of education, have become even more 

restricted because of his back condition. The Board has not 

assisted him in any retraining or rehabilitation program so that he 

can again be productively employed. As a result, Mr. McCargar, at 

age 25, is now unemployed and on welfare. 

Recommendation 

That the Board accept Mr. McCargar's 1 9 8 0  claim as an aggravation of 

his pre-existing condition resulting from his 1 9 7 9  accident. 

Anticipated Impact 

Payment of Mr. McCargar's wage l o s s  benefits and medical expenses 

resulting from his 1 9 8 0  claim, and consideration for a permanent 

disability award. 
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Mr. T e r r e n c e  Forrest  
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The i s s u e  i n  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  case is whe the r  h i s  w o r s e n i n g  c o n d i t i o n ,  

w h i c h  c a u s e d  him t o  s t o p  work ing  i n  September, 1971,  was re la ted t o  

h i s  o r i g i n a l  work a c c i d e n t  of  August  1 7 ,  1970.  

I n v e s t i g a t i v e  F i n d i n g s  

Mr. For res t  was a worker w i t h  a s t e a d y  work h i s t o r y  i n  t h e  wood and 

s e r v i c e  i n d u s t r i e s  g o i n g  back many y e a r s .  On August  1 7 ,  1 9 7 0  h e  

i n j u r e d  t h e  r i g h t  s i d e  of h i s  lower back and  r i g h t  h i p  a t  w o r k  i n  a 

plywood m a n u f a c t u r i n g  p l a n t ,  where  he  had been  employed f o r  t h e  past  

f o u r  y e a r s .  The Board accepted h i s  claim and paid him wage l o s s  

b e n e f i t s  f o r  a p p r o x i m a t e l y  f i v e  months.  He attempted t o  r e t u r n  t o  

work i n  J a n u a r y  1971 ,  b u t  was able t o  work o n l y  t h r e e  d a y s .  

Mr. Forrest ' s  doctor s u g g e s t e d  t h a t  h e  s t a r t  work ing  a f o u r  h o u r  

s h i f t  and g r a d u a l l y  p r o g r e s s  t o  a f u l l  s h i f t .  Af te r  an  i n i t i a l  t w d  

w e e k s  of l i g h t  work f o u r  h o u r s  d a i l y ,  Mr. Forrest s t a r t e d  a n  e i g h t  

hour  s h i f t  p e r f o r m i n g  h e a v i e r  work on March 1, 1971.  One of t h e  

r e a s o n s  why Mr. Forrest  s t a t e s  he  s t a r t e d  a n  8 hour  s h i f t  on t h i s  

da te  is t h a t ,  a f t e r  two w e e k s  on a f o u r  hour  s h i f t ,  he  was t o l d  by 

h i s  employer  t h a t  he s h o u l d  e i t h e r  r e t u r n  t o  a n  e i g h t  hour  s h i f t  o r  

r e t u r n  t o  compensa t ion .  The o t h e r  r e a s o n  was t h a t  he was managing 

w i t h  a f o u r  hour  s h i f t  and  he u n d e r s t o o d  a Board  employee  t o  have  

t o l d  h i m  t h a t  i f  a problem r e c u r r e d ,  h i s  claim would be r eopened .  

Mr. Forrest c o n t i n u e d  work ing  an  e i g h t  hour  s h i f t  u n t i l  September  30,  

1 9 7 1  when h e  ceased working .  H e  t h e n  reported t o  t h e  Board t h a t  he  

was h a v i n g  f u r t h e r  t r o u b l e  w i t h  h i s  back and  wished t o  r e o p e n  h i s  

claim. The a d j u d i c a t o r  d e n i e d  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  claim. He w r o t e  t h a t  

Mr. F o r r e s t  had almost c o m p l e t e l y  r e c o v e r e d  from h i s  1 9 7 0  i n j u r y  a n d  

medical r e p o r t s  on  f i l e  before he  r e t u r n e d  t o  work d i d  n o t  show t h a t  

he  was i n c a p a b l e  o f  c a r r y i n g  o u t  h i s  d u t i e s .  
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Mr. Forrest  appealed t h i s  dec is ion  t o  t h e  old boards of review. They 

denied h i s  appeal.  Mr. Forrest  was not ab le  t o  re turn  t o  work. 

Since 1 9 7 2  Mr. For res t  has been i n  r ece ip t  of a handicapped pension 

from the  Ministry of Human Resources a s  a r e s u l t  of h i s  s p i n a l  

problems and deafness i n  one ear .  

Grounds for Preliminary Recommendation 

I found t h a t  the Board's decis ion t o  refuse the reopening of 

Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  claim i n  October 1 9 7 1  was unjust  a s  i t  f a i l e d  t o  

consider re levant  f a c t o r s .  I b e l i e v e d  t h a t  t h e  Board had missed  two 

important cons idera t ions .  F i r s t ,  Board medical s t a f f  d i d  not 

completely share  the opinion of the ad judica tor  t h a t  Mr. For res t  had 

almost recovered from h i s  August 1 9 7 0  i n ju ry .  Board doc tors  

suggested t h a t  he exerc ise  fo r  the  r e s t  of h i s  l i f e  and bel ieved t h a t  

he was l e f t  w i t h  some chronic  back ache which could go on 

i n d e f i n i t e l y .  The 3oard doctor a l s o  f e l t  h e  would requi re  some 

as s i s t ance  i n  ob ta in ing  a s u i t a b l e  job i n  the  p l an t  where he  had been 

employed fo r  near ly  f i v e  years .  These comments a r e  cons i s t en t  only 

w i t h  the  conclusion t h a t  Mr. For res t  had not f u l l y  recovered. 

Secondly, Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  doctor had reported t o  the Board p r i o r  t o  Mr. 

F o r r e s t ' s  re turn  t o  work t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  back pain was aggravated 

by s i t t i n g  and working. Mr. For res t  had s t a t e d  t h a t  h e  walked 

approximately e i g h t  miles a day during h i s  e i g h t  hour s h i f t  and t h a t  

much of t h e  walking was i n  f a c t  running. Therefore,  t h e  job Mr. 

Forrest  performed required movements w h i c h  h i s  doctor noted 

aggravated Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  pain.  I i n i t i a l l y  recommended t h a t  t h e  

Board reopen Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  1 9 7 0  claim e f f e c t i v e  October 1, 1 9 7 1  and 

a s ses s  h im f o r  a d i s a b i l i t y  award. 
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The Commissioners' Reply 

The Commissioners d i d  not agree w i t h  my findings f o r  several  reasons. 

1. 

2. 

3 .  

4.  

5. 

They wrote t h a t  the Board doctors '  reports  I referred t o  d i d  not 

contradict  the Claims Adjudicator's decision because, they 

s t a t e d ,  the reports were made two months pr ior  t o  Mr. For res t ' s  

re turn t o  work. 

They s t a t e d  tha t  the reports '  s ignif icance became questionable 

because Mr. For res t ' s  own doctor had reported t h a t  Mr. Forrest  

would recover and return t o  h i s  job. The Commissioners 

in te rpre ted  the subsequent report  of Mr. For res t ' s  doctor t o  mean 

t h a t  he was recommending a procedure for  a t ta in ing  recovery, and 

pointed out tha t  Mr. Forrest d i d  i n  f a c t  return t o  h i s  normal 

work and was able t o  do t h i s  normal work f o r  the following s i x  

months. 

They d i d  not agree tha t  the nature of Mr. For res t ' s  work a f t e r  

March 1, 1971 would have aggravated h i s  condition. 

They s t a t e d  he never referred h i s  l a t e r  complaints t o  h i s  work i n  

t h i s  period and had s ta ted t o  the Board t h a t  there was no ner 

incident or injury i n  t h i s  period of time. 

Mr. Forrest ' s  low back problems were probably caused by an 

off-the-job accident which had produced some neck pain. 

Comment on t h e  Commissioners' Reply 

1. The reports of the Board's doctors were important as  they 

demonstrated t h a t ,  over the course of Mr. For res t ' s  treatment 

pr ior  t o  h i s  re turn t o  work, the Board doctors d i d  not expect h i m  

t o  recover completely from h i s  in jury.  



Page 1 5  

2.  Al though h i s  own d o c t o r  e x p e c t e d  he would improve  s a t i s f a c t o r i l y  

and  would e v e n t u a l l y  r e t u r n  t o  h i s  j o b ,  i n  h i s  s u b s e q u e n t  repor t  

t h e  same d o c t o r  s t a t e d  t h a t  a f t e r  Mr. F o r r e s t  had r e t u r n e d  t o  

work f o r  t h r e e  d a y s  h i s  p a i n  had r e t u r n e d  and remained  w i t h  him. 

The d o c t o r  e x p l a i n e d  t h a t  he e x p e c t e d  t h a t  a f t e r  t h i s  relapse Mr. 

Forrest  would be  a b l e  t o  c a r r y  on  w i t h  t h e  l i g h t  work t h a t  he 

f e l t  would be  p o s s i b l e  t o  a r r a n g e .  However, as n o t e d ,  Mr. 

F o r r e s t  o n l y  pe r fo rmed  l i g h t  work f o r  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  two w e e k s .  

I n  my o p i n i o n ,  a l t h o u g h  t h e  d o c t o r  may have  recommended l i g h t  

work t o  a i d  i n  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  r e c o v e r y ,  it is c l e a r  t h a t  

Mr. F o r r e s t  d i d  n o t  r e c o v e r  as  h i s  p a i n  g r a d u a l l y  i n c r e a s e d  i n  

t h e  f o l l o w i n g  s i x  months.  

3 .  Mr. F o r r e s t  d i d  n o t  r e t u r n  t o  h i s  "no rma l"  work b u t  r a t h e r  t o  a 

l i g h t e r  job of  c a r r y i n g  and  t u r n i n g  4 x 8 s h e e t s  of v e n e e r .  H i s  

p r e v i o u s  j o b  was t h a t  of an  a s s i s t a n t  h o t  press  o p e r a t o r ,  which  

was h e a v i e r  work i n  t h a t  i t  i n v o l v e d  more p u s h i n g  and  l i f t i n g .  

I t  is s i g n i f i c a n t  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  d o c t o r  h a s  a l s o  s t a t e d  t h a t  

i f  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  work a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  c o n d i t i o n ,  h i s  pa in  would b e  

g r a d u a l l y  worsen ing  d u r i n g  t h e  time he  was p e r f o r m i n g  h i s  job .  

Mr. F o r r e s t  had r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  Board  t h a t  a f t e r  March, 1 9 7 1  h e  

s u f f e r e d  pain i n f r e q u e n t l y  a t  f i r s t ,  b u t  by t h e  end of August  

1 9 7 1  t h e  p a i n  was present  on  a d a i l y  b a s i s ,  worsen ing  s o  t h a t  t h e  

p a i n  became c o n s t a n t .  H i s  p a i n  i n c r e a s e d  as he c o n t i n u e d  t o  

p e r f o r m  a j o b  which  c o n s i s t e d  of  movements ( w a l k i n g )  which  h i s  

d o c t o r  had n o t e d  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  p a i n .  

4. The f a c t  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  d i d  n o t  r e f e r  h i s  l a t e r  c o m p l a i n t s  t o  

h i s  w o r k  was n o t  s u r p r i s i n g  i n  v iew of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  

was n o t  a s k e d  by t h e  Board what  he  r e f e r r e d  h i s  c o m p l a i n t s  t o  a n d  

he  d i d  n o t  comment on t h i s  i s s u e  one  way o r  t h e  o t h e r .  However, 
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t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Mr. Forrest  c o n t a c t e d  t h e  Board i n  September 1 9 7 1  

b e c a u s e  of  h i s  i n c r e a s i n g  p a i n  a t  work and r e q u e s t e d  a r e o p e n i n g  

of h i s  claim would demonstrate h i s  belief t h a t  h i s  p a i n  was 

re la ted to  e i ther  h i s  w o r k  a c t i v i t y ,  h i s  p r e v i o u s  w o r k  a c c i d e n t ,  

or a c o m b i n a t i o n  of t h e  two. The f a c t  t h a t  there  was no new work 

i n c i d e n t  a f t e r  March, 1 9 7 1  s h o u l d  n o t  p r o h i b i t  t h e  Board from 

a l l o w i n g  a r e o p e n i n g  of Mr. For res t ' s  claim. I t  s h o u l d  be 

re-opened b e c a u s e  h i s  w o r s e n i n g  c o n d i t i o n  a f t e r  Sep tember  1971  

was a r e s u l t  of h i s  p r e v i o u s  work i n j u r y ,  f rom w h i c h  h e  had n o t  

f u l l y  r e c o v e r e d ,  combined w i t h  a work a c t i v i t y  which  a g g r a v a t e d  

t h i s  u n r e s o l v e d  c o n d i t i o n .  

5. Mr. F o r r e s t  o n l y  r e l a t ed  h i s  low back, h i p ,  and l e g  p a i n  t o  h i s  

1970  work a c c i d e n t .  H e  n e v e r  a t t r i b u t e d  h i s  s h o u l d e r  b l a d e  and  

neck p a i n  t o  h i s  work a c c i d e n t .  There  is no e v i d e n c e  t h a t  h i s  

neck p a i n  is related t o  h i s  low back p a i n .  I t  is  a separate  

i s s u e .  

Conclusion 

I n  my o p i n i o n ,  t h e  Board's r e f u s a l  t o  r eopen  Mr. For res t ' s  claim i n  
October 1 9 7 1  is a n  u n j u s t  d e c i s i o n  b e c a u s e  it f a i l e d  t o  c o n s i d e r  

r e l e v a n t  f a c t o r s .  T h e s e  r e l e v a n t  factors  i n c l u d e d  t h e  f a c t s  t h a t  Mr. 
For res t ' s  c o n d i t i o n  had n o t  r e s o l v e d  when he r e t u r n e d  t o  h i s  work; 

t h a t  medical o p i n i o n s  p r i o r  t o  and  a f t e r  h i s  r e t u r n  t o  work s t a t ed  

t h a t  he  s h o u l d  seek s u i t a b l e  or l i g h t  w o r k :  t h a t  Mr. Forrest  on ly  

p e r f o r m e d  l i g h t  work f o r  two w e e k s  b e f o r e  b e i n g  t o l d  by t h e  employer  

t o  r e t u r n  t o  h e a v i e r  e i g h t  hour  s h i f t s :  and  t h a t  t h i s  job  

n e c e s s i t a t e d  w a l k i n g  e i g h t  miles a day ,  a movement which  

Mr. Fo r re s t ' s  doctor n o t e d  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  p a i n .  
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Report  t o  t h e  Cabinet and Meeting with t h e  Chairman of t h e  

Workers' Compensation Board 

Af te r  submit t ing my r epor t  of t h i s  case t o  Cabinet on Apr i l  2,  1985, 

I met w i t h  Mr. F l e s h e r ,  Chairman of t h e  Workers' Compensation Board, 

t o  personal ly  d i scuss  my f ind ings  and recommendations. That 

d i scuss ion  d i d  not r e s u l t  i n  any change i n  t h e  Board's p o s i t i o n .  

Aftermath 

Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  work acc iden t ,  h i s  r e s u l t i n g  d i s a b i l i t y  and t h e  Board 's  

r e fusa l  t o  recognize h i s  d i s a b i l i t y  a s  work-related have d r a s t i c a l l y  

changed Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  l i f e .  

P r io r  t o  h i s  acc iden t ,  Mr. For re s t  had worked fu l l - t ime  f o r  

26  years .  He has a grade 7 educat ion.  He intended t o  s t a y  w i t h  t h e  

employer f o r  w h i c h  h e  worked f o r  t h e  4 yea r s  p r i o r  t o  h i s  i n ju ry ,  and 

had t h i s  been poss ib l e ,  h e  would have been e l i g i b l e  t o  rece ive  a 

company pension when he  r e t i r e d .  Ins tead ,  a f t e r  the  Board refused t o  

reopen h i s  claim i n  1 9 7 1 ,  Mr. For re s t  was phys ica l ly  unable t o  

cont inue a t  h i s  job. H e  i n i t i a l l y  received s i c k  pay b e n e f i t s ,  t h e n  

welfare  and f o r  t h e  p a s t  s eve ra l  yea r s ,  a handicapped pension from 

the  M i n i s t r y  of Human Resources. He s t a t e s  he  has been unable t o  

work s i n c e  1971.  Whether he would have been ab le  t o  work i f  he  were 

r e t r a i n e d  f o r  l i g h t e r  work is unknown, a s  t h e  Board did not o f f e r  h im 

any r e h a b i l i t a t i o n  a s s i s t a n c e .  H i s  four  ch i ld ren  were between the  

ages of 7 and 1 4  when Mr. Fo r re s t  was in ju red ,  and h e  was unable t o  

provide them w i t h  any "ex t r a s"  when they were growing up. H e  has not 

been ab le  t o  a f fo rd  a hol iday f o r  15 yea r s  and does not go out .  H e  

is now 57 years  o ld ,  and fee ls  b i t t e r  about t he  l i f e  w h i c h  has 

r e su l t ed  from h i s  d i s a b i l i t y  and the  Board 's  r e fusa l  t o  accept  h i s  

claim. 
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Recommendation 

That the Board re-open Mr. Forrest's 1970 claim effective 

October 1, 1971 and assess him for a disability award. 

Anticipated Impact 

Temporary wage loss benefits from October 1, 1971 until Mr. Forest's 

condition had stabilized, and a permanent partial disability award. 
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Mr. W i l h e l m u s  C h a t r e r  

The i s s u e  i n  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  case is w h e t h e r  w o r k - r e l a t e d  i n j u r i e s  

a g g r a v a t e d  an e x i s t i n g  back c o n d i t i o n ,  t h e r e b y  c o n t r i b u t i n g  t o  h i s  

n e e d  t o  h a v e  a s p i n a l  f u s i o n .  

I n v e s t i g a t i v e  F i n d i n g s  and P r e l i m i n a r y  Recommendation 

Mr. C h a t r e r  h a s  had  e i g h t  c o m p e n s a b l e  i n j u r i e s  i n v o l v i n g  h i s  low 

b a c k .  A l l  h a v e  b e e n  a c c e p t e d  by t h e  Board .  On t h e  d a y  o f  h i s  f i r s t  

work i n j u r y  i n  1 9 6 2  an x - r a y  showed some m i n o r  d e g e n e r a t i o n  o f  h i s  

s p i n e ,  t h e n  d e s c r i b e d  by a Board  d o c t o r  as " n o t h i n g  v e r y  remarkable 

a b o u t  t h i s  i n  a man 39 y e a r s  of a g e " .  H e  had n o t  had a n y  p r e v i o u s  

back p r o b l e m s  o r  t r e a t m e n t .  By 1 9 6 6  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  spec ia l i s t  r e p o r t e d  

t o  t h e  B o a r d  t h a t  Mr. C h a t r e r  was i n c r e a s i n g l y  i n c a p a c i t a t e d  as  a 

resu l t  of  a c h a n g e  i n  t h e  s t r u c t u r a l  a n a t o m y  o f  h i s  d i s c s  w h i c h  d a t e d  

back t o  t h e  1 9 6 2  i n j u r y .  The s p e c i a l i s t  s t a t e d  t h a t  Mr. C h a t r e r  would  

u l t i m a t e l y  requi re  t h e  r e m o v a l  o f  h i s  lumbo s a c r a l  d i s c  a n d  a s p i n a l  

f u s i o n .  By t h i s  d a t e ,  Mr. C h a t r e r  had  s u f f e r e d  f i v e  work i n j u r i e s  t o  

h i s  lower back. He u n d e r w e n t  a s p i n a l  f u s i o n  i n  1967.  The Board  

d e n i e d  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h e  f u s i o n  c l a i m i n g  t h a t  i t  d i d  n o t  r e s u l t  

f r o m  h i s  1 9 6 2  a n d  s u b s e q u e n t  i n j u r i e s .  

I i n i t i a l l y  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  t h e  B o a r d ' s  r e f u s a l  t o  accept 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  f u s i o n  was u n j u s t  as it f a i l e d  t o  

c o n s i d e r  a r e l e v a n t  f a c t o r .  The Board  r e l i e d  m a i n l y  o n  t h e  x - r a y  

e v i d e n c e  o f  d e g e n e r a t i v e  d i s c  d isease p r i o r  t o  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  1 9 6 2  work 

i n j u r y .  I t  f a i l e d  t o  c o n s i d e r  w h e t h e r  t h e  1 9 6 2  a c c i d e n t  o r  s u b s e q u e n t  

a c c i d e n t s  had p e r m a n e n t l y  a g g r a v a t e d  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  c o n d i t i o n .  I 

recommended t h a t  t h e  B o a r d  c o n s i d e r  w h e t h e r  Mr. Cha t r e r ' s  1 9 6 2  i n j u r y  

o r  s u b s e q u e n t  i n j u r i e s  p e r m a n e n t l y  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  p r e - e x i s t i n g  

c o n d i t i o n ,  t h u s  c o n t r i b u t i n g  t o  t h e  n e e d  fo r  a s p i n a l  f u s i o n  i n  1967.  

I a l s o  recommended t h a t  Mr. C h a t r e r  b e  a s s e s s e d  f o r  a d i s a b i l i t y  award 

i f  a g g r a v a t i o n  e x i s t e d .  
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Commissioners' Reply: Further Investigation 

The Commissioners had Mr. Chatrer's file reviewed by the Board's 

orthopedic consultant and then concluded that there were insufficient 

grounds to reconsider the previous Board's decision (that the spinal 

fusion was not the result of Mr. Chatrer's 1962 or subsequent 

injuries). 

My office then contacted the orthopedic surgeon who had treated 

Mr. Chatrer in the 1960's and 1970's, as well as the orthopedic 

surgeon who performed the fusion in 1967. The latter believed that 

the degeneration was aggravated by Mr. Chatrer's work accidents. The 

former orthopedic surgeon, who had already given the opinion that 

Mr. Chatrer's structural change at the lumbo sacral level dated back 

to his 1962 work injury, did not change his opinion even after 

reviewing the report of the Board's orthopedic consultant. In 

addition, Mr. Chatrer's family physician gave the opinion that 

Mr. Chatrer's back injuries could have had a cumulative efEect 

resulting in the advancement of his degenerative disc disease. 

Final Report and Recommendation 

In my opinion the preponderence of the medical evidence supports the 

conclusion that Mr. Chatrer's work accidents permanently aggravated 

his pre-existing degenerative condition and contributed to the 

necessity of a spinal fusion. I recommended that the Board assess 

Mr. Chatrer for a disability award to compensate him for any 

disability resulting from the spinal fusion of 1967, reimburse him €or 

his medical expenses associated with the spinal fusion and pay any 

wage loss benefits due to him as a result of the fusion. 
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Commissioners' Reply 

I n  response,  t h e  Commissioners claimed t h e y  had r e c t i f i e d  any f a u l t  

t h a t  might have ex i s t ed  i n  t h e  p r i o r  Board dec is ion  by obta in ing  a 

r epor t  Erom t h e i r  or thopedic  consu l t an t .  The Commissioners s t a t e d  

t h a t  t h e  opinion of t h e  Board's or thopedic  consu l t an t  was a reasonable  

one which was supported by t h e  a v a i l a b l e  evidence. 

Comment on the Commissioners' Reply 

Whether the  Board d o c t o r ' s  opinion was a reasonable one o r  no t ,  he is 

the  only doctor  who has given s u c h  an opinion. Three  o ther  medical 

opinions a r e  t o  t h e  contrary.  Their opinions a r e  a l s o  reasonable.  

The  Board has not proper ly  addressed my conclusion t h a t  t h e  

preponderance of t h e  medical evidence is  i n  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  favour.  

Shor t ly  before  t h e  Board r e j ec t ed  my recommendation, my s t a f f  

suggested t h a t  t h e  Board a t  l e a s t  r e f e r  t h e  medical ques t ion  a t  issue 

i n  Mr. Cha t r e r ' s  case  t o  a Medical Review Panel. The Board a l s o  

refused t h i s  poss ib l e  r e so lu t ion  a s  not acceptab le .  

Report to the Cabinet and Meeting with the Chairman 

of the Workers' Compensation Board 

On April  3 ,  1985 I submitted a r epor t  w i t h  respec t  t o  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  

case t o  t h e  Cabinet. Subsequently, I met w i t h  Mr. F lesher ,  Chairman 

of t h e  Workers' Compensation Board, t o  personal ly  d i scuss  my f ind ings  

and recommendation. Although t h e  w e i g h t  of t he  medical evidence 

suppor ts  Mr. Chatrer ,  Mr. F l e s h e r  s t a t e d  he was r e l u c t a n t  t o  go 

a g a i n s t  t h e  opinion of the  Board 's  Orthopedic Consul tant ,  whom t h e  

Board highly r e spec t s .  Ins tead ,  Mr. Flesher suggested t h a t  t he  Board 

r e f e r  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  case  t o  a Medical Review Panel o r  ob ta in  ye t  
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another opinion from an outside s p e c i a l i s t .  I do not believe t h a t ,  

a f t e r  denial  of a pension from the Board over the 1 8  years s ince h i s  

fusion, and having t h e  preponderance of the medical evidence i n  h i s  

favour, Mr. Chatrer should be fur ther  delayed i n  receiving the 

benef i t s  t o  which he is e n t i t l e d .  Although my s t a f f  suggested the 

p o s s i b i l i t y  of a Medical Review Panel t o  the Board when i t  was c lear  

t h a t  my or ig ina l  recommendation would be rejected,  t h a t  suggestion was 

made i n  January 1985 and was a l so  rejected by the Board. Almost 

5 months have passed s ince then, and now Mr. Flesher has suggested a 

iqedical R e v i e w  Panel or an opinion from an outside s p e c i a l i s t .  I t  

seems these suggestions have been made because of t h e  Board's 

reluctance t o  go against  the opinion of one Board doctor, 

notwithstanding the medical opinions t o  t h e  contrary. The Board has 

now s e t  up an appointment f o r  Mr. Chatrer t o  be examined by an outside 

orthopedic s p e c i a l i s t  i n  order t o  obtain ye t  another opinion. T h i s  

fu r ther  s tep  is not warranted i n  view of the evidence c lear ly  

supporting Mr. Chatrer 's  claim. Mr. Flesher has not explained why i t  

i s  necessary t o  obtain yet another medical opinion rather  than accept 

my recommendation. I n  my opinion, the f a c t  t h a t  t h i s  s t e p  is being 

taken only demonstrates t h a t  the Board's refusal  t o  accept my 

recommendation is unreasonable. 

Aftermath 

A t  the time of h i s  1 9 6 2  work accident,  Mr. Chatrer was a d iese l  

mechanic, a trade he had worked a t  for  a number of years. After h i s  

fusion operation i n  1967,  Mr. Chatrer could no longer perform the 

heavy aspects of h i s  job and so  was l a i d  off i n  1968. For the next 

1 3  years,  he worked for  another company, s t a r t i n g  as  a c lerk and 

eventually progressing t o  be a supervisor.  However, he s t a t e s  t h a t  

even the highest wages he earned a t  t h i s  company were l e s s  than what 

he could have earned as  a d iese l  mechanic. A few years ago, a t  the 
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age of 59, he lost his job because of economic cut-backs and has not 

been able to obtain work to date. Since that time, he has been living 

off his retirement savings, a small pension from his past employer, 

and recently a Federal government disability pension. 

Recommendation 

That the Board assess Mr. Chatrer for a disability award to compensate 

him for any disability resulting from the spinal fusion of 1967, 

reimburse him for his medical expenses associated with the spinal 

fusion and pay any wage loss benefits due to him as a result of the 

fusion. 

Anticipated Impact 

Payment of retroactive disability award, wage loss benefits and any 

medical expenses. 
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APPENDIX A 

Summary of Recommendations 

Case No. 1 - Mr. Peter Cheveldave 

That the Board accept Mr. Cheveldave's claim. 

Case No. 2 - Mr. Perry Swistak 

That the Board compensate Mr. Swistak f o r  the time loss  he incurred 

as  a resu l t  of h i s  r igh t  inguinal hernia. 

Case No. 3 - Mr. Craig McCargar 

That the Board accept Mr. McCargar's 1980 claim as an aggravation of 

h i s  pre-existing condition resul t ing from h i s  1979 accident.  

Case No. 4 - Mr. Terrence Forrest  

That the Board re-open Mr. For res t ' s  1970  claim e f f e c t i v e  October 1, 

1971 and assess  him for  a d i s a b i l i t y  award. 

Case No. 5 - Mr. Wilhelmus Chatrer 

1. That the Board assess  Mr. Chatrer for a d i s a b i l i t y  award t o  

compensate him for  any d i s a b i l i t y  as  a resu l t  of a spinal  fusion 

i n  1967.  
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2 .  T h a t  t h e  Board r e i m b u r s e  Mr. Chatrer  f o r  h i s  medical e x p e n s e s  

a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  h i s  s p i n a l  f u s i o n ,  and pay a wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s  

due him as  a r e s u l t  o f  t h e  f u s i o n .  
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F i l e :  83-51438 

February 17, 1984 

tlr . W .  F lesher  , 
Cha irman, 
Workers' Compensation Board, 
6951 Wes tmins t er H lghwa y , 
Richmond, B .C . 
V7C 1C6 

Dear Mr. Flesher:  

R e :  ComDlaint of M r .  Peter Cheveldabe. Claim dNC80203315 

I am nearing complet ion of my i n v e s t i g a t i o n  of t h i s  c o a p l a i n t .  
Pursuant t o  s e c t i o n  16 of t h e  Ombudscan A c t ,  I e n c l o s e  my 
preliminary report  vhich sets out the  grounds upon which I may 
make a recommendation. 

I would apprec ia te  your comments. 

Yours s i n c e r e l y ,  

Karl A. Friedmann 
Ombudsman 

Encl .  (1) 



PRELIMINASY REPORT 

p u r s u a n t  t o  Sec t ion  16 of t h e  Ombudsman k t  

Opportuni ty  t o  make r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  

16. Where i t  appears  t o  t h e  Ombudsman t h a t  t h e r e  may be 
s u f f i c i e n t  grounds f o r  making a r e p o r t  or recommendation 
under this Act t h a t  may adve r se ly  a f f e c t  an a u t h o r i t y  o r  
person,  t h e  Ombudsman s h a l l  inform t h e  a u t h o r i t y  or person 
of t h e  grounds and s h a l l  g i v e  t h e  a u t h o r i t y  or person the  
oppor tun i ty  t o  make r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s ,  e i t h e r  o r a l l y  or i n  
w r i t i n g  a t  t h e  d i s c r e t i o n  of t h e  Ombudsman, before  he 
dec ides  t h e  matter. 

- Ombudsman Act, R.S.B.C. 1979, c ,  306 

Complainant: Mr. Peter Cheveldabe, C l a i m  #NC80203315 

Author i ty :  Workers' Compensation Board 

Ba ckrr round : 

On May 18, 1979 Mr. Cheveldabe had a non-compensable r e p a i r  of a 
r i g h t  i n g u i n a l  hern ia .  I n  October 1980 Mr. Cheveldabe was working 
a t  Korpack Cement Block P l a n t  as a General Maintenance Worker. On 
October 20, 1980 Mr. Cheveldabe and h i s  foreman were car ry ing  a 60 
l b  r o l l  of p l a s t i c .  While maneuvering around some obs t ac l e s  he 
f e l t  pa in  i n  h i s  g r o i n  area which caused him t o  s t o p  and rest. 
T h i s  pa in  was u l t i m a t e l y  diagnosed by D r .  0 a6 a r i g h t  
i n g u i n a l  he rn ia .  

EmDloYer Involvement: 

Mr. Cheveldabe's employer d i spu ted  t h e  claim on t h e  Form 7, dated 
October 27, 1980. I have therefore con tac t ed  t h e  employer 
concerning my p o s s i b l e  recommendation. 

L a s t  Decis ion Level: 

On May 21, 1982 t h e  Commissioners denied t h e  a p p e a l  of Hr. 
Cheveldabe. Thei r  reasons  were as  fol lows:  

1. Hernia 's  commonly r ecu r  w i t h i n  18 months and as the  o r i g i n a l  
he rn ia  was non-cornpensable then SO w a s  the  recurrence.  
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2 .  The foreman d i d  n o t  r e c a l l  any  c o m p l a i n t  by Mr. C h e v e l d a b e .  
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3. The compla in t  was n o t  r e c e i v e d  u n t i l  t h e  end of t h e  s h i f t .  

( I  n o t e  In p a s s i n g  t h a t  t h e  Commissioners  made a m i s t a k e  of 
f a c t  by d e s c r i b i n g  t h e  i n j u r y  a s  b i - l a t e r a l  when i n  f a c t  i t  
w a s  a r i g h t  h e r n i a .  As t h i s  i s  n o t  d e t e r m i n a t i v e  of t h e  
m a t t e r  I d o  n o t  base  my recommendat ions on t h i s . )  

Conp 1 a i n  t : 

M r .  Cheveldabe s t a t e s  t h a t  h i s  1 9 8 0  r i g h t  I n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  was a 
r e s u l t  of a work related a c t i v i t y  b u t  t h e  Board r e f u s e s  t o  a c c e p t  
a n y  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  It .  

Issues: 

1. Did t h e  Board ac t  u n j u s t l y  by making a d e c i s i o n  based  on  
i n s u f f i c i e n t  e v i d e n c e  w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  c o n f l i c t  between M r ,  
C h e v e l d a b e ' s  a c c o u n t  of t h e  i n j u r y  and  t h e  a c c o u n t  of t h e  
emp 1 oye r ? 

2.  Did t h e  Board a c t  u n j u s t l y  i n  denying  N r .  C h e v e l d a b e ' s  c l a i m  
on  t h e  b a s i s  of t h e  B o a r d ' s  p o l i c y  r e g a r d i n g  r e c u r r i n g  h e r n i a s ?  

Grounds for Adverse F i n d i n g :  

I may f i n d  M r .  C h e v e l d a b e ' s  cornpla in t  s u b s t a n t i a t e d  on t h e  
f o l l o w i n g  g r o u n d s :  

D i d  t h e ' B o a r d  act  u n j u s t l y  by making a d e c i s i o n  based on  
i n s u f f i c i e n t  e v i d e n c e  w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  the c o n f l i c t  between M r .  
Cheveldabe ' s  a c c o u n t  of t h e  i n j u r y  and the a c c o u n t  of t h e  employer? 

1. What is t h e  e v i d e n c e  r e l a t i n g  t o  the o c c u r r e n c e  of M r .  
C h e v e l d a b e ' s  hernia o n  October 20, 1980? I n  a supplement  t o  
his Form 6 Hr. Cheveldabe d e s c r i b e d  I n  d e t a i l  a n d  w i t h  a 
diagram t h e  a c c o u n t  of h i s  i n j u r y .  H e  was a t  the rear o f  a 60 
l b  r o l l  o f  p l a s t i c ,  and  h i s  foreman,  Hr.  I-, was a t  
t h e  f r o n t  a s  t h e y  manoeuvered a round some p i l e s  of branches.  
The r e p o r t  states, " A s  I was a t  the rear of t h e  l o a d  and t h e  
man i n  f r o n t  w a s  making f a s t  and sudden movements o r  
manoeuvers I had t o  a b s o r b  s e v e r a l  sudden  Jars". He n o t i c e d  a 
sudden  p a i n  and  immedia te ly  p u t  h i s  end of  t h e  l o a d  onto a 
p i l e  of b r a n c h e s .  "Mr. I was w e l l  aware  of  my 
s h a r p  and  sudden  pa in" ,  a c c o r d i n g  t o  Hr. Cheveldahe. A f t e r  
p a u s i n g  f o r  a few s e c o n d s  Mr. Cheveldabe and h i s  foreman 
completed t h e  moving of t h e  p l a s t i c  r o l l ,  A p p a r e n t l y  t h e r e  
was some r u s h  f o r  t h i s  work a s  Mr. Cheveldabe ' s  foreman had 
l e f t  h i s  f o r k l i f t  r u n n i n g  and was r e l u c t a n t  t o  t a k e  t h e  time 
t o  h e l p  Mr. Cheveldabe.  
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2.  The incident in question occurred a t  9.15 a.m. and Mr. 
Cheveldabe reported to his employer at 3 . 3 0  p.m. the same 
day. He reported on his Form 6 that he was able t o  work until 
lunch when he realized that "the injury was more than just a 
short sharp pain". At noon he went to Rossland hospital and 
arranged to see D r .  -at 4 . 3 0  p.m. 

3.  On October 20, 1980 Dr.- completed a Physician's First 
Report with a diagnosis of "recurrent R .  IH" as a result of 
"lifting heavy r o l l  of plastic". 

4. On October 27,  1980 the Manager of Korpac, Mr, -, 
stated on the Form 7: "...Mr. f-I states that Hr. 
Cheveldabe did not inform him at the time of any injury. Hr. 
Cheveldabe demonstrated to me at 3.30 the type of activity 
that a person with his injury (a hernia) could not do, and he 
was able to do these acts as denonstrated." 

5 .  In memo #1 the C l a i m s  Adjudicator reported that the employer 
had phoned "to express his concern about the claim". 
employer had "interviewed the foreman, Mr. 4-1, who 
was working with M r .  Cheveldabe carrying the plastic and there 
was no report of injury while the claimant was carrying the 
plastic." 

The 

6. On October 29,  1980 the Claims Adjudicator wrote to Mr. 
Cheveldabe rejecting his claim for compensation. One of the 
reasons was that there was "no information that would indicate 
that there was any severe direct trauma or marked increased 
interabdominal pressure which could account 'for the 
recurrence. 

7. In an undated response to the Claims Adjudicator's decision 
letter Mr. Cheveldabe stated that his work at Korpac was 
completed shortly after h i s  accident. 
t o  his employer (i.e. to Mr. - and his wife. - is the partner of -.) early in the 
afternoon of October 20, and explained he would only be able 
t o  work slowly. 

He reported his injury 

8, On November 28, 1980 Dr. - completed an Attending 
Physician's Statement and reported "yes" to question 2: "Is 
condition due to injury or sickness arising out of patients 
employment?" 

' 

9. In a letter t o  my office, dated December 7, 1983, Dr,- 
stated: "There is certainly a very clear history of having 
exerted a considerable force in the groin area while a t  
work.. .** 
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Conr lus jons  on Issue I j l  

1. 

2 .  

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6. 

7. 

a. 

Decis ion  316 s t a t e s  t h a t  " l i f t i n g  and s t r a i n i n g  a re  common 
causes"  of inc reased  intra-abdominal  p r e s s u r e ,  and "most o f t e n  
t h e r e  i s  no urgency about  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  and seldom i s  t h e r e  
need t o  s t o p  work whi le  a w a i t i n g  su rge ry" .  (pages  43-44). 

I n  a r e p o r t  p repared  for t h e  Workers' Compensation Board, 
b lorb id i ty  a n d  A u d i t  Study of Hernia  C l a f m s ,  d a t e d  March 6 ,  
1977,  C.N. Robertson,  H.D., i t  is s t a t e d  t h a t  " longes t  mean 
time l o s t  is a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  i n c i d e n t s  d e s c r i b i n g  p u l l i n g ,  
pushing ,  a t w i s t - l i f t ,  and t h e  stresses of overcoming a f a l l  
w h i l e  under  stress." (page 1 2 )  

S e c t i o n  53 of t h e  Workers Compensation Act r e q u i r e s  t h a t  a 
worker n o t i f y  "as soon as  p r a c t i c a b l e "  a n  a p p r o p r i a t e  
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  of t h e  employer u n l e s s  i t  can be shown t h a t  t h e  
employer knew of t h e  i n j u r y  wi thou t  being t o l d .  

The work a c t i v i t y  as r e p o r t e d  by M r .  Cheveldabe is capable  of 
c a u s i n g  a h e r n i a .  

As d e s c r i b e d  i n  d e c i s i o n  8316 t h e r e  i s  reason  t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  
Mr. Cheveldabe would have been a b l e  t o  demonst ra te  t h e  work 
a c t i v i t y  t h a t  brought about  his i n j u r y  t o  h i s  employer without 
major d i scomfor t  or a g g r a v a t i o n .  Mr. - ' s  s t a t emen t  t h a t  
Mr. Cheveldabe could  perform t h i s  t y p e  of a c t i v i t y  i s  
t h e r e f o r e  n o t  conc lus ive  ev idence  t h a t  t h e r e  was no i n j u r y .  

While M r .  Cheveldabe 's  account  does n o t  s t a t e  t h a t  he made a 
v e r b a l  s t a t e m e n t  of h i s  p a i n  when c a r r y i n g  t h e  p l a s t i c  r o l l  he 
does  i n d i c a t e  t ha t  he had t o  set  down t h e  load  and Mr. 
-was aware of h i s  pa in .  Th i s  is  n o t  i n c o n s i s t e n t  
w i t h  t h e  employer 's  r e p o r t  t h a t  Mr. Cheveldabe d i d  not  inform 
M r .  1-1 a t  t h e  t i m e .  

- 

M r .  Cheveldabe n o t i f i e d  h i s  employer "as soon as p rac t i cab le"  
a t  3.30 p.m. T h i s  w a s  because M r .  w a s  a t  another  
j o b  du r ing  t h e  a f t e r n o o n  and,  acco rd ing  t o  Hr. Cheveldabe, Mr. - was a working foreman so t h a t  he  was d r i v i n g  a t ruck  
or o p e r a t i n g  t h e  ba t ch  p l a n t .  

The e v i d e n t i a r y  basis of t h e  f ind ings '  t h a t  Hr. Cheveldabe d i d  
n o t  r e p o r t  t h e  a c c i d e n t  i n  time is  Mr. m ' s  
i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  of what Mr. t o l d  him. Moreover, 
Mr. U ' s  evidence  does  n o t  answer the  a s s e r t i o n  t h a t  Hr. 
1- was aware of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Ilr. Cheveldabe 
s u f f e r e d  a pa in .  There is  no ev idence  on f i l e  t h a t  t h e  C l a i m s  
Ad jud ica to r  con tac t ed  Mr. - or Mr. 4-1. 
a p p a r e n t l y  accep ted  t h e  account  of t h e  employer without  
f u r t h e r  i n v e s t i g a t i o n .  

He 



I 

Page 5 

9. 1 may therefore conclude that the Board  acted unjustly by 
making a declsion hased on insufficient evidence with regard 
to the conflict between Mr. Cheveldabe's account of the injury 
and the account of the employer. 

Did 
the 

1. 

2 .  

3. 

4. 

5 .  

6. 

the Board act unjustly in denying Mr. Cheveldabe's claim on 
basis of the Board's policy regarding recurring hernias? 

Decision 8316 states, "If the hernia recurs at the site of 
repair at a prior hernia within 18 months, it will be 
adjudicated as a recurrence of the original hernia. If it 
occurs later than 18 months after the surgery for the original 
hernia, it vill be adjudicated as a new claim." (page 4 5 )  

What is the purpose of this "18 month rule"? In a Board 
report, Worbidity and Audit Study of Hernia Claims, March 6, 
1977 (cited in footnote 1 of Decision #316), Dr. Robertson 
suggests that a definition of recurrent hernias is "required 
as being essential to the proper administration of hernia 
claims." (page 15). The assessment of recurrent hernias are 
discussed as being an administrative issue relating to the 
organization of Board finances. 
first, that treating a recurrence as an automatic reopening 
may create problems where the worker has changed employers and 
the wrong employer is assessed the cost (page 13); second, the 
question of reopening would affect the amount of wage loss: i f  
the hernia is treated as a recurrence, then wage loss would be 
based on the worker's income at the time of the original 
injury, but if the hernia is treated as a new claim, then wage 
loss would be based on the worker's income at the time of the 
new injury (page 19). 

Two problems are identified: 

What is the evidence related to the alleged recurrence of Mr. 
Cheveldabe's hernia? On May 18, 1979 D r .  JI repaired Mr. 
Cheveldabe's right inguinal hernia. This was a 
non-compensable Injury. On October 20 ,  1980 Mr. Cheveldabe 
had another right inguinal hernia. 

In his decision letter of October 29, 1982 the Claims 
Adjudicator stated: "If a hernia recurs within 18 months of 
repair, it is adjudicated as a recurrence of the original 
injury. Since your original hernia was not compensable, 
responsibility for the recurrence cannot be accepted." 

This conclusion was upheld at the boards of review (August 5 ,  
1981) and at the Commissioners (May 21, 1982). 

On November 28,  1980 Dr. - submitted an Attending 
Physician's Statement with a diagnosis of 'recurrent R. 
i ngii ina 1 hernia '* . 
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7.  I n  a letter t o  my officc d a t e d  December 7 ,  1983 D r .  -, 
t h e  a t t e n d i n g  surgeon,  s t a t e s :  "The  h e r n i a  was not a 
r e c u r r e n c e  which j u s t  occu r red  spontaneously but d i d  O C C U Y  

th rough a s t r a i n  t o  t h e  g r o i n  i n  t h e  cour se  of Mr. 
Cheveldabe 's  work. It is medica l ly  q u i t e  p o s s i b l e  t o  have a 
h e r n i a  r e p a i r e d  and then  t o  have i t  subsequen t ly  aggravated by 
a n o t h e r  event  and t h i s  does  not  occur  uncommonly, t he  usual  
r e a s o n  being due t o  e x c e s s i v e  s t r a i n i n g  of t h e  groin caused by 
heavy l i f t i n g .  These r e c u r r e n c e s  may occur  a t  any time 

~ ~~ ~ 

fo l lowing  t h e  r e p a i r  of a h e r n i a  and t o  make a n  a r b i t r a r y  18 
month r u l e  seems t o  be u n f a i r  t o  t h e  workman, The only 
i n s t a n c e  t h a t  I can t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  18 month r u l e  might cover  
would be i n  t h e  case of where a h e r n i a  occurs  wi thou t  a 
s i g n i f i c a n t  history of groin s t r a i n .  I would concur  t h a t  in 
t h a t  case it  might be r e a s o n a b l e  not  t o  compensate t h e  worker 
as t h e r e  would be no ev idence  t h a t  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  occurred  
from any i n c i d e n t  i n  t h e  workplace," (emphasis added) 

Conclus ions  on I s s u e  t 2  

1. 

2 .  

3.  

4. 

5 .  

M r .  Cheveldabe 's  r i g h t  i n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  on October  20, 1980 
occur red  17  months and 2 days  a f t e r  t h e  f i r s t  h e r n i a  r e p a i r  of 
P l y  18, 1979. 

I f  t h e r e  had been no 1979 i n j u r y  t h e  October 20, 1980 i n j u r y  
would be conpensable .  

The  purpose  of D r .  Robe r t son ' s  d i s c u s s i o n  of r e c u r r e n t  he rn ia s  
(Morbi ty  and Audit  Study of Hernia  Claims) a p p e a r s  t o  be t o  
assist  d e c i s i o n s  where t h e  o r i g i n a l  claim is compensable and 
t h e  c h o i c e  i s  between reopening  a n  o l d  c la im o r  opening a new 
claim. The importance of t h i s  cho ice  r e l a t e s  t o  a s s e s s i n g  t h e  
r e l e v a n t  c o s t s  t o  t h e  p rope r  employer. It a l s o  a f f e c t s  t h e  
p r o p e r  amount of wage l o s s .  

The re  Is no i n d i c a t i o n  i n  D r .  Robertson 's  s t u d y  n o r  I n  D r ,  
F a r i s h ' s  Medical  F a c t o r s  In Hernia  C l a i m s ,  Hay 1, 1977, (see 
Foo tno te  1, Decis ion  316) t h a t  t h e r e  is a medica l  
j u s t i f i c a t i o n  for t h e  "18 month ru l e" .  

The consequence of app ly ing  t h i s  " ru l e"  I n  a case such as Mr. 
Cheveldabe 's  is t h a t  a worker cannot  have a cornpensable 
a g g r a v a t i o n  of a non-compensable p re -ex i s t ing  h e r n i a .  I f  the  
h e r n i a  occur red  before  18 months, i t  would be a r ecu r rence  and 
non-compensable. But i f  It occurred  a f t e r  18 months i t  would 
be a new c la im.  Because t h e r e  can on ly  be a new claim f o r  
compensat ion purposes  a g g r a v a t i o n  I s  e f f e c t i v e l y  denied as a 
ground for a claim. 

- 
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6 .  

7 .  

8 .  

9. 

Dr. - is of t h e  op in ion  t h a t  i t  is medica l ly  poss ib l e  t o  
have  a subsequent  a g g r a v a t i o n  t h a t  i s  a r e s u l t  of excess  
s t r a i n i n g  of t h e  g r o i n  caused  by heavy l i f t i n g .  H e  f u r t h e r  
s t a t e s  i n  h i s  l e t t e r  t o  my o f f i c e :  "I  c a n  see n o  medical 
j u s t i f i c a t i o n  a t  a l l  f o r  ho ld ing  t h a t  a hern ia  which r e c u r s  
w i t h i n  18 months of a p r i o r  i n j u r y  i s  a r e c u r r e n c e  whereas t h e  
same i n j u r y  occur r ing  l a t e r  than  18 months a f t e r  t h e  i n j u r y  is 
a new i n j u r y .  
one can show t h a t  t h e r e  h a s  been a n  i n j u r y  occurred  i n  t h e  
work p lace  r e s u l t i n g  i n  t h e  h e r n i a  occur r ing  then  I t h i n k  t h i s  
should be c l a s s e d  a s  a new i n  j u r y  and theref o r e  compensable." 

The t i m e  l i m i t  seems t o t a l l y  a r b i t r a r y  a n d  i f  

T h e r e  is a u t h o r i t y  i n  La r son ' s  that s ta tes  t h a t  where a worker 
s u f f e r s  a h e r n i a  while bending over to u n t i e  h i s  shoes  whi le  
changing his c l o t h e s  before s t a r t i n g  work h e  is e n t i t l e d  t o  
compensation a l though  h e  had two prior h e r n i a  o p e r a t i o n s  i n  
t h e  same place .  
1, Sec.12.10. (emphasis added)  

(La r son ' s  Workmen's Compensation, 1981, Vol. 

I may conclude  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  no  medical  j u s t i f i c a t i o n  for 
ho ld ing  t h a t  a h e r n i a  which occurs  w i t h i n  18 months of a p r io r  
i n j u r y  i s  a r e c u r r e n c e  and is n o t  compensable, whereas if t h e  
same i n j u r y  occur s  l a t e r  than  18 months a f t e r w a r d  i t  i s  a new 
i n j u r y .  The Board 's  p o l i c y  r a t h e r  is  based p r i m a r i l y  on 
a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s .  It  t h e r e f o r e  r e s u l t s  from t h e  
a p p l i c a t i o n  of a wrong govern ing  p r i n c i p l e .  

I may t h e r e f o r e  conclude  t h a t  t h e  Board a c t e d  u n j u s t l y  i n  
denying Mr. Cheveldabe 's  claim on t h e  basis of i t s  pol icy  
r e g a r d i n g  r e c u r r i n g  h e r n i a s .  

Recommendations: 

I have  n o t  reached a f i n a l  conc lus ion  i n  t h i s  ma t t e r ,  However, I 
a m  c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  fo l lowing  recommendations: 

1. T h a t  a proper i n v e s t i g a t i o n  of t h e  i s s u e  whether t h e  i n j u r y  
occurred  in t h e  c o u r s e  of employment be undertaken.  

2. T h a t  t h e  Board r e c o n s i d e r  i ts p o l i c y  wi th  r ega rd  t o  recurrent 
h e r n i a s  and p a r t i c u l a r l y  w i t h  r ega rd  t o  how t h a t  p o l i c y  
a f f e c t s  workers  who have a subsequent  h e r n i a  in t h e  same area 
as  a previous  non-compensable h e r n i a .  

3. I n  l i g h t  of t h a t  r e c o n s i d e r a t i o n ,  If t h e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  
recommended above results i n  a d i f f e r e n t  c o n c l u s i o n ,  t h a t  t h e  
Board r e c o n s i d e r  Nr. Cheveldabe 's  claim as  a n  aggrava t ion  of a 
p r e e x i s t i n g  h e r n i a .  

Karl A. Fricdmann 
Ombudsman 
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p r .  Karl  A .  Fr ied rnann ,  
Ombudsman , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a ,  
# 2 0 2  - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue ,  
V a n c o u v e r ,  B .C .  
V 6 H  1 ~ 6  

Your F i l e :  83-51438 

Dear  S i r s :  

H E  : P e t e r  CHEVELDAVE 
C l a i m  No. NC80203315 

y o u r  l e t t e r  d a t e d  F e b r u a r y  1 7 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  
by t h e  Commi s s i  o n e r s .  

The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  d e c i d e d  t o  c a r r y  o u t  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  
i n  r e s p o n s e  t o  t h e  p o i n t s  you  h a v e  r a i s e d .  You w i l l  b e  c o n t a c t e d  
a g a i n  when t h i s  h a s  been  d o n e .  

S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board 

NCA :md 
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WORKERS' 
COmPENSATlON 
BOARDZ%E 

D r .  Karl  A .  F r i e d m a n n  
Ombudsman 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly  of 

#202 - 1 2 7 5  West 6 t h  Ave. 
V a n c o u v e r ,  B.C. 
V6H 1 A 6  

B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a  

Dear D r .  F r i e d m a n n :  

R e :  Peter  CHEVELDAVE 
C l a i m  N o .  NC80203315 

F u r t h e r  t o  my l e t t e r  of A p r i l  1 0 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  t h e  a d d i t i o n a l  
i n v e s t i g a t i o n  r e q u e s t e d  b y  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a s  been 
c a r r i e d  o u t .  

I e n c l o s e  copies  of D r .  - I s  r e p o r t  of A p r i l  1 8 ,  
1 9 8 4 ,  a n d  the r epor t  of t h e  F i e l d  O f f i c e r ,  l-t, 
d a t e d  J u n e  1 4 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  t oge the r  w i t h  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t s  of t h e  

. i n t e r v i e w s  h e  carr ied o u t .  

I t  appears  t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  y o u r  l e t t e r  i n d i c a t e s  
a l a c k  of proper  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  of t h e  Board ' s  p o l i c y  on 
t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  of h e r n i a s .  They  w o u l d  p o i n t  o u t  t o  b e g i n  
w i t h  t h a t  t h i s  p o l i c y  is  o n e  t h a t  c a n  be a d v a n t a g e o u s  t o  
c l a i m a n t s  s i n c e  i t  does n o t  o n l y  a p p l y  t o  o c c u r r e n c e s  of 
n o n - c o m p e n s a b l e  h e r n i a  o c c u r r i n g  a t  w o r k ,  b u t  a l s o  t o  
r e c u r r e n c e s  of c o m p e n s a b l e  h e r n i a s  o c c u r r i n g  o u t  of work .  
The s e c o n d  p o i n t  t h a t  h a s  t o  be made is  t h a t  t h e  p o l i c y  
does n o t ,  a s  y o u  appear t o  s u g g e s t ,  mean t h a t  a new i n j u r y  
w h i c h  c a u s e s  a r e c u r r e n c e  w i t h i n  t h e  1 8  m o n t h s  p e r i o d  i s  
i g n o r e d .  If t h e  B o a r d  is s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  
w a s  c a u s e d  b y  a new i n j u r y  a n d  t h a t  new i n j u r y  o c c u r s  a t  
w o r k ,  c o m p e n s a t i o n  w i l l  be pa id .  On t h e  o t h e r  h a n d ,  i f  t h e  
new i n j u r y  w h i c h  p r o d u c e s  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  o c c u r s  o u t s i d e  
of w o r k ,  n o  c o m p e n s a t i o n  i s  p a y a b l e .  

. . . / 2  
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Re: Claim No. NC80203315 2 8  September 1984 

Turning now to the facts of Mr. Cheveldave's claim, the 
Commissioners consider that the Board's existing decision 
is a proper one. Not only did the recurrence of the hernia 
occur within 18 months of the previous surgery, but there 
is a lack of evidence to support Mr. Cheveldave's statements 
that a new injury occurred. Mr. - has interviewed 
hr. Cheveldave's foreman and employer at the time of the 
alleged incident, and they appear to confirm the evidence 
given by them at the time. Dr. - does not consider 
it likely that the alleged work incident would have produced 
the hernia. The Commissioners have concluded that the 
Board's decision to deny this claim was a reasonable one for 
which there was supporting evidence and the recent investi- 
gations provide no grounds for reconsidering that decision 
but rather support it. 

In the result, the Commissioners are unable to agree with 
your proposals either with respect to this claim or with 
regard to the Board's policy. 

N.C. ATTEWELL 
Secreiary to the Board 

NCA:hb 
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Legislative Assembly ( OMBUDSMAN 
Province of British Columbia 

( 102, 1275 West Sixth Avenue . 
0 0 0 0 1 2  Vancower 

Brtilsh Columbia 
V6H 1A6 
Telephone (604) 736-8721 

File: 83-51438 
October 9, 1984 

Hr. W. Flesher 
Chairman 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster Highway 
kchmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Dear Mr. Flesher: 

Re: Peter Cheveldabe, Claim No. NC80203315 

I have received Mr. Attewell's letter of September 28, 1984 and I 
have considered the memoranda referred to in that letter. This 
letter is my response to Mr. Attewell's letter and the Board 
memoranda. 

The first memorandum is by Dr. - and relates to the medical 
issue in this case. I had recommended that the Board reconsider its 
policy with regard to compensation of recurrent hernias when the 
first hernia was - non-compensable. 
memo, in my view, is as follows: 

The significant portion of his 

... it must be said that the vast majority of cases of recurrence 
will manifest themselves within three months and certainly six 
months. In fact, in many the recurrence is either apparent or 
there are findings to create some suspicion at the examination 
six to eight weeks postsurgery. 
months was chosen with the hope that this would cover virtually 
all cases. 

...the figure of eighteen 

I would certainly agree that the original intention of Decision 316 
was to give the "benefit of the doubt" to the worker by covering 
"virtually all cases". 

However, the problem raised by Mr. Cheveldabe's situation comes 
about because the original injury was not compensable. My concern 
is that the policy that applies to a recurrence of a compensable 
hernia should not be applied to recurrence of a non-compensable 
hernia. 
hernia is effectively to deny the issue of aggravation. 
recurrence is from a compensable hernia, the figure of eighteen 
months may be a generous period of time.. But where the original 
hernia is non-compensable, then the eighteen month figure works to 
the detriment of the worker. By attempting to cover virtually all 
cases where the origlnal injury was compensable the elghteen month 
figure operates effectively to deny claims where the original hernia 
was non-compensable . 

As my Report concludes, to apply it to a non-compensable 
When the 



Mr. W. Flesher  
0 0 0 0 1 3  

Paee 2 

Dr. - does n o t  a d d r e s s  t h i s  i s s u e  d i r e c t l y  bu t  a t t empt s  tg 
say t h a t  the  p r e c i p i t a t i n g  i n c i d e n t  is more s ign i f i can t . .  H e  u ses  
examples of two extreme s i t u a t i o n s  f o r  t h i s  purpose.  However, a n  
example more t o  t h e  p o i n t  would be one where a pe r son ,  because of an  
undisputed  work- re la ted  a c t i v i t y ,  s u f f e r s  a h e r n i a  i n  the  area of a 
p rev ious  non-compensable h e r n i a  t h a t  occur red  w i t h i n  e igh teen  months 
of t h e  f i r s t  i n j u r y .  The Board 's  p o s i t i o n ,  as I unders tand  t h e  
a p p l i c a t i o n  of Decis ion  316 i n  M r .  Cheveldabe's case, would be t h a t  
t h e  second i n j u r y  w a s  n o t  compensable because i t  was a recur rence  of 
a non-cornpensable h e r n i a .  It is my op in ion ,  suppor t ed  by 
Dr. -, t h a t  t h i s  i s  a r b i t r a r y  and medica l ly  unsound. 

Perhaps  one problem h e r e  is  t h a t  t h e  f a c t s  of t h i s  case do n o t  lend 
themselves  t o  a clear d e f i n i t i o n  of t h e  medical  issue. The i s s u e  of 
v h e t h e r  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  w a s  work-related is, a d m i t t e d l y ,  n o t  
c l e a r - c u t .  But I b e l i e v e  t h a t  th is  should  no t  confuse  t h e  i s s u e  of 
a p p l y i n g  the  "e igh teen  month r u l e "  when t h e  o r i g i n a l  h e r n i a  was 
non-compensable. 

The re fo re  I do n o t  read  a n y t h i n g  i n  Dr. m ' s  medical  opinion 
t h a t  c o n t r a d i c t s  t h e  conc lus ions  of  my p re l imina ry  r e p o r t .  

The second memorandum I have cons idered  is  t h e  one prepared by 
M r .  \I, a F i e l d  I n v e s t i g a t o r .  
p repared  a f t e r  t a k i n g  a S ta tement  Under Oath from two wi tnesses  of 
t h e  e v e n t s  of October  2 7 ,  1980: Mr. 7- and 
Mr. (-1. I have a l s o  cons idered  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t s  of t h e  
s p e c i f i c  i n t e r v i e w s  w i t h  t h e  two wi tnesses .  Nr. -' nwuo by 
i t s e l f  is a m a t t e r  of some concern t o  m e  because I b e l i e v e  he may 
have mis rep resen ted  t h e  ev idence  taken d u r i n g  t h e  i n t e r v i e w s .  
Mr. -, i n  h i s  memo, s ta tes  t h a t  Mr. t-ls 
r e c o l l e c t i o n  was t h a t  " . . . there  w a s  no p i l e  of b rush ,  e t c .  t h a t  they  
had t o  move around or over  when they  were c a r r y i n g  t h e  p l a s t i c " .  I n  
f a c t ,  Mr. \-I recounted  that t h e r e  were s t a c k s  of wooden 
p a l l e t s  about  c h e s t  h igh  t h a t  Mr. 4- and Mr. Cheveldabe 
had t o  n e g o t i a t e  as t h e y  were "winding ( t h e i r )  way through the  
p a l l e t s . "  (page 3, 6,  7 ,  8)  Mr. - a l s o  s ta tes  i n  h i s  memo 
t h a t  Mr. f-f "...seems s i n c e r e  i n  h i s  i n fo rma t ion  and h a s  
a b s o l u t e l y  no th ing  t o  g a i n  by t e l l i n g  any  o t h e r  in format ion ."  
f a c t ,  Mr. -1 s t a t e d ,  wi thout  b e i n g  asked ,  t h a t :  

Mr. -' memo w a s  

In 

...I go t  a bum foot . . . I 'm on coDpensation. ... T mean t h e  
company has  been p r e t t y  good to me, l i k e  sometimes I c a n ' t  even 
make i t  a week a t  work, t a k e  a day o f f  and I get $91.00 
pens ion  ... so I don ' t  want t o  go a g a i n s t  t h e  company. I can ' t  go 
a g a i n s t  t h e  Compensation Board. ... I c a n ' t  go a g a i n s t ,  I don't 
want t o  d i s t u r b  any...any d i s t u r b a n c e  of any k ind .  

My concern wi th  Mr. 0' synops is  of t h e  evidence h e  c o l l e c t e d  
is t h a t  he does n o t  a c c u r a t e l y  r e f l e c t  t h e  evidence t h a t  i s  d e t a i l e d  
i n  t h e  s p e c i f i c  t r a n s c r i p t s .  Th i s  becomes c r i t i c a l  when t h e  
ev idence  r e l a t e s  t o  key m a t t e r s  i n  d i s p u t e ;  namely, t h e  o b s t a c l e s  fn 
t h e  r o u t e  of c a r r y i n g  t h e  plastic and t h e  c r e d i b i l i t y  of a key 
w i  t n e s  s . 
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I be l i eve  the  evidence from Mr. m and Mr, 1- 
i n d i c a t e s  the fol lowing cha in  of events :  

1. While Mr. Cheveldabe may be somewhac e c c e n t r i c ,  h i s  work vas 
above reproach. He was very  c a r e f u l  and u s u a l l y  worked at a 
no t i ceab ly  s lower ra te  than o the r  people.  m, page 3, 8) 

2 .  M r .  Cheveldabe had a h i s t o r y  of h e r n i a  i n j u r y  and Mr. M 
w a s  aware of t h i s  h i s t o r y .  

3. The four  f o o t  roll of p l a s t i c  was "at  l e a s t  about  60 pounds" or 
"at least  80 pounds". (\-, page 1, 7)  
M r .  I-! w a s  incapable  of l i f t i n g  i t  by h imsel f .  It 
w a s  c a r r i e d  by t h e  t w o  men us ing  a 6 f o o t  pipe through t h e  
c e n t r e  of t h e  r o l l  and each man w a s  ca r ry ing  the load  I n  f r o n t  
of him. The whole ope ra t ion  was awkward. 

4. The whole ope ra t ion  was "qu i t e  f a s t l y  done" (-1, 
page 4). Mr. (- apparent ly  had h i s  f o r k l i f t  running 
and wa i t ing  a t  t h e  t i m e .  

5 .  The p l a s t i c ,  weighing about 30 t o  40 pounds per man, had t o  be 
l i f t e d  ches t  h igh  i n  o rde r  t o  ge t  around a p i l e  of p a l l e t s .  
Mr. 1-f has  no r e c o l l e c t i o n  of any p i l e s  of branches 
as s t a t e d  by M r .  Cheveldabe. 

Mr. 4-1 could no t  r e c a l l  i f  Mr. Cheveldabe set  h i s  end 
of t he  load down f o r  a rest. (I-!, page 4) 
Mr. w, i n  h i s  memo, states,  "., .Nor w a s  he  
(Mr. f-1) aware of t he  c la imant  having t o  s i t  down and 
r es t " . 

6.  

7.  When asked whether Mr. Cheveldabe s a i d  anyth ing  about pain or 
be ing  h u r t ,  Mr. 1-U s a i d ,  "NO.") and then  s a i d  *'I 
c a n ' t  recall .  I don ' t  think". (I-, page 4 t o  5 )  

8. M r .  Cheveldabe d id  n o t  r e p o r t  t he  i n j u r y  t o  h i s  employer u n t i l  
3:30 p.m. because Mr. - was not there u n t i l  t h a t  time. 
H r .  Cheveldabe demonstrated the i n j u r y  and type  of  work he could 
not do t o  Mr. -. (r, page 4, 6 )  

9 .  Mr. Cheveldabe contac ted  Mr. I ! ! ]  more than once in 
orde r  t o  say, "...I c a n ' t  work anymore and I ruptured my hernia  
because of t h e  polytene (sic)". M r .  Chgy&tbe a l s o  confronted 
Mr. - t o  a s k  him why he  was changing h i s  s t o r y  *'...when he  
knew tha t . .  .he was in jured . .  . *' 
Mr. Cheveldabe by say ing ,  "What you're asking m e  t o  do i s  change 
my s t o r y  and I'm j u s t  t e l l i n g  you the  way I know it. The rest 
t h a t ' s  up to you and t h e  Board." (I-, page 5 )  

Mr. - responded t o  

-, Page 5 )  

0 0 0 0 1 4  
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There is a conflict between Mr. 1- and Mr. Cheveldsbe's 
recollections a s  to whether they were carrying their load through a 
stack of pallets or through some bundles of branches. This nay be 
due to Mr. 1-3's memory after four years or  to some 
mistake of identification by Mr. Cheveldabe. In any case, there 
were obstacles in the path and the load had to be lifted to chest 
level at least once. This was done quickly and awkwardly. There 
is, therefore, a work activity which could have given rise to the 
injury complained of by Mr. Cheveldabe. 

I believe that the critical non-medical issue in dispute here is: 
Did the activity described cause Mr. Cheveldabe's hernia? 
Mr. Cheveldabe's evidence is that, while moving the plastic, he 
noticed a sudden pain and immediately put his end of the load down. 
He reported on his Form 6 ,  "Hr. A-lwas well aware of my 
sharp and sudden pain." Mr. 4-1's evidence, 4 years 
later, is that he couldn't recall if Mr. Cheveldabe had to set his 
load down. Mr. J a g r e e d  with Mr. Cheveldabe that a 
verbal complaint was not made at the time by Mr. Cheveldabe. 
Mr. Cheveldabe did report the injury to Mr. D at 3:30 p.m. 
The reason for this delay, according to M r .  Cheveldabe and confirmed 
by Mr. -, is that Mr. - was a working foreman and was 
away until that time. 

Some emphasis is put by Mr. - and by Mr. - on the fact 
that Mr. Cheveldabe was able to demonstrate the work activity that 
caused his injury without discomfort or aggravation. As my 
preliminary report states, Decision 316 points out that ". . .seldom 
is there need to stop work while awaiting surgery". I concluded in 
my report that, "Mr. m ' s  statement that Mr. Cheveldabe could 
perform this type of activity is...not conclusive evidence that 
there was no injury". Indeed, the fact that this type of activity 
can be done while awaiting surgery shows that the fact that 
N r .  Cheveldabe could do it is irrelevant. 

' 

I conclude, therefore, that the evidence supports a finding that 
Mr. Cheveldabe's injury was caused by the carrying and lifting of 
the roll of plastic around and over obstacles. 

I am writing this letter pursuant to Section 22 of the Ombudsman 
Act. On the grounds that the Board's denial of Hr. Cheveldabe's 
claim f o r  compensation resulted from the application of a wrong 
governing principle and was therefore unjust, I recommend that 
Mr. Cheveldabe's claim be accepted by the Board. 

Yours sincerely, 

Karl A .  Friedmann 
Ornbud sma n 
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D r .  K a r l  A .  F r iedmann,  
Ombudsman , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of B r i t i s h  Columbia ,  
#202 - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue, 
Vancouver ,  B .C .  
V6H 1A6 

Dear D r .  Fr iedmann:  

RE : P e t e r  CHEVELDAVE 
C l a i m  No. NC80203315 

Your  l e t t e r  of O c t o b e r  9 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  by t h e  
C o m n i s s i o n e r s .  

The f i r s t  p a r t  of y o u r  l e t t e r  d e a l i n g  w i t h  t h e  B o a r d ' s  g e n e r a l  
p o l i c y  on r e c u r r e n t  h e r n i a s  i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  you m i s u n d e r s t o o d  
my l e t t e r  of September  2 8 ,  1984.  You s t i l l  seemed t o  b e  
u n d e r  t h e  i m p r e s s i o n  t h a t  a r e c u r r e n c e  w i t h i n  18 months 
of a non-compensabl e h e r n i a  is n o t  compensable  r e g a r d l e s s  
of  whe the r  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  r e s u l t s  f rom a work i n j u r y .  A s  
w a s  e x p l a i n e d  t o  members of  y o u r  s t a f f  i n  t h e i r  m e e t i n g  
w i t h  Mrs. - on J a n u a r y  24 ,  1 9 8 5 ,  t h e  B o a r d ' s  p o l i c y ,  
i n  f a c t ,  i s  t h a t ,  i f  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  r e s u l t s  f rom a work 
i n j u r y ,  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  i s  compensable  a n d  i t  makes no  d i f f e r e n c e  
whe the r  t h e  o r i g i n a l  h e r n i a  w a s  cornpensable or non-compensable  
o r  whether  i t  o c c u r r e d  more o r  l e s s  t h a n  1 8  nlonths a f t e r  
t h e  o r i g i n a l  h e r n i a .  A t  t h e  m e e t i n g ,  t h e  members of  y o u r  
s t a f f  s u g g e s t e d  t h a t  D e c i s i o n  No. 316 w a s  n o t  c l e a r  on t h i s .  
A c t i o n  i s  b e i n g  t a k e n  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r s  
a r e  aware  of t h e  c o r r e c t  p o l i c y .  

The p r i m a r y  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  i n  t h e  d e n i a l  of M r .  C h e v e l d a v e ' s  
c l a i m  i s  whe the r  t h e  i n c i d e n t  on Octobe r  2 0 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  i n  f a c t ,  
o c c u r r e d  a n d ,  i f  i t  o c c u r r e d ,  w h e t h e r  i t  c o u l d  a n d  d i d  c a u s e  
t h e  r e c u r r e n t  h e r n i a .  The 18 month r u l e  i s  o n l y  i n t r o d u c e d  
a s  a s e c o n d a r y  r eason  t o  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t ,  s i n c e  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  
d i d  o c c u r  w i t h i n  t h a t  p e r i o d ,  i t  c o u l d  r e a s o n a b l y  have o c c u r r e d  
s p o n t a n e o u s l y  w i t h o u t  a new i n c i d e n t .  

c o n t i n u e d . .  . . . / 2  
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HI1 : P e t e r  Chc.vcldave 
C l a i m  Ro. KC80203315 1 5  F e b r u a r y  1985  

W i t h  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  comments made b y  you r e g a r d i n g  t h e  e v i d e n c e  
o b t a i n e d  by Mr. i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  t h e  C o m i s s i o n e r s  
d o  n o t  t h i n k  t h e r e  a r e  a n y  g r o u n d s  f o r  c h a n g i n g  t h e i r  p r e v i o u s  
d e c i s i o n .  You a p p e a r  t o  b e  s u g g e s t i n g  on p a g e  2 of y o u r  
l e t t e r  t h a t  Mr. 4-1 is n o t  a n e u t r a l  w i t n e s s ,  
b u t  t h e n  n e i t h e r  i s  M r .  C h e v e l d a v e .  He o b v i o u s l y  w a n t s  h i s  c l a im 
t o  be a c c e p t e d .  The  e v i d e n c e  a t  t h e  t i m e  of t h e  i n j u r y  i n d i c a t e d  
t h a t  Mr. 1- h a d  no  r e c o l l e c t i o n  of an  i n c i d e n t  
such  Z S  M r .  C h e v e l d a v e  d e s c r i b e d  a n d  t h e  i n t e r v i e w  of him 
by  N r .  - c o n f i r m s  t h a t  e v i d e n c e .  D r .  0 ' s  r e c e n t  
r e p o r t  d o u b t s  w h e t h e r  t h e  work a c t i v i t y  i n  q u e s t  i o n  c o u l d  
h a v e  c a u s e d  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  of t h e  h e r n i a .  I t  seems t o  t h e  
Commiss ione r s  t h a t  t h e  B o a r d ' s  d e c i s i o n  i s  b a s e d  on p r o p e r  
g r o u n d s  a n d  s u p p o r t e d  by t h e  e v i d e n c e .  You c o n c l u d e  t h a t  
t h e  d e n i a l  of  t h e  c l a i m  r e s u l t e d  f r o m  " t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  o f  
a wrong g o v e r n i n g  p r i n c i p l e  a n d  was t h e r e f o r e  u n j u s t " .  However,  t h e  
Commiss ione r s  f e e l  t h a t ,  i n  r e a l i t y ,  t h e r e  i s  n o  p r i n c i p l e  i n v o l v e d  
i n  t h i s  c l a i m .  I t  s i m p l y  i n v o l v e s  a q u e s t i o n  of f a c t  a n d  a w e i g h i n g  
of t h e  o p p o s i n g  e v i d e n c e .  The  Commiss ione r s  c a n  s e e  n o  r e a s o n  why 
y o u r  judgment a s  t o  t h e  w e i g h i n g  of t h a t  e v i d e n c e  s h o u l d  b e  
p r e f e r r e d  t o  t h e i r s .  

In t h e  r e s u l t ,  t h e  Commiss ione r s  h a v e  d e c i d e d  t o  r e j e c t  
y o u r  recorrPrendat i o n .  Nr. C h e v e l d a v e ' s  c l a i m  w i l l  remain 
d i sa  11 owed. 

N .  C .  ATTEWELL 
S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board 

NCA : md 
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Telephone: (604) 736-8721 

File: 82-6853 

March 1, 1984 

Mr. W. Flesher 
Chairman 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Westmins ter Highway 
Richmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Dear Mr, Flesher: 

Re: ComDlaint of Perry Swistak. Claim No. XC80007097 

I am nearing completion of my investigation of this complaint. 
Pursuant to section 16 of the Ombudsman Act, I enclose my 
preliminary report which sets out the grounds upon which I may 
make a recommendation. 

I would appreciate your comments. 

Yours sincerely, 

,' Karl A. Friedmann. 
Ombudsman / 
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pursuant to Section 16 of the Ombudsman A c t  

Opportunity to make representations 

16. Where it appears t o  the Ombudsman that there may be 
sufficient grounds for making a report or recommendation 
under this Act that may adversely affect an authority or 
person, the Ombudsman shall inform the authority or person 
of the grounds and shall give the authority or person the 
opportunity to make representations, either orally or in 
writing at the discretion of the Ombudsman, before he 
decides the matter. 

- Ombudsman Act, R.S.B.C. 1979, c. 306 

Complainant: Perry Swistak 

Au tho r i t y : Workers' Compensation Board 

Background: 

Mr. Swistak is  a young man who used to work as a labourer for 
MacMillan Bloedel. 
his left side while he was pulling lumber off the green chain, and 
a left inguinal hernia was diagnosed and surgically repaired. The 
injury was compensable and Mr. Swistak returned to work in 
November of 1979. 

On January 23, 1980, Mr. Swistak saw Dr. [N] , his family 
physician, for a routine physical An undated letter from 
Dr. [KJ , an associate of D r .  cfij 's, states that the visit was 
primarily because of migraine headaches, but that a weakness of 
W .  Swistak's right groin was also noted at that time. 

In September of 1979 he experienced pain in 

Two days later, on January 25th. Mr. Swistak returned to his 
physician's office because a small but definite lump had developed 
on his right side. 
right inguinal hernia. 
performed the 1979 surgery, and a right inguinal herniorrhaphp was 
performed on February 18, 1980. 

He saw Dr .  [KJ who immediately suspected a 
A referral was made t o  D r .  LO3 , who had 
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On February 25,  1980, Mr. Swis tak ' s  c la im for compensation was 
r e j e c t e d  by h i s  a d j u d i c a t o r  a t  t h e  Workers' Compensation Board. 
The reason  given f o r  the  d isa l lowance  w a s  t h a t  although t h e  i n j u r y  
w a s  r epor t ed  t o  t h e  employers on January  25th ,  the  same day t h a t  
D r .  fv] suspec ted  the  h e r n i a ,  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  form f i l l e d  ou t  a t  
t h a t  t i m e  by t h e  doc tor  had g iven  January  10 th  as t h e  d a t e  of the 
i n j u r y .  
r e p o r t i n g  de lay  meant t h a t  he was unable t o  r e l a t e  t h e  r i g h t  
i n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  to  a work i n j u r y .  

I n  t h e  opinion of t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r ,  t h i s  a p p a r e n t  15  day 

On January  8 ,  1081, t h e  boards of  review denied Mr. Swistak's 
a p p e a l  on t h i s  i s s u e  of d e l a y ,  a s  d i d  t h e  Commissioners on August 
18, 1981. I m p l i c i t  i n  t h e i r  d e n i a l s  is t h e  opinion t h a t ,  
r e g a r d l e s s  of  t h e  de l ay  i s s u e ,  no h e r n i a  could be cornpensable 
u n l e s s  d i r e c t l y  r e l a t e d  t o  a s p e c i f i c  work i n c i d e n t .  Although 
- Dr. Lo) 
r e l a t i o n s h i p  i n  h i s  November 10, 1981 l e t t e r  t o  the  Medical Review 
P a n e l s ,  Mr, Swistak's a t t empt  to appea l  t h e  i s s u e  t o  a Medical 
R e v i e w  Panel  w a s  r e j e c t e d  by t h e  boards of review on August 27,  
1982, on t h e  grounds t h a t  no medical d e c i s i o n  w a s  be ing  disputed 
i n  h i s  c l a i m .  I have t o  assume, then ,  t h a t  t h e  only  i s s u e  i s  
whether o r  n o t  a r e p o r t i n g  de lay  occurred. 

d i s a g r e e s  with t h i s  l i m i t a t i o n  t o  the  causal 

Decis ion  6316 of t h e  Workers Compensation Reporter series o u t l i n e s  
g u i d e l i n e s  f o r  t h e  a d j u d i c a t i o n  of h e r n i a  claims. 
h e r n i a e  are c o n g e n i t a l ,  or  " i n d i r e c t " ,  r e l a t e d  t o  incomplete 
c l o s u r e  of. the i n g u i n a l  cana l  du r ing  l a t e  f e t a l  development, 
Unlike most men s u f f e r i n g  from h e r n i a e ,  Mr. Swistak was young, 
s t r o n g  and h e a l t h y ,  so i t  w a s  expected t h a t  both h i s  h e r n i a e  would 
have been i n d i r e c t ,  bu t  e x p l o r a t i o n  du r ing  surgery  demonstrated 
t h a t  bo th  were, i n  fac t ,  t h e  less common "d i r ec t "  h e r n i a e ,  r e l a t e d  
to a n o t i c e a b l e  weakness of t h e  abdominal w a l l ,  which could be 
e i t h e r  c o n g e n i t a l  or acqui red .  
h i s  h e r n i a e  would have followed i n c r e a s e s  i n  intra-abdominal 
prcesure from a c t i v i t i e s  such as l i f t i n g  or s t r a i n i n g .  

. 
Host i ngu ina l  

The medical presumption i s  t h a t  

C o m d a i n t  : 

Mr. Swistak feels t h a t  his r i g h t  i n g u i n a l  he rn ia  w a s  caused by h i s  
employment a t  t h e  m i l l  whi le  performing t h e  same t a s k s  t h a t  had 
caused his l e f t  i n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  a few months e a r l i e r .  
c o n s i s t e n t l y  descr ibed  h i s  r i g h t  i ngu ina l  hernia as appear ing  t o  
have developed more g radua l ly  than  d i d  t h e  one on the  l e f t ,  which 
had seemed t o  occur without forewarning a f t e r  a s i n g l e  
p r e c i p i t a t i n g  i n c i d e n t ,  but he  concedes t h a t  the  f i r s t  i n j u r y  
probably made him more consc ious ly  a l e r t  for  any s i g n s  of a 
r ecu r rence  of t h e  problem. 
t h a t  while t h e r e  w a s  discomfort  and  a n  a r e a  of weakness, bu t  no 
h e r n i a  on t h e  r i g h t  s i d e  on January 23rd,  a hern ia  - was t h e r e  on 
Janua ry  25th. 

He has  

Nonetheless,  he and h i s  doc to r s  agree 
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The apparent 15 day delay has been explained to the Board as a 
minor recording error on the part of Dr. CK], and Mr. Swistak 
does not understand why this slight error should invalidate his 
hernia as a work-related injury. He wonders if the 
misunderstanding has been perpetuated because of his lack of skill 
as an advocate on his own behalf. 

Issue Investigated: 

From the evidence available, does it seem reasonable and probable 
that Mr. Swistak's hernia occurred at work on January 24, 1980, as 
he has maintained, or did it occur on January 10, 1980, as noted 
by Dr.[KJ on the form that he filled out on January 25, 1980. 

Findinns : 

On January 24, 1980, M r .  Swistak finished work on the late shift 
and arrived home after midnight, which was actually early in the 
morning of January 25th. He had felt pain on his right side 
during the shift, and, when he arrived home, examined himself and 
found a definite lump. He went to his physician's office that 
same day, and saw Dr. CK] . 
filled out for the Workers' Compensation Board at that time. It 
seems clear, from reading both that form and the "Attending 
Physician's Statement" from February 5 ,  1980, that filling out 
forms was not Dr. CK] 's forte, as several inconsistencies are 
evident on both forms. 
form, as well as question 119 and the bottom of the second form.) 

As Mr. Swistak remembers the examination on the 25th, D r .  [K] 
asked him when he had noticed the hernia and was given the time of 
1:15 a.m. in answer. This referred to the early morning of 
January 25th, when Mr. Swistak arrived home from his late shift. 
At a different point in the examination Mr. Swistak was asked when 
he had first felt that something was wrong. To this he had 
answered that he had noticed something wrong for about two weeks. 
Dr. [K] 
occurrences together in point 81 of the Board's reporting form, 
and to have continued t o  rely upon that date. Later he telescoped 
events even further when he gave January 10th as the date that he 
first treated his patient for the condition (see the Attending 
Physician's statement of February 5, 1980.) 

A "Physician's First Report" was 

(See questions #7 and #8 on the first 

thus appears to have telescoped the two different 

But we have more than obvious reporting errors and Mr. Swistak's 
retrospective reconstruction of the examination t o  rely on. 
February lst, long before any controversy erupted over the 
apparent reporting delay, Mr. Swistak saw the specialist, 
Dr. LO3 , who summarized the medical history i n  a letter to 
Dr. [K]: 

On 
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On January 10th of this year he f i r s t  experienced some 
discomfort in the (R) inguinal region. By January 24th the 
discomfort became worse and a lump was apparent and he sought 
your advice. 

This sequence of events seemed entirely reasonable to Dr. LO] , 
and, in a letter he addressed t o  the Medical Review Panel, dated 
November 10, 1981, he commented further; 

While one cannot be categoric about the time of injury and the 
appearance of a lump there is no question in my mind that 
there may be a significant period of time elapse, particularly 
from when the discomfort is first noted and a lump actually 
appears. 

On his February 25, 1980 memo to file, in which the decision was 
first made t o  refuse the hernia claim, Mr. Swistak's adjudicator 
noted two factors that have to be considered before a hernia can 
be considered compensable, First is the question of whether o r  
not the work activity could cause a significant increase in the 
intra-abdominal pressure. The adjudicator accepted that work on a 
green chain could do this. 

Second is the question of whether o r  not the worker seeks medical 
attention promptly. Acting on the assumption that there had been 
a delay in Mr. Swistak's reporting of the hernia as a work injury, 
the adjudicator decided t o  disallow the claim for that reason. On 
February 27th, Mr. Swistak visited him and attempted t o  clarify 
the confusion over the dates, and on March 3rd the adjudicator 
called D r .  "3 and Dr*LK]'s office. The adjudicator's report 
of his conversation with D r .  [K] is rather carefully phrased: 

I spoke with Dr. [K] directly to see if he could recall or 
read from his notes any record of Mr. Swistak mentioning an 
injury occurring on January 24, 1980. Dr. Lk] could not 
recall such a conversation nor were there any notes to this 
effect . 

The adjudicator does not mention that D r .  [K] 's notes of January 
25th were written on an appropriate W.C.B.  form, and clearly did 
refer to a work-related incident ("Pulling boards off Green Chain 
and felt pain in Right Groin"). Nor was it mentioned that 
D r .  [K] must have relied on his notes, as the examination had 
taken place more than a month before, and would have thus 
interpreted this incident as occurring on the 10th rather than the 
24th. The adjudicator's delicate selectivity leaves the 
misleading impression that the possibility of the hernia being 
work-related had simply never been considered a t  all during the 
medical examination of January 25th, and it invites the assumption 
that Mr. Swistak opportunistically and dishonestly attributed his 
hernia to his work at some much later date. 

- 
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The question that should have been addressed - whether or not 
Dr. [K] could have written down a misleading date - was 
apparently never raised or  explored by the adjudicator. The 
boards of review and Commissioners appear to have assumed that the 
possibility of a recording error must have been looked into. 
Indeed, it is so obvious as an alternative explanation (especially 
in light of the physician's report describing no hernia on January 
23rd) that it is hard to understand why it received no 
investigative attention. 

Grounds for Adverse Recommendation: 

1. 

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5 .  

6. 

7 .  

8. 

9. 

Manual labour of the sort performed by Mr. Swistak is 
cons'idered capable of causing the significant increases in 
intra-abdominal pressure that can result in herniae. 

A few months before developing the controversial direct 
inguinal hernia on his right side Mr. Swistak had developed a 
direct inguinal hernia on his left side while performing the 
same kind of labour. 

On January 23, 1980, Mr. Swistak reported discomfort of his 
right side to his family physician, but the examination 
demonstrated weakness rather than a hernia. 

Mr. Swistak worked the late shift on January 24th, and did not 
arrive home until early in the morning of January 25th. 

On January 25th he reported to his doctor that he had 
experienced pain at work and had noticed the appearance of a 
lump. A right inguinal hernia was tentatively diagnosed and 
later confirmed. 

The physician, Dr. LK], also filled out a Physician's 
Reporting Form for the Workers' Compensation Board on that 
day, describing a work-related incident. 

Dr. [K 1 made some errors on forus that he filled out both 
then and later in his reporting of Mr. Swistak's injury. 

On February 1st the specialist, D r .  Lo] , was told by 
Mr. Swistak that discomfort had been evident by January 10th. 
but no hernia diagnosed until January 25th. 
recorded this information and found it to be a completely 
reasonable sequence of events from a medical stand point. 

Dr. LO1 

In view of Dr. LK 1's other errors and the medical 
documentation substantiating Fir. Swistak's description of the 
chronology I am satisfied that Dr. LK] was mistaken in 

0 0 0 0 2 3  
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reporting that the hernia occurred on January 10, 1980. I am 
also satisfied that there was still no hernia on Januzry 23rd, 
but that a hernia was reported to the physician and the 
employer on January 25th. 

10. As the factual and direct medical evidence confirms 
Mr. Swistak's description of his injury, I find the only 
reasonable conclusion to be that his right inguinal hernia was 
a work-related injury occurring on January 2 4 ,  1980. 

11. If the adjudicator had considered the possibility of a 
recqrding error on the part of Dr.[K] his decision to deny 
the claim was based upon insufficient evidence or on an 
incorrect weighing of the evidence, and was therefore unjust. 

12. If, in the alternative, the adjudicator had not seriously 
considered the possibility of a recording error on the part of 
Dr. LK], he failed to take relevant factors into 
cons deration and, again, his decision was unjust. 

Notification of Employer: 

I have notified Mr. Swistak's employer of our investigation as the 
company is experience rated and has objected to his claim in the 
past. 

Possible Recommendation: 

I have not yet reached a final conclusion on this complaint, and I 
would appreciate your comments on the grounds set out above. In 
order to assist you in focusing your response I am considering the 
following recommendation: 

That the Workers' Compensation Board compensate Hr. Swistalc 
for the time loss he incurred as a result of his right 
inguinal hernia. 

0 0 0 0 2 4  

Karl A. Friedmann 
Ombudsman 

March 1, 1984 
j 
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I I i JUN 2 6 1984 
Dr. Karl A .  F r i ed rnann ,  f 
Ombudsman , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly  of B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a ,  
#202 - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue ,  
V a n c o u v e r ,  B .C.  
V 6 H  1 A 6  

Your  F i l e :  82-6853 

Dear  D r .  F r i  edrnann : 

R E :  P e r r y  SWISTAK 
C l a i m  No. XC80007097 

Your l e t t e r  d a t e d  March 1 ,  1984 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  by 
t h e  Commi s s i o n e r s .  

You a r e  p r o p o s i n g  t h a t  Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  r i g h t  i n g u i n a l  h e r n i a  
c l a im b e  a c c e p t e d .  

Hav ing  c a r e f u l l y  r e v i e w e d  a l l  t h e  a v a i l a b l e  e v i d e n c e ,  t h e  
C o m m i s s i o n e r s  c a n  f i n d  n o  g r o u n d s  f o r  r e c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  
p r i o r  C o m m i s s i o n e r s '  d e c i s i o n  of August  1 8 ,  1981,  d e n y i n g  
t h i s  c l a i m .  

A m a j o r  r e a s o n  f o r  t h e  B o a r d ' s  d e c i s i o n  i s  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  
t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  c o m p e n s a t i o n  a n d  t h e  Form 8 s i g n e d  by Mr .cK]  
g i v e  t h e  d a t e  of  i n j u r y  a s  J a n u a r y  1 0 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  t h o u g h  t r e a t m e n t  was 
n o t  s o u g h t  u n t i l  J a n u a r y  2 5 ,  1980 .  When t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r  
i n i t i a l l y  d i s a l l o w e d  t h e  c l a i m  on t h i s  b a s i s ,  Mr. S w i s t a k  t h e n  g a v e  
e v i d e n c e  t h a t  t h e  i n j u r y  o c c u r r e d  on J a n u a r y  2 4 ,  1 9 8 0 .  I t  seems t o  
t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r  w a s  u n d e r s t a n d a b l y  
s u s p i c i o u s  a n d  r e a s o n a b l y  s o u g h t  c o n f i r m a t i o n  f r o m  Dr. E] 
w h e t h e r  t h e  c l a i m a n t  r e p o r t e d  t o  h i m  a sudden  p a i n  o c c u r r i n g  on 
t h a t  d a y .  You a p p e a r  t o  f i n d  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r ' s  q u e s t i o n  

on t h i s  p o i n t  somewhat s i n i s t e r ,  b u t  i t  seerris i: y i i  & ? A i s s i o n e r s  t o  h a v e  b e e n  p r o p e r .  I t  a r o s e  d i r e c t l y  
f rom t h e  new i n f o r m a t i o n  t h e  c l a i m a n t  h a d  j u s t  g i v e n  h im.  

a s  t o  

c o n t i n u e d . .  . . . / 2  
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D r .  \K] a d v i s e d  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r  t h a t  h e  c o u l d  n o t  
r e c a  1 and  had no  r e c o r d  of a sudden  o n s e t  of p a i n  o c c u r r i n g  
on J a n u a r y  2 4  b e i n g  r e p o r t e d  t o  h im.  T h i s  r e a s o n a b l y  i n c r e a s e d  
t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r ' s  doub t  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  
e v i d e n c e .  You seem t o  f e e l  t h a t  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r  was 
i n  some way n e g l i g e n t  i n  n o t  c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  D r .  
TK] may h a v e  made a r e c o r d i n g  e r r o r .  However ,  i n  t h e  Commission- 
h rs  o p i n i o n ,  you  h a v e  p r o v i d e d  no  r e a l  g r o u n d s  f o r  t h e  
e x i s t e n c e  of such  a n  e r r o r .  You r e f e r  t o  o t h e r  i n c o n s i s t e n c i e s  
or e r r o r s  made by Dr. LK] i n  f i l l i n g  ou t  t h e  r e p o r t  f o r m s ,  
n o t a b l y  h i s  a n s w e r s  t o  q u e s t i o n s  7 and  8 on h i s  J a n u a r y  
25, 1 9 8 0 ,  r e p o r t ,  h i s  a n s w e r  t o  q u e s t i o n  9 and  t h e  b o t t o m  
of t h e  F e b r u a r y  5 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  f o r m ,  a n d  h i s  g i v i n g  t h e  wrong d a t e  
of f i r s t  t r e a t m e n t  on t h e  l a t t e r  form.  The Commiss ione r s  
h a v e  examined  t h e s e  f o r m s ,  b u t  d o  n o t  f e e l  t h e  e r r o r s  o r  
i n c o n s i s t e n c i e s  t o  which you r e f e r  a r e  s i g n i f i c a n t .  They f e e l  t h a t  
y o u r  a rgumen t  i s  s p e c u l a t i v e  i n  n a t u r e .  D r .  [K] was s p e c i f i c a l l y  
a s k e d  by  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r  w h e t h e r  a n  o c c u r r e n c e  on 
J a n u a r y  24, 1 9 8 0 ,  was r e p o r t e d  t o  h i m  and  h e  s a i d ,  "No". 
T h e r e  i s  n o  r e a s o n  t o  q u e s t i o n  e i t h e r  t h a t  s t a t e m e n t  or 
h i s  r e p o r t  o f  J a n u a r y  1 0 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  a s  t h e  i n j u r y  d a t e .  Even 
now, t h e  c l a i m a n t  d o e s  n o t  deny  t h a t  t h e  i n i t i a l  g r o i n  p a i n  
w a s  f e l t  on t h a t  d a t e  a n d  t h a t  h e  g a v e  t h i s  t o . D r .  &] 
a s  t h e  d a t e  when h i s  p r o b l e m s  commenced. 

T h e r e  i s  a n o t h e r  p o i n t  i n  f a v o u r  o f  t h e  B o a r d ' s  d e c i s i o n  
which you d o  n o t  d i s c u s s .  The Commiss ione r s  r e f e r  you t o  
t h e  e m p l o y e r ' s  l e t t e r  of F e b r u a r y  8 ,  1980 .  When t h e  c l a i m a n t  
f i r s t  r e p o r t e d  t h e  i n j u r y  t o  h i s  employe r  on J a n u a r y  25 ,  
1 9 8 0 ,  on b e i n g  a s k e d  by t h e  employe r  i f  h e  r e l a t e d  h i s  h e r n i a  
t o  a n y t h i n g  p a r t i c u l a r ,  h e  c o u l d  t h i n k  o f  n o t h i n g .  The employer  
t h e n  o b t a i n e d  c o n f i r m a t i o n  t h a t  n o  work i n j u r y  o c c u r r e d  
f r o m  t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  d o c t o r s .  I t  was n o t  u n t i l  F e b r u a r y  5 ,  
1 9 8 0 ,  t h a t  M r .  S w i s t a k  r e p o r t e d  a work  i n j u r y  t o  h i s  employe r .  

The r e p o r t  o f  D r .  [OJ 
i n  f a v o u r  of t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  p o s i t i o n .  The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  
d o  n o t  f e e l  t h a t  h i s  r e p o r t  o u t w e i g h s  t h e  e v i d e n c e  t o  t h e  
c o n t r a r y .  Nor do t h e y  c o n s i d e r  t h a t  S e c t i o n  99 a p p l i e s .  

of November 1 0 ,  1 9 8 1 ,  i s ,  of c o u r s e ,  

c o n t i n u e d . .  . . . / 3  
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In c o n c l u s i o n ,  t h e  Commiss ioners  h a v e  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  t h e  
p r e v i o u s  d e c i s i o n  d e n y i n g  t h i s  claim was a r e a s o n a b l e  one  
and you have  p r o v i d e d  no g r o u n d s  f o r  a n y  c h a n g e .  

N. C. ATTEWELL 
S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board 

NCA : md 



F i l  c : 82-6853 

September 6 ,  1984 

Mr. W. Fleshe r  
Chairman 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster Highway 
Richmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Dear Mr. Fleshe r :  

Re: Complaint of Mr. P e r r y  Swistak a g a i n s t  t h e  Workers' 
Compensation Board, Claim No. XC80007097 

I a m  responding  t o  Mr. At tewel l ' s  June  2 2 ,  1984 n o t i f i c a t i o n  of  
t h e  Commissioners d e c i s i o n  n o t  t o  r e c o n s i d e r  Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  h e r n i a  
claim. The Commissioners g ive  two reasons  f o r  t h i s  d e c i s i o n ,  t h e  
major  one be ing  t h a t  one of h i s  p h y s i c i a n s  i n d i c a t e d  on 
a p p l i c a t i o n  forms t h a t  a f i f t e e n  day r e p o r t i n g  d e l a y  occur red  
between t h e  i n j u r y  and i t s  d i a g n o s i s .  The second r e a s o n  g iven  by 
t h e  Commissioners i s  t h a t  t h e r e  was no s p e c i f i c  work i n c i d e n t  
r e p o r t e d  as  c a u s i n g  t h e  h e r n i a .  I w i l l  d i s c u s s  t h e s e  two i s s u e s  
s e p a r a t e l y .  

1. Did a r e p o r t i n g  d e l a y  occur?  

The p o s s i b i l i t y  of a r e p o r t i n g  d e l a y  i s  i n d i c a t e d  on  forms f i l l e d  
o u t  by D r .  [K] b u t  is c o n t r a d i c t e d  by t h e  med ica l  r e p o r t s  of 
Mr. Swis t ak ' s  two o t h e r  p h y s i c i a n s .  On Janua ry  23 ,  two days 
b e f o r e  Dr. [ K ] ' s  f i r s t  r e p o r t ,  Dr. Ehf] saw h i s  p a t i e n t  and 
d e s c r i b e d  d i scomfor t  and a g e n e r a l  weakness i n  Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  groin 
area b u t  no h e r n i a .  On February 1 ( b e f o r e  t h e r e  was any  
c o n t r o v e r s y  over  d a t e s  or r e p o r t i n g  d e l a y s ) ,  when summarizing t h e  
h i s t o r y  of Mr. Swis t ak ' s  h e r n i a ,  D r .  Osler d e s c r i b e d  d i scomfor t  as  
s t a r t i n g  on Janua ry  10 ,  b u t  no h e r n i a  appea r ing  u n t i l  January  24. 

I n  d e c i d i n g  t h a t  t h e  h e r n i a  must have occur red  on J a n u a r y  10, b u t  
t r e a t m e n t  n o t  sought  u n t i l  January  2 5 ,  t h e  Commissioners a r e  
i g n o r i n g  those  two d o c t o r ' s  r e p o r t s  and a r e  r e l y i n g  i n s t e a d  upon 
t h e  compensation forms t h a t  D r .  EK] f i l l e d  o u t  on J a n u a r y  25 (and 
rrr-rci i t l  n f x  w ~ r - l t r ;  l n t c * r  t o  thc. nct judf  c n t o r  over thc p l tonv) .  
Dr. LK) was no t  a b l e  t o  recons t rucL any converso t io i l  b c ~ w e c i l  
himself and h i s  p a t i e n t  a t  t h a t  t ime,  b u t  h i s  forms d e s c r i b e d  n 
work r e l a t e d  h e r n i a  a s  o c c u r r i n g  on Janua ry  10 ,  i n s t e a d  of  
d i scomfor t  s t a r t i n g  on t h a t  d a t e  a s  r e p o r t e d  by t h e  o t h e r  two 
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p h y s i c i a n s .  
a p p a r e n t l y  e a s i l y  confused by compensation forms,  a s  he  
demonstrated s e v e r a l  i n a c c u r a c i e s  and i n c o n s i s t e n c i e s  i n  f i l l i n g  
them o u t .  

As mentioned i n  my previous  l e t t e r ,  D r .  [K] was 

It is worth mentioning t h a t  MacMillan Bloedel  dropped t h e i r  
o b j e c t i o n s  t o  M r .  Swis t ak ' s  c l a im when they  r e a l i z e d  t h a t  
D r .  "1 had s e e n  Mr. Swistak on Janua ry  23 and had found no 
h e r n i a .  
J a n u a r y  2 5 ,  i t  would be i r r a t f o n a l  and unreasonable  t o  r e l y  on h i s  
op in ion  r a t h e r  t han  t h a t  of D r .  [Id] 
o r  n o t  a h e r n i a  could  have p re -ex i s t ed  t h e  J a n u a r y  2 5  examinat ion 
by f i f t e e n  days.  The Board 's  conc lus ion  t h a t  t h e r e  was a 
r e p o r t i n g  d e l a y  i s  t h e r e f o r e  based on a n  i n c o r r e c t  weighing of t h e  
ev idence  and i s  u n j u s t .  

As D r . c K l  had no t  even examined Mr. Swis t ak  u n t i l  

on t h e  q u e s t i o n  of  whether 

2. Must a h e r n i a  immediately f o l l o w  a s i n g l e  p r e c i p i t a t i n g  
i n c i d e n t ?  

Causa t ion  is a medica l  i s s u e ,  
and su rgeon ,  a d d r e s s e s  t h i s  q u e s t i o n  i n  h i s  November 10 ,  1981 
l e t t e r  i n  s u p p o r t  of a h e a r i n g  b e f o r e  a Medical Review Panel :  

Dr. LO] , Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  s p e c i a l i s t  

While one cannot  be  c a t e g o r i c  ( s i c )  abou t  t h e  time of  i n j u r y  
and t h e  appearance  of  a lump t h e r e  is no q u e s t i o n  i n  my mind 
t h a t  t h e r e  may be a s i g n i f i c a n t  p e r i o d  of t i m e  e l a p s e ,  ( s i c )  
p a r t i c u l a r l y  from when t h e  d i scomfor t  is f i r s t  no ted  and a 
lump a c t u a l l y  appea r s .  

A t  t h a t  time, M r .  C o s e l t i n e  could  n o t  s e e  any d i s p u t e d  medical  
i s s u e ,  and r e f u s e d  Mr. Swis t ak ' s  r e q u e s t  f o r  a Medica l  Review 
Pane l  on t h a t  ground. I f  t h e  Commissioners should  now dec ide  t h a t  
crruuirtlon 111 indcod on j f ; u i i c ,  Mr. S w i f i t r i l c ' u  orjp , lnn l  rqiiut,t. f o r  A I  , 
Medical Review Pane l  should  be honoured. 

I n  summary, my recommendations pursuant  t o  S e c t i o n  2 2  of  the  
Ombudsman Act are: 

1. That  t h e  Commissioners a c c e p t  t h e  f i n d i n g s  of D r .  [N] t h a t  
Mr. Swistak had no h e r n i a  on Janua ry  23. 

2 .  I f  . the q u e s t i o n  of c a u s a t i o n  should s t i l l  need t o  be r e s o l v e d ,  
t h a t  t h e  Commissioners c a l l  f o r  a Medical Review Pane l  t o  make 
a f i n d i n g  on t h a t  i s s u e .  

Yours s i n c e r e l y ,  

Karl A .  Friedmann 
Ombud sma n 
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Dr. Karl A .  F r i  edmann, 
Ombudsman , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a ,  
#202 - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue,  
V a n c o u v e r ,  B .C.  
V 6 H  1 A 6  - 
Dear Dr. Fr iedmann :  
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Your l e t t e r  of Sep tember  6 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  by 
t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s .  

Your a rgument  seems  t o  b e  t h a t ,  s i n c e  D r .  cd] 
h e r n i a  on J a n u a r y  23, 1980,  a n d  a h e r n i a  was s u s p e c t e d  by 
Dr. [KJ when h e  saw Wr. S w i s t a k  on J a n u a r y  25, 1 9 8 0 ,  t h e n  
t h e  h e r n i a  must h a v e  o c c u r r e d  on J a n u a r y  2 4 ,  1980,  w h i l e  
h e  w a s  a t  work.  The  Commiss ione r s  c o n s i d e r ,  h o w e v e r ,  t h a t  
t h e r e  a r e  s e v e r a l  d i f f i c u l t i e s  w i t h  t h i s  a r g u m e n t .  T h e s e  
a r e  as fo l . l ows :  

f o u n d  no  

1. Mr. S w i s t a k ' s  f i r s t  r e p o r t  o f  an  o n s e t  of p a i n  was 
d i d  n o t e  a on J a n u a r y  1 0 ,  1980 ,  a t  work .  D r .  LN] 

g r o i n  weakness  on J a n u a r y  2 3 ,  1980. Even i f  t h e  h e r n i a  
w a s  n o t  d i a g n o s e d  u n t i l  J a n u a r y  2 5 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  i t  may have  
e x i  st  e d  p r e v i  ou s l y .  

2 .  N e i t h e r  on J a n u a r y  1 0  o r  24 i s  i t  a l l e g e d  t h a t  a n y  
s p e c i f i c  i n c i d e n t  o c c u r r e d .  Mr. S w i s t a k  was s i m p l y  
d o i n g  h i s  no rma l  work.  

3. Mr. S w i s t a k  f a i l e d  t o  r e p o r t  a n y  p r o b l e m s  t o  h i s  employer  
u n t i l  J a n u a r y  25, 1 9 8 0 ,  a n d  t h e n  i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  t h e r e  
was n o t h i n g  a t  work which  h a d  b r o u g h t  i t  o n .  

c o n t i n u e d . .  . . . / 2  
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I t  s eems  t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t ,  on t h e  b a s i s  o f  t h e s e  
f a c t o r s ,  a n d  n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  t h a t  t h e r e  may b e  c o n t r a r y  
a r g u m e n t s ,  t h e  Board  q u i t e  p r o p e r l y  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  t h e r e  
w a s  i n s u f f i c i e n t  e v i d e n c e  t o  r e l a t e  M r .  S w i s t a k ' s  h e r n i a  
t o  h i s  work .  

The C o m n i s s i o n e r s  n o t e  y o u r  p r o p o s a l  t h a t  t h e  m a t t e r  b e  
r e f e r r e d  t o - a  M e d i c a l  Rev iew P a n e l .  However ,  on r e v i e w i n g  
Mr. G o s e l t i n e ' s  l e t t e r  o f  November 1 7 ,  1981,  a n d  t h e  b o a r d  
o f  r e v i e w  d e c i s i o n  o f  Augus t  2 7 ,  1 9 8 2 ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  
c o n s i d e r  t h a t  t h e  d e c i s i o n  t o  r e j e c t  M r .  S w i s t a k ' s  a p p e a l  
t o  a M e d i c a l  Rev iew P a n e l  w a 5  r e a s o n a b l e .  They  s e e  n o  g r o u n d s  
for i n t e r f e r i n g  w i t h  t h a t  d e c i s i o n .  

In t h e  r e s u l t ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  d e c i d e d  t o  r e j e c t  
y o u r  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  on t h i s  c l a i m .  The  c l a i m  w i l l  r ema in  
d i s a l l  owed. 

N .  C .  ATTEWELL 
S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board  

NCA : md 



WORKERS' 
COm P E N SAT I ON 
BOARD %KX 

2 J a n u a r y  1 9 8 5  

I 
1 

JAN 0 3 E85 

OMB. 90 
VANCOUVEP 

I 

D r .  Karl A .  F r i edmann ,  
Ombudsman , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of B r i t i s h  Co lumbia ,  
#202 - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue,  U 

Vancouver ,  B .C. 
V6H 1A6 

Dear  D r .  F r iedmann:  

R E :  P e r r y  SWlSTAK 
Cla im No. XC80007097 

F o l l o w i n g  my l e t t e r  of November 1 4 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  and  t h e  d i s c u s s i o n  
of t h i s  c l a i m  a t  t h e  m e e t i n g  be tween Mr. Bucher a n d  members 
of y o u r  s t a f f  on November 1 5 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  t h i s  c l a i m  h a s  a g a i n  
been  r e v i e w e d  by  t h e  Commiss ione r s .  

The Commiss ione r s  remain  of t h e  v i e w  t h a t  t h e  r e a s o n i n g  
a n d  c o n c l u s i o n  s e t  o u t  i n  my p r e v i o u s  l e t t e r  i s  c o r r e c t  
a n d  s e e  no  r e a s o n  t o  change  t h a t  d e c i s i o n .  They have  d e c i d e d  
t h a t  t h i s  c l a i m  s h o u l d  remain d i s a l l o w e d .  

N .  c .  ATTEWELY 
S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board 

NCA : md 
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File: 82-8144 

February 9 ,  1985. 

Hr. F. Flesher 
Cha i rman 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Uestminster Highway 
Richmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Dear Mr. Flesher: 

Re: Complaint of Mr. Craig McCargar, Claim Nos. XC79026834 
and XC80052233 

I am nearing completion of my investigation of this complaint.  
Pursuant to section 16 of the Ombudsman Act, I enclose ny 
preliminary report which sets out the grounds upon which I may 
make a recommendation. 

I would appreciate your comments. 

Yours sincerely, 

Karl A. Friedmann / Ombudsman 

Encl. (1) 
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~ i i r s u a n t  t o  Section 1 6  of t h e  Onbudsnan Act 

O p p o r t u n i t y  t o  make r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  

16. Where i t  a p p e a r s  t o  t h e  Onbudsnan t h a t  t h e r e  may be 
s u f f i c i e n t  grounds  f o r  making a r e p o r t  o r  recommendation 
under  t h i s  Act t h a t  may a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t  a n  a u t h o r i t y  o r  
pe r son ,  the  Ombudsman s h a l l  in for f f i  t h e  a u t h o r i t y  or person 
o f  t h e  grounds  and s h a l l  give t h e  a u t h o r i t y  o r  person the  
o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  make r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s ,  e i t h e r  o r a l l y  or I n  
w r i t i n g  a t  t h e  d i s c r e t i o n  of t h e  Ombudsman, be fo re  he  
d e c i d e s  t h e  m a t t e r .  

- Ombudsman A c t ,  R.S.B.C. 1979, c. 306 

Complainant :  M r .  Craig McCargar 

A u t h o r i t y :  Workers' Compensation Board 

Background: 

On May 4, 1979 Mr. McCargar's employer r epor t ed  t o  the Board t h a t  
Mr. McCargar had been invo lved  i n  a n  a c c i d e n t  on A p r i l  17 ,  1979. 
I n  d e s c r i b i n g  t h e  n a t u r e  of t h e  a c c i d e n t ,  t h e  employer s t a t e d  that 
Mr. McCargar w a s  moving a 300 pound crate w i t h  a d o l l y  when t h e  
l o a d  f e l l  forward  knocking him down and t h e  crate  l anded  on h i s  
hand. The employer i n c l u d e d  t h e  l e f t  hand,  elbow, s h o u l d e r  a n d  
back  as i n j u r i e s  which M r .  McCargar had r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  employer. 
Mr. Mcdargar a t t e n d e d  Vancouver Genera l  H o s p i t a l  Emergency 
Department  where the f i n a l  d i a g n o s i s  w a s  t h a t  he had b ru i sed  h i s  
left hand. T h e r e  w a s  no ment ion  of any back, s h o u l d e r  or elbow 
problems. The c l a i m w a s  a c c e p t e d  by t h e  Board f o r  t h e  l e f t  band. 

. 

On March 28, 1980 M r .  McCargar s u f f e r e d  a f u r t h e r  a c c i d e n t  when h e  
s l i p p e d  on o i l  and  f e l l  down i n  a s i t t i n g  p o s i t i o n .  
r e p o r t e d  that M r ,  McCargar's back had been bo the r ing  him a whi l e  
e v e n  s i n c e  his 1979 a c c i d e n t .  
M r .  McCargar w e r e  not made u n t i l  ' t h e  end of J u l y  1980. On July 
18, 1980 Mr. McCargar's p h y s i c i a n ,  Dr. 7. r e p o r t e d  t o  the  
Board t h a t  he  had first s e e n  M r .  McCargar on e b r u a r y  21, 1980 
w i t h  a compla in t  of r e c u r r i n g  low back d i s t r e s s  and r e c e n t  l e f t  
l eg  pa in .  H e  r e p o r t e d  t h a t  Mr. HcCargar had complained of 
r e c u r r i n g  low back ache  on t h e  l e f t  s i d e  for t h e  p a s t  10 t o  11 
months which w a s  worse when s i t t i n g  or d r i v i n g  a c a r .  
n e v e r  been s e e n  i n  t h e  p a s t  by any d o c t o r  f o r  back ache .  He next  

The employer 

The reports by t h e  employer and 

H e  had 
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saw Nr. McCargar on J u l y  9 ,  1980. He r e p o r t e d  t h a t  Mr. McCargar 
had t a k e n  B f e u  days  off i n  February and was f i n o  for two Donths, 
and t h e n  f o r  t h e  l a s t  month o r  so  he had n o t i c e d  r e c u r r i n g  aching  
i n  t h e  l o w  back. 
Nr. NcCargsr w a s  much worse d e s p i t e  t h e  normal x - r ays  and f e l t  
t h a t  t h e  symptoms sugges t ed  perhaps  a n  L4-L5 r n d i c u l i t i s .  

D r .  - r epor t ed  t h a t  by tlle 1 6 t h  of J u l y  

M r .  McCargar was admi t t ed  t o  h o s p i t a l  on August 13, 1980. The 
h o s p i t a l  C o n s u l t a t i o n  Report o f  August 21, 1980 s t a t e d  t h a t  
M r ,  t l c ca rga r  was w e l l  u n t i l  he s u f f e r e d  a s e r i o u s  f a l l  a t  work a 
y e a r  ago and  from t h a t  t i m e  u n t i l  t h e  p r e s e n t  he had c o n t i n u i n g  
low back pa in .  A myelogram r e v e a l e d  a s i g n i f i c a n t  abnormal i ty  
c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a d i s c  p r o t u s f o n  a t  t h e  L5-S1 l e v e l  w i t h  some 
m i g r a t i o n  of t h e  material  t o  t h e  L4-5 l e v e l .  On September 9 ,  1980 
Mr. McCargar underwent a bi la teral  p a r t i a l  laminectomy wi th  a d i s c  
e x c i s i o n  a t  L5-S1. 

On Oc tobe r  23, 1980 t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r  d i sa l lowed M r .  McCargar's.l.980 
claim,  The basis  f o r  h e r  d e c i s i o n  w a s  t h a t  he d i d  n o t  seek  any 
m e d i c a l  t r e a t m e n t  between A p r i l  1979 a n d  February 21, 1980 nor d i d  
t h e  Board have  any  r e p o r t s  of compla in ts  from him d u r i n g  t h i s  
p e r i o d .  The a d j u d i c a t o r  t h e r e f o r e  d i d  no t  c o n s i d e r  t h a t  h i s  back 
c o m p l a i n t s  cou ld  be r e l a t e d  t o  e i t h e r  h i s  injury of March 28, 3980 
or his i n j u r y  of A p r i l  17 ,  1979. 

M r ,  McCargar appea led  t h i s  d e c i s i o n  t o  t h e  boards  of review on the 
bas i s  t h a t  he  had had t h r e e  a c c i d e n t s  a t  his p l a c e  o f  employment. 
and n e v e r  had any  back problems be fo re  h i s  f i r s t  a c c i d e n t .  The  
boa rds  of review a l lowed Mr. McCargar's a p p e a l  i n  a m a j o r i t y  
d e c i s i o n  d a t e d  J u l y  7, 1981. T h e i r  b a s i s  f o r  a l l o w i n g  
M r .  McCargar 's  a p p e a l  w a s  a r e p o r t  from Dr. [A] , t h e  surgeon who 
performed M r .  McCargar's laminectomy. 
t h a t :  

The boards of r e v i e w . s t a t e d  

Although Dr. [A] 
have  e x i s t e d  for years or  months p r i o r  t o  becoming 
symptomatic ,  h e  a lso s a y s  t h a t  t h e r e  is a lways  an i n i t i a l  
i n s u l t  t o  produce the main d i s r u p t i o n  of t h e  anulus  of the 
d i s c .  Given t h a t  M r .  McCargar den ie s  any p rev ious  
i n j u r i e s  t o  h i s  back and g i v e n  his y o u t h f u l  a g e  (21) i t  
seems t o  us t h a t  on t h e  ev idence  be fo re  us i t  is 
unreasonab le  t o  l o o k  beyond t h e  i n j u r i e s  r e p o r t e d  by 
M r .  McCargar t o  e x p l a i n  t h e  symptoms and subsequent  d i s c  
au rge ry .  

s a y s  t h a t  Mr. McCargar's c o n d i t i o n  could 

Although t h e  boards  of rev iew noted t h e  medical o p i n i o n s  esprcssed  
by t h e  t h r e e  Board d o c t o r s ,  t h e y  s t a t e d  t h a t  a t  t h e  v e r y  l e a s t  
t h e r e  d i d  appea r  t o  be doubt  upon t h e  i s s u e  and t h e  d i spu ted  
p o s s i b i l i t i e s  were e v e n l y  ba lanced .  The re fo re ,  t h e y  decided t o  
r e s o l v e  t h e  i s s u e  i n  accordance  w i t h  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  most 
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favourable to the worker and allover! the appeal. There was a 
dissenting opinion from one member of the boards of review on t h e  
basis that he could not conclude from Dr. ' s  letter that I-?e 
April 17, 1373 injury was necessarily the initial insult and 
therefore, in his opinion, to allov the appeal .  would be pure 
specula tion. 

The adjudicator referred the boards of review decision to the 
Commissioners under Section 90(3) of t h e  Act. On July 3 0 ,  1981 
the Commissioners wrote t o  Mr. McCargar with their provisioncl 
decision. They provisionally decided not to jrnplement the board 
of review decision on the grounds that it was against the 
overwhelming weight of the evidence. They stated that: 

The board of review concluded that your back problems were 
initiated by the 1979 injury, However, it appears to the 
Commissioners that this is clearly contrary to the 
available evidence. Dr. [A] ' s  report. might provide a 
reasonable basis for such a decision i f  the 1979 i n j u r y  
was, in fact, an injury to the back. However, the 
evidence overwhelmingly indicates that it was basically 
only a left hand injury and did not affect the 
back.. .Dr. [A] himself does not relate your complaints to 
that injury, but merely states that an injury must have 
occurred at some time in the past, possibly years 
earlier. The Board is not required to accept 
responsibility for a condition s i m p l y  because there is no 
record of any injury having occurred other than the work 
injury in question. 

The Commissioners confirmed their provisional decision on 
September 16, 1981. 

Last Decision Level: 

As noted, the last decision was that of the Commissioners dated 
September 16, 1981. 

Employer Notification: 

I have not notified the employer as the employer did not object to 
Mr. McCargar's appeal at the boards of review level. 

Issue: - 
The issue investigated in this complaint was: 

Was the decision of the Commissioners not to implement the 
board of review decision an unjust decision? 
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Grounds for A d v e r s e  F i n d i n g s  : 

I n  my o p i n i o n  t h e  compla in t  may be s u b s t a n t i a t e d  for t h e  f o l l o v i n g  
r e a s o n s :  

1. The Commissioners s t a t e d  i n  t h e i r  d e c i s i o n  of  J u l y  30, 1981: 

Although your  employer ' s  r e p o r t  r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  
March 28, 1980 i n c i d e n t  refers t o  your back having  
,bo the red  you s i n c e  your  first a c c i d e n t ,  o t h e r  i n fo rma t ion  
has been r e c e i v e d  from your  employer t h a t ,  p r i o r  t o  t h a t  
i n c i d e n t ,  t h e r e  i s  no r e c o r d  of any back compla in t s  i n  t h e  
F i r s t  Aid Book, You c l e a r l y  d i d  n o t  seek medica l  
a t t e n t i o n  between A p r i l  1979 and February  1980. 

It 'does n o t  seem unreasonab le  t h a t  M r .  McCargar would n o t  
r e c o r d  h i s  back compla in t s  i n  t h e  F i r s t  A i d  Book when one 
c o n s i d e r s  t h e  ev idence  t h a t  h i s  compla in t s  w e r e  of 
i n t e r m i t t e n t  s t i f f n e s s  d u r i n g  t h i s  pe r iod  of time. The f a c t  
t h a t  h i s  employer  w a s  aware of h i s  problems i s  ev idence  t h a t  
his problems e x i s t e d .  

2. Although Nr- McCargar d i d  n o t  seek medical a t t e n t i o n  between 
A p r i l  1979 and Februa ry  1980, t h i s  a l s o  is n o t  unreasonable  I n  
view of t h e  n a t u r e  of t h e  compla in t s  t h a t  h e  had d u r i n g  t h i s  
t i m e .  H e  w a s  e x p e r i e n c i n g  i n t e r m i t t e n t  s t i f f n e s s  i n  his  hack, 
which w a s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  n o t i c e a b l e  when lie w a s  d r i v i n g  or 
g e t t i n g  o u t  of cars. Although a v i s i t  t o  h i s  d o c t o r  may have 
p rov ided  t h e  best ev idence  t h a t  he  was having problems wl th  
h i s  back, ev idence  from M r .  KcCargar and from h i s  employer 
canno t  be d i s c o u n t e d  merely because M r .  McCargar d i d  n o t  seek 
med ica l  a t t e n t i o n  i n  t h i s  t iue.  It o b v i o u s l y  w a s  n o t  a 
problem which d i s a b l e d  M r .  McCargar from working as he  
con t inued  t o  work for most of t h e  t i m e  i n  q u e s t i o n ,  and t h i s  
would p r o v i d e  a n o t h e r  r e a s o n  why Mr. McCargar d i d  n o t  seek  
med ica l  a t t e n t i o n .  between A p r i l  1979 and Februa ry  1980, 

3. The Commissioners s t a t e d :  

The board of rev iew conciuded t h a t  your back problems were 
I n i t i a t e d  by t h e  1979 i n j u r y .  However, i t  a p p e a r s  t o  t h e  
Commissioners t h a t  t h i s  is c l e a r l y  c o n t r a r y  t o  t h e  
a v a i l a b l e  ev idence .  D r ,  [A] ' s  r e p o r t  might  pr0vid.e a 
r e a s o n a b l e  bas i s  f o r  such  a d e c i s i o n  i f  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  
w a s ,  i n  f a c t ,  a n  i n j u r y  t o  t h e  back. However, t h e  
e v i d e n c e  overwhelmingly i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  I t  was b a s i c a l l y  
o n l y  a l e f t  hand i n j u r y  and d i d  n o t  a f f e c t  t h e  back. T h l s  
is e v i d e n t  from t h e  l a c k  of r e f e r e n c e  t o  a back i n j u r y  i n  
t h e  r e p o r t s  r e c e i v e d  a t  t h e  t i m e  and t o  t h e  l a c k  of 
e v i d e n c e  of back compla in t s  exper ienced  between t h a t  time 
and February  1980, and aga in 'be tween  February  1980 a n d  
March 28, 1980. 
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4, D r .  TA-J ' 3  r e p o r t  d a t e d  May 28 ,  1981 s t a t e s :  

. . , t he  f i n d i n g s  a t  s u r g e r y  would be c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a l a c k  
i n j u r y  a t  any  t i m e  p r i o r  t o  t h e  su rge ry .  What might have 
happened w a s  t h a t  w i t h  t h i s  i n j u r y  i n  A p r i l  of 1979 t h e  
a n u l u s  of t h e  d i s c  w a s  d s m g e d  and weakened, A t  some time 
later t h e  a n u l u s  of t h e  disc would break  o r  r u p t u r e  
a l l o w i n g  a p i e c e  of d i s c  n a t e r i a l  to push through.  With 
further a c t i v i t i e s  and t i m e ,  t h i s  p i e c e  of d i s c  can be 
s q u i r t e d  o u t  t h rough  this opening and s l o w l y  move u p  t h e  
s p i m l  c a n a l ,  o f t e n  s t a y i n g  o u t s i d e  of the  s p i n a l  canal. 
u n d e r n e a t h  t h e  a n t e r i o r  l o n g i t u d i n a l  l igament .  
v a r i o u s  i n j u r i e s  as w e l l  as c e r t a i n  movements and stress 
t o  t h e  s p i n e ,  c a n  p roduce  a changing p i c t u r e  b u t  t h e r e  is 
a lways  a n  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  to produce t h e  main d i s r u p t i o n  of 
t h e  a n u l u s  and t e a r i n g  w i t h  subsequent weakness of t h e  
v a r i o u s  s u p p o r t i n g  l igaments. , .Mr. McCargar 's  c o n d i t i o n  
c o u l d  have e x i s t e d  f o r  y e a r s  or months p r i o r  t o  becoming 
symptomatic ,  again depending  upon t h e  degree of weakness 
or i n j u r y  from t h e  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  and Iron t h e  v a r i o u s  
changes  t h a t  o c c u r r e d  r e s u l t i n g  from subsequen t  s t r e s s  and 
in j u r i e s .  

The re fo re ,  

5 .  According  to D r .  [A] , M r .  McCargar 's  c o n d j t i o n  could  have 
e x i s t e d  f o r  y e a r s  o r  months p r i o r  to becoming symptomatic 
depending  upon the d e g r e e  of weakness o r  i n j u r y  from t h e  
i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  and from the  v a r i o u s  changes t h a t  occurred 
r e s u l t i n g  from subsequen t  stress and i n j u r i e s .  D r ,  [A .  's 
r e p l y  on t h i s  i s s u e  w a s  i n  r e sponse  to t h e  q u e s t i o n  by t h e  
b o a r d s  of review why M r .  McCargar would n o t  e x p e r i e n c e  any 
symptoms between A p r i l  1979 and  February  1980 and then  n o t  
again u n t i l  J u l y  9,  1980. It seems i n c o n s i s t e n t  t h a t  D r .  
[A]  *s e v i d e n c e  e x p l a i n i n g  why i t  w a s  p o s s i b l e  t h a t  
M r .  McCargar c o u l d  have had no symptoms i n  t h i s  p e r i o d  of t.ime 
a f t e r  s u f f e r i n g  an i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  t o  his back is t h e n  used by 
t h e  Commissioners t o  c o n c l u d e  t h a t  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  d i d  not  
affect his back because  there w a s  no ev idence  of back 
c o m p l a i n t s  in t h i s  p e r i o d  of t i m e .  The re fo re ,  i t  canno t  be 
c a t e g o r i c a l l y  s t a t e d  t ha t  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  d i d  n o t  a f f e c t  Nr. 
NcCargar ' s  back because  t h e r e  i s  a l a c k  of e v i d e n c e  of back 
c o m p l a i n t s  expe r i enced  between A p r i l  1979 and February  1980 
and  a g a i n  between Februa ry  1980 and March 28, 1980. 

6. Although t h e  o n l y  r e f e r e n c e  t o  M r .  McCargar's back i n j u r y  was 
t h e  employer ' s  r e p o r t ,  t h i s  is no t  s u r p r i s i n g  i n  view of t h e  
v e r y  l i m i t e d  i n f o r m a t i o n  on f i l e  i n  h i s  1979 c l a im.  The 1979 
c l a i m  c o n s i s t s  o n l y  of t h e  ercployer 's  r e p o r t ,  a p h y s i c i a n ' s  
r e p o r t  and a c c o u n t ,  t h e  h o s p i t a l  admission r e p o r t  and a n  x-ray 
r e p o r t  of Mr. McCargar 's  l e f t  hand. Although t h e  h o s p i t a l  
admiss ion  r e p o r t  and D r .  0' account  refer o n l y  t o  
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F i r .  McCnrgar's l e f t  hand (Dr. 0 i s  t h e  sa5e  d o c t o r  a s  
l i s t e d  on t h e  h o s p i t a l  r e p o r t ) ,  t h i s  i s  no t  s u r p r i s i n g  when 
one  c o n s i d e r s  t h a t  a c r a t e  f e l l  on h i s  hand and s o  would he 
h i s  obvious  compla in t  a t  t h a t  t i n e .  However, t h e  employer 
s t a t e d  t h a t  Mr. McCargar had a l s o  r epor t ed  an i n j u r y  t o  his 
back. I t  i s  n o t  un reasonab le  t o  conclude t h a t  M r .  NcCargar 
c o u l d  have s u f f e r e d  a n  i n j u r y  t o  h i s  back when one cons ide r s  
t h a t  a 300 pound crate f e l l  f o r n a r d  knocking him down, t h a t  he 
reportec? t o  t h e  employer t h a t  he  had s u f f e r e d  a back i n j u r y  
and  

7. The 

8 .  No. 

9. Mr. 
any  

- .  
h i s  employer r e p o r t e d  t h i s  Informat ion  t o  t h e  Board. 

Commissioners f u r t h e r  s ta te :  

Dr. r A ]  
i n j u r y ,  bu t  merely s ta tes  t h a t  a n  i n j u r y  m u s t  have 
o c c u r r e d  a t  some t i m e  i n  t h e  p a s t ,  p o s s i b l y  y e a r s  
earlier. The Board i s  n o t  r e q u i r e d  t c ~  a c c e p t  
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  a c o n d i t i o n  s imply because  t h e r e  i s  no 
r e c o r d  of any  i n j u r y  having  occurred  o t h e r  t han  t h e  work 
i n j u r y  i n  q u e s t i o n .  The re  i s  no presumption t h a t  a 
c o n d i t i o n  i s  t o  be a c c e p t e d  as re la ted  t o  a work i n j u r y  
u n l e s s  t h e  Board can  p rove  that. I t  i s  due t o  some o t h e r  
cause. 

h imse l f  does  no t  r e l a t e  y o u r  compla in t s  t o  t h a t  

82.32 of t h e  C l a i m s  Ad jud ica t ion  Manual. s ta tes :  

A s t a t e m e n t  of a c la imar , t  about  h i s  own c o n d i t i o n  i s  
e v i d e n c e  i n s o f a r  as i t  relates t o  m a t t e r s  t h a t  would be 
w i t h i n  h i s  knowledge, and i t  shou ld  no t  be r e j e c t e d  simply 
by r e f e r e n c e  t o  a n  assumpt ion  t h a t  i t  must be b iased .  
A l s o  t h e r e  I s  no r equ i r emen t  t h a t  the s t a t e m e n t  of a 
c l a i m a n t  a b o u t  h i s  own c o n d i t i o n  must be corrobora ted . . .k  
c o n c l u s i o n  a g a i n s t  t h e  s t a t e m e n t  of t h e  claimant.  about  hTs 
own c o n d i t i o n  may be reached  If t h e  conc lus ion  rests on a 
s u b s t a n t i a l  f o u n d a t i o n ,  such  as c l i n i c a l  f i n d i n g s ,  o t h e r  
med ica l  o r  non-medical  ev idence  o r  s e r i o u s  weakness 
demonst ra ted  bv Q u e s t i o n i n g  t h e  c l a iman t .  o r  i f  t h e  
s t a t e m e n t  of t h e  c l a i m a n t  relates t o  a m a t t e r  t h a t  could 
n o t  Doss ib lv  be w i t h i n  h i s  knowledne. (mv eDDhaSiS) 

McCargar s t a t e d  on numerous occas ions  t h a t  h e  never  had 
back p a i n  or  i n j u r i e s  p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n c i d e n t  of A p r i l  1 7 ,  

1979, t h a t  h e  neve r  sough t  any  medica l  a t t e n t i o n  for h i s  back 
p r i o r  t o  t h i s  i n c i d e n t  and t h a t  he does  not  p l a y  rough 
s p o r t s .  There  h a s  been no ev ldence  produced by t h e  Board t h a t  
t h i s  i s  not t h e  case. T h e r e f o r e ,  i t  would a p p e a r ,  i n  apply ing  
t h e  above p o l i c y  to t h i s  c a s e ,  t h a t  t h e  Board shou ld  be 
a c c e p t i n g  M r .  NcCargar 's  s t a t e m e n t  about  t he  c o n d i t i o n  of h i s  
back p r i o r  t o  A p r i l  17 ,  1979. 
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R c y o r  t of I n v e s t  iga  t lo!: 

10. The Commissioners s t a t e d  i n  t h e i r  l e t t e r  of July 30, 1981: 

There  i s  no p r e s m p t i o n  t h a t  a condition i s  t o  be accepted 
as r e l a t e d  to a work i n j u r y  u n l e s s  t h e  Board can  prove 
t h a t  it i s  d u e  t c l  some o t h e r  cause. Rather ,  a claim Dust 
be determinec? by whether  t h e r e  is evidence  which shows 
p o s i t i v e l y  that t h e  work i n j u r y  d i d  cause t h e  complaints .  
All t h e  doctor:; crho have g iven  opinions on t h e  s p e c i f i c  
q u e s t i o n  whether  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  caused your  compla in ts  
have concluded  t h a t  i t  d i d  no t .  

11. T h i s  l a s t  s t a t e m e n t  i s  n o t  e n t i r e l y  c o r r e c t .  D r .  r A 3  was 
asked by t h e  boa rds  of review whether  h i s  f i n d i n g s  a f t e r  
pe r fo rming  s u r g e r y  on  Mr. McCargar were c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a back 
i n j u r y  t h a t  cou ld  have  occur red  i n  A p r i l  1979. Dr. r,42 
r e p l i e d  t h a t  t h e  f i n d i n g s  a t  s u r g e r y  would be c o n s i s t e n t  wi th  
a back i n j u r y  a t  any t i m e  p r i o r  t o  t h e  su rge ry .  Since Hr. 
McCargar's ev idence  is t h a t  h e  d i d  not have any  p r i o r  back 
i n j u r y  o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  ones r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  Board t h e n  i t  
would a p p e a r  t h a t  t h e  o n l y  back i n j u r y  that D r ,  f4? could he 
r e f e r r i n g  t o  was t h e  A p r i l  1 7 ,  1979 i n j u r y .  

Based on t h e  above f i n d i n g s ,  1 may conclude  t h a t  t h e  Board's 
d e c i s i o n  t o  d i s a l l o w  Mr. McCargar 's  1980 claim w a s  u n j u s t  because 
i t  f a i l e d  to g i v e  p rope r  weight  t o  t h e  s t a t e m e n t s  of M r .  Piccargar 
and  t h e  e v i d e m e  of D r .  and i t  w a s  based on i n c o r r e c t  
i n f e r e n c e s .  

Possible  Recommendation: 

I h a v e  n o t  y e t  reached  a f i n a l  c o n c l u s i o n  on t h i s  compla in t ,  and I 
would a p p r e c i a t e  your comments o n  t h e  grounds  set o u t  above. I am 
c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  recommendation: 

T h a t  t h e  Board a c c e p t  M r .  McCargar's 1980 claim. 

Karl A. Friedmann 

February 9,  1984 .  
/ Ombudsman 



1 9  April 1984 

Dr. Karl A .  Friedmann 
Ombudsman 
Legislative Assembly of 

#202 - 1275 Nest 6th Ave. 
Vancouver, B.C. 
V6H 1A6 

British Columbia 

Dear Dr. Friedmann: 

Re: Craig M c C A R G A R  
Claim Nos. XC79026834 6 XC80052233  

Your letter dated February 9, 1984, has been considered 
by a panel of two Commissioners. 

You propose that M r .  McCargar's 1980 claim be allowed, 15\1t 

complaints to his 1 9 7 9  injury you presumably are a l s o  
proposing that that claim be re-opened. 

* since most of your argument is directed at relating his 

The injury occurring on April 17, 1979, caused only one 
days l o s s  of time from work. Though the employer's report 
mentions the back as being injured, no other document 
submitted at the time does so. In particular, there i s  
no reference to the back being injured in the report of 
Mr. McCargar's visit to the hospital. It seems to the 
Commissioners that, if a significant back injury h a d  then 
been suffered, it would have been mentioned when treatment 
was first sought or soon afterwards. 

The Commissioners do not dispute Mr. McCargar's evidence 
that he had no problems prior to his 1 9 7 9  incident. Nor 
was the Commissioners' previous decision based on any 
different finding. The Commissioners, however, do not feel 
that this necessarily means that a l l  his complaints m u s t  

. . . / 2  

. 
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be r e l a t e d  t o  t h a t  i n j u r y ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  when i t  is  h i g h l y  
q u e s t i o n a b l e  w h e t h e r  i t  was a n  i n j u r y  t o  t h e  b a c k .  They 
w 5 ~ 1 l d  a l s o  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  M r .  McCargar's t e s t i m o n y  i s  
c o n t r a d i c t o r y  a s  t o  w h e t h e r  h e  s u f f e r e d  hack  c o m p l a i n t s  
a f t e r  t h e  1 9 7 9  i n c i d e n t .  I n  t h i s  c o n n e c t i o n ,  I draw youi- 
a t t e n t i o n  t o  t h e  t h i r d  p a r a g r a p h  of t h e  f i r s t  page of my 
l e t te r  of July 3 0 ,  1 9 8 1 ,  

You are  c e r t a i n l y  correct t h a t  D r . c A l  
t h e  e f fec t  t h a t  h i s  f i n d i n g s  a r e  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a n  j .n ju i -y  
o c c u r r i n g  i n  A p r i l ,  1 9 7 9 .  However, i t  does n o t  a p p e a r  t o  
t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  h i s  o p i n i o n  is of g r e a t  a s s i s t a n c e  
t o  M r .  McCargar s i n c e  t h e  doc to r  also s l a t e s  t h a t  " t h e  
f i n d i n g s  of s u r g e r y  would be c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a b a c k  i n j u r y  
a t  a n y  t i m e  p r i o r  t o  t h e  s u r g e r y "  T h i s  m u s t  be c o n t r a s l e d  
w i t h  t h e  s p e c i f i c  o p i n i o n  of D r ,  ck 1 expressed  i n  hei- 
m e m o  of October 1 5 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  t h a t  t h e r e  was n o  r e l a t i o n s h i p  
b e t w e e n  M r ,  M c C a r g a r ' s  c o m p l a i n t s  a n d  t h e  1 9 7 9  i n j u r y .  11r.s. - and c o n c u r r e d  w i t h  h e r  o p i n i o n .  

It seems t o  t h e  C o r n m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t ,  h a v i n g  r e g a r d  ta a33 
of t h e  e v i d e n c e ,  t h a t  t h e  most r e a s o n a b l e  c o n c l u s i o n  is 
t h a t  M r .  McCargar d i d  n o t  s u f f e r  a s i g n i f i c a n t  back i n j u r y  
i n  A p r i l ,  1 9 7 9 ,  a n d  h a d  n o  s i g n i f i c a n t  b a c k  problems u n t i l  

What c a u s e d  h i s  problems a t  t h a t  time c a n n o t  be known, b u t  
t h e r e  appears  t o  be n o  rea l  b a s i s  f o r  r e l a t i n g  them t o  Isis 
1 9 2 9  i ' n j u r y .  T h e  medical e v i d e n c e  is, n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  Dr. 
[A]  ' s  r e p o r t  a g a i n s t  s u c h  a c o n c l u s i o n .  

W i t h  regard t o  t h e  1980 c la im,  you p r o v i d e  n o  r e a l  a r g u m e n t  
f o r  r e l a t i n g  M r .  M c C a r g a r ' s  problems t o  a new injury o c c u r r i n q  
o n  March  2 8 ,  1980. N o r  do t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  f ee l  t h a t  t h e r e  
i s  a n y  b a s i s  f o r  a c c e p t i n g  t h a t  a n y  i n c i d e n t  o n  t h a t  d a t e  
was s i g n i f i c a n t  when M r ,  McCargar was c l e a r l y  h a v i n g  problems 
i n  t h e  p r e v i o u s  month  a n d  t h e  i n c i d e n t  i n  q u e s t i o n  c a u s e d  n o  
immediate d i s a b l e m e n t  o r  n e e d  f o r  f u r t h e r  t r e a t m e n t ,  The  
o p i n i o n s  of D r s .  rD) 
i n c i d e n t  on  March 2 8 ,  1 9 8 0 ,  was n o t  s i g n i f i c a n t ,  

' s  o p i n i o n  i s  t o  

, F e b r u a r y ,  1 9 8 0 ,  when h e  f i r s t  s o u g h t  t r e a t m e n t  f o r  t h e m .  

, - a n d  0 a r e  t h a t  t h e  

I n  t h e  r e s u l t ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  dec ided  t o  r e j e c t  
y o u r  p r o p o s a l s .  T h e r e  w i l l  be n o  c h a n g e  i n  t h e  B o a r d  
d e c i s i o n s  r e s p e c t i n g  t h e  1 9 7 9  a n d  1 9 8 0  c l a i m s .  

. S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board 



F i l e :  82-8144 

July 17, 19Eq 

N r  . W. Flesher 
C ha irnan 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster Highway 

V7C 1C6 
. Richmond, B.C. 

Dear Mr. F l e s h e r :  

Re: Craze McCarnar: C l a i m  Nos. XC79026834 & XC80052233 

I have r e c e i v e d  Mr. A t t e w e l l ' s  le t ter  da ted  A p r i l  19 ,  1984 
r e g a r d i n g  Mr. McCargar. I have considered t h e  Commissioners' 
c o m e n t s  con ta ined  i n  h i s  response  t o  me. 

You have o b j e c t e d  t o  my t e n t a t i v e  recommendation on t h e  fo l lowine  
grounds : 

1. The Commissioners f e e l  t h a t  i f  a s i g n i f i c a n t  back i n j u r y  had 
been s u f f e r e d  by Mr. McCargar on A p r i l  1 7 ,  1979 i t  would have 
been mentioned when t r ea tmen t  was f i r s t  sought or soon 
a f t e r w a r d s .  The employer 's  r e p o r t  is t h e  only document which 
mentions Mr. McCargar's back as being  i n j u r e d  a t  t h a t  time. 

I do n o t  a g r e e  t h a t  M r .  McCargar needed t o  have  s u f f e r e d  a 
s i g n i f i c a n t  back i n j u r y  on A p r i l  17, 1979 i n  o r d e r  t o  danage 
and weaken t h e  anu lus  of the d i s c  as  r e p o r t e d  by D r .  r A l  . 
f a c t ,  Dr,[A! 
back i n j u r y  may n o t  have  been a s i g n i f i c a n t  one when he 
states, "Mr. McCargar's c o n d i t i o n  could have e x i s t e d  for  years 
or months p r i o r  t o  becoming symptomitic,  a g a i n  depending on 
t h e  deg ree  of weakness o r  i n j u r y  from t h e  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  and 
from t h e  v a r i o u s  changes t h a t  occur red  r e s u l t i n g  from 
subsequent  stress and i n j u r i e s  .*' (my emphasis) 

In 
a l lows  for t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  tha t  Mr. McCargar's 

Although t h e  h o s p i t a l  r e p o r t  does n o t  mention Mr. McCargar's 
back i n j u r y ,  M r .  McCargar d id  mention t h a t  he  i n j u r e d  h i s  back 
t o  t h e  employer, who r e p o r t e d  i t  t o  t h e  Board. 
Fir.  McCargar d i d  mention his back i n j u r y  when t rea tment  was 
f i r s t  sought .  

The re fo re ,  
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2 .  Ti le  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  Nr. FlcCargar's tes t imony is 
c o n t r a d i c t o r y  as t o  whether h e  s u f f e r e d  back c o a p l a i n t s  a f t e r  
t h e  1979 i n c i d e n t .  Th i s  c o n t r a d i c t o r y  tes t imony c o n s i s t s  of D 

meno d a t e 2  August 1, 1980 by t h e  C l a i n s  Ad jud ica to r  t h a t  
Nr. McCargar i n d i c a t e d  h i s  back had been sore on and off s i n c e  
t h e  i n j u r y  b u t  h e  had con t inued  t o  work. H i s  p h y s i c i a n  
r e p o r t e d  i n  February ,  1980 t h a t  he  had been c o n p l a i n i n g  of  
r e c u r r i n g  back ache  f o r  10 t o  11 months. However, when 
F i r .  McCargar spoke  t o  t h e  C l a i m s  Admin i s t r a to r  on 
August 21 ,  1980 t h e  Admin i s t r a to r  recorded  t h a t  M r .  McCargar 
had told him t h a t  he  had recovered  from his 1979 i n j u r y  and 
had had no f u r t h e r  pa in .  F u r t h e r ,  he t o l d  t h e  board  of  review 
t h a t  he had  n o  back or l e g  p a i n  u n t i l  s e v e r a l  months a f t e r  t h e  
in j u r y .  

Although t h i s  seems t o  be a n  a p p a r e n t  c o n t r a d i c t i o n  on 
M r .  McCargar's p a r t ,  one must c o n s i d e r  t h e  s t a t e m e n t s  made  by 
b o t h  Mr. McCargar's employer and Mr. McCargar a t  the t i m e  of 
a p p l y i n g  f o r  compensat ion i n  1980. 
kk. McCargar's back had been "bo the r ing  hJm a w h i l e  even s i n c e  
h i s  f i rs t  acc iden t . "  M r .  McCargar h a s  a l s o  s u p p l i e d  
s t a t e m e n t s  by h i s  p a r e n t s  and f e l l o w  employees r e g a r d i n g  t h e j r  
r e c o l l e c t i o n  of  h i s  back  problems between A p r i l  17 ,  1979  a n d  
March 28, 1980,  and how t h e s e  problems a f f e c t e d  h i s  work 
per formance  and a b i l i t i e s ,  and t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he had no 
problems or  l i m i t a t i o n s  w i t h  h i s  work performance p r i o r  t o  his  
f i r s t  work i n j u r y .  Cop ies  of t h e s e  s t a t e m e n t s  are a t t a c h e d .  
These  s t a t e m e n t s  are all c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  Mr. McCargar's 
s t a t e m e n t s  that  a f t e r  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  h e  s u f f e r e d  back 
d i s c o m f o r t  a n d  s t i f f n e s s  and t h a t  g r a d u a l l y  h i s  symptoms 
worsened to the e x t e n t  t h a t  h e  s u f f e r e d  back and l e g  pa ln .  

The employer r e p o r t e d  t h a t  

F u r t h e r ,  there does  n o t  appea r  t o  be a c o n t r a d i c t i o n  between 
Mr. McCargar's s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  h is  back had been sore on and 
off s i n c e  the i n j u r y  and  h i s  s t a t e m e n t  t o  the board  of review 
t h a t  he e x p e r i e n c e d  no back or l e g  p a i n  u n t i l  s e v e r a l  months 
a f t e r  t h e  i n j u r y .  It would appear  t h a t  Fir. McCargar w a s  
making a d i s t i n c t i o n  between s t i f f n e s s  and d i s c o m f o r t  which h e  
f e l t  a t  f irst ,  v e r s u s  p a i n  which h e  f e l t  later.  The fact that: 
h i s  c o n d i t i o n  d e t e r i o r a t e d  i s  suppor t ed  by t h e  s t a t e m e n t s  of 
h i s  p a r e n t s  and Mr, -. Although D r .  -, i n  h i s  
r e p o r t  of Februa ry ,  1982, does  n o t  make t h i s  d i s t i n c t i o n  b u t  
r a t h e r  r e f e r s  t o  Mr. McCargar ' s  " r e c u r r i n g  backache f o r  t h e  
p a s t  10 t o  11 months", t h i s  d i s t i n c t i o n  between p a i n  and 
s o r e n e s s  shou ld  n o t  p l a y  a c r u c i a l  r o l e  i n  de t e rmin ing  whether 
M r .  McCargar w a s  hav ing  symptoms r e l a t i n g  t o  h i s  back a f t e r  
h i s  1979 i n j u r y .  
l a t e r  e x p l a n a t i o n  t h a t  Mr. PlcCargar's c o n d i t i o n  cou ld  have 
e x i s t e d  f o r  y e a r s  or montlis p r i o r  t o  becoming symptomatic 
af t c - r  an  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t .  

T h i s  is e s p e c i a l l y  s o  in view of Dr. [ A 1  ' s  
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The o n l y  d i sc repancy  seems t o  be the A2min i s t r a to r ' s  of 
August 2 1 ,  1980 where he  recorded  t h a t  Hr. McCargar had told 
him t h a t  h e  had recovered  f r o 2  h i s  1 3 7 9  i n j u r y  and had hzd no 
f u r t h e r  pa in .  This statement s t a n d s  o u t  i n  i s o l a t i o n  a g a i n s t  
a l l  t h e  o t h e r  ev idence  on file to t h e  con t r a ry .  Mr. McCargar 
does  n o t  renember making t h i s  s t a t e m e n t .  M r .  McCargar a l s o  
informed ny i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t ,  unlike tiis e a r l i e r  phone c a l l  
t o  t h e  Eoard ma3e on Augtist  1, 1980 when he s t a t e d  t h a t  h i s  
back had been s o r e  on and o f f  s i n c e  t h e  i n j u r y ,  his phone c a l l  
t o  t h e  Board on August 21, 1980 w a s  nadc  f r o m  t h e  h o s p i t a l .  
(He w a s  a d m i t t e d  t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l  on August 15, 1980 where h e  
w a s  t r e a t e d  c o n s e r v a t i v e l y  u n t i l  his s u r g e r y  on 
September 9 ,  1980 and w a s  d i scha rged  on  September 15 ,  1980) .  
H e  f u r t h e r  s tates t h a t  i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  prior t o  s u r g e r y ,  he 
was g i v e n  p a i n  k i l l e r s ,  T h i s  f a c t  may account  f o r  t h e  
r e s u l t i n g  s t a t e m e n t  a t t r i b u t e d  t o  Mr. McCargar, which he does 
n o t  reca l l  making and which i s  t h e  o n l y  i n c o n s i s t e n t  statement 
o n  f i l e  r e g a r d i n g  h i s  problems af ter  t h e  1979 i n j u r y .  
F u r t h e r ,  t h e  board o f  r ev iew a s s e s s e d  Nr- McCargar's 
c r e d i b i l i t y  i n  a l l o w i n g  h i s  appea l  and t h e  Commissioners do 
not d i s p u t e  h i s  c r e d i b i l i t y  i n  t h a t  t h e y  a c c e p t  h i s  evidence 
t h a t  h e  had no problems p r i o r  t o  h i 5  1979 a c c i d e n t .  
p reponderance  of  t h e  ev idence  p o i n t s  t o  t h e  c o n c l u s i o n  t h a t  
M r  . McCargax - d i d  e x p e r i e n c e  problems between h i s  two work 
i n j u r i e s .  T h e r e f o r e ,  i t  i s  my b e l i e f  t h a t  t h i s  one 
i n c o n s i s t e n c y  should  n o t  be h e l d  a g a i n s t  Mr. McCargar. 

The 

3 .  The Commissioners s t a t e  that:  t hey  do  n o t  d i s p u t e  
M r .  McCargar 's  ev idence  t ha t  h e  had n o  problems p r i o r  t o  his 
1979 a c c i d e n t ,  
i n j u r i e s  t o  h i s  back a t  h i s  h e a r i n g  b e f o r e  the b o a r d s  of 
review. D e s p i t e  t h i s  r e c o g n i t i o n ,  t h e  Corrmissioners do not 
f e e l  t h a t  Dr .  c!tl ' s  o p i n i o n  that  h i s  f i n d i n g s  are c o n s i s t e n t  
w i t h  a n  i n j u r y  o c c u r r i n g  i n  A p r i l  1979 i s  of great a s s i s t a n c e  
s i n c e  Dr.r.42 
be c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a back i n j u r y  a t  any  t i m e  p r i o r  t o  the 
surgery ' '  - 

I n  fac t ,  Mr. IfcCargar denied any p rev ious  

a lso s ta tes  t h a t  " the  f i n d i n g s  o f  s u r g e r y  w o u l d  

I f  t h e  Coinmissioners a c c e p t  t h a t  Mr, McCargar had no problems 
p r i o r  t o  h i s  1979 i n c i d e n t ,  and i f  one  c o n s i d e r s  D r .  [ A ]  ' s  
o p i n i o n  t h a t  t h e  f i n d i n g s  o f ' s u r g e r y  would be c o n s i s t e n t  w i th  
a back i n j u r y  a t  any t i m e  p r i o r  t o  t h e  s u r g e r y ,  t h e n  t h e  
l o g i c a l  conc lus ion  i s  t h a t  t h e  only  back i n j u r y  D r .  [ A ]  could 
be r e f e r r i n g  to would be e i t h e r  t h e  back  i n j u r y  o f  1979 o r  t h e  
back  i n j u r y  of 1980,  bo th  of which occur red  a t  work. 

4. The Commissioners s t a t e  i n  t h e i r  l e t t e r  of J u l y  30, 1981 t o  
Mr . McCargar t h a t :  
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" t h e  board of  r e v i e w  concluded t h a t  y o u r  back problems 
w e r e  i n i t i a t e d  by t h e  1979 i n j u r y .  However, i t  appears  t o  
t h e  Cornmissioners t h a t  t h i s  i s  c l e a r l y  c o n t r a r y  t o  the  
a v a i l a b l e  evidt-iice. D r .  c.e 2 's r e p o r t  might provide a 
r easonab le  b a s i s  f o r  such a dec i s ion  i f  t h e  1979 i n j u r y  
was, i n  f a c t ,  ar! i n j u r y  t o  t h e  back. However, t h e  
ev idence  overwhelmingly i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  i t  was b a s i c a l l y  
on ly  a l e f t  hnc2 i n j u r y  and d i d  n o t  a f f e c t  t h e  back. Thjs 
is e v i d e n t  f r o n  t h e  l a c k  of r e f e r e n c e s  t o  a back injury j n  
t h e  r e p o r t s  r ece ived  a t  t h e  t i m e  and t o  t h e  l a c k  o f  
ev idence  of back complaints  experienced between t h a t  t i m e  
and February 1960 and a g a i n  between February 1980 and 
March 28, 1980." 

I had no ted  i n  my letter of  February 9 ,  1984 t h a t  i t  seemed 
i n c o n s i s t e n t  t h a t  a l though  D r . c A ?  
p o s s i b l e  t h a t  M r .  McCargar could-have had no  symptoms i n  the 
p e r i o d  of t i m e  mentioned by  t h e  Commissioners a f t e r  suf fe r in j ;  
a n  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  t o  h i s  back, t h e  Commissioners concluded 
t h a t  the 1979 i n j u r y  d i d  n o t  a f f e c t  his back because  there m:, 
no ev idence  of back compla in ts  i n  t h i s  period of t ime.  The 
Commissioners' conc lus ion  t h a t  t h e  1979 i n - u r y  d i d  n o t  a f f c c l  
h i s  back l e d  t o  t h e i r  d e c i s i o n  t h a t  D r .  14) ' s  r e p o r t  d id  not 
p rov ide  a r easonab le  basis for t h e  board of rev iew d e c i s i o n .  
T h i s  a p p e a r s  t o  be a c i rcu lar  argument, Not-uithstandjng t h i s  
i n c o n s i s t e n c y ,  t h e r e  is indeed  evidence t h a t  Mr, McCargar 
complained of  back problems between h i s  i n i t i a l  i n j u r y  a n d  h j ,  
second i n j u r y  of March 28, 1580. Th i s  evidence c o n s i s t s  of 
the employer 's  r e p o r t  to the Board da ted  J u l y  23, 1980, 
M r .  McCargar's own evidencc , and t h e  a t t ached  s t a t emen t s .  

The Commissoners f u r t h e r  s tate t h a t  Dr. [A] ' s  op in ion  m u s t  be 
c o n t r a s t e d  w i t h  t h e  s p e c i f i c  op in ion  of D r .  [R)  t h a t  t he re  
w a s  no r e l a t i o n s h i p  between Nr. McCargar's compla in ts  and the  
1979 i n j u r y .  - concurred wi th  h e r  op in ion .  

expla ined  why i t  w a s  

5 .  

They f u r t h e r  s t a t e  t h a t  Drs.-and 

Although i t  is t r u e  t h a t  the Board d o c t o r s  were of t h e  opinion 
t h a t  Mr. McCargar's compla in ts  were no t  r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  1979 or 
1980 i n j u r i e s ,  i t  i s  s i g n i f i c a n t  t h a t  t h e s e  d o c t o r s  d i d  n o t  
examine M r .  McCargar bu t  based t h e i r  opinions on a review of 
h i s  f i l e .  I n  c o n t r a s t ,  Dr . [Af  w a s  t he  o r thopaed ic  surgeon 
who performed t h e  s u r g e r y  on Mr. McCargar. 

I n  her memo, Dr. s t a t e s  t h a t ,  based on t h e  informat ion  
i n  M r .  McCargar's f i l e ,  t h e r e  is no a d e q u a t e  ev idence  t o  
suppor t  a r e l a t i o n s h i p  between h i s  i n j u r i e s  a n d  h i s  s)mptoms 
r e q u i r i n g  h o s p i t a l i z a t i o n ,  nor was t h e r e  any appa ren t  
r e l a t i o n s h i p  between t h e  1979 i n c i d e n t  and h i s  problem i n  
February 1980 and J u l y  1980. A t  t h e  time t h a t  D r . r B 3  gave 
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h e r  o p i n i o n ,  she  d i d  no t  h a v e  t he  advantage of c o n s i d e r i n g  
Dr.f-43 ' s  r e p o r t .  Dr.[A,:' ' s  r e p o r t  p r o v i d e d  e v i d e n c e  t h a t  
was n o t  a v a i l a b l e  a t  t h e  t i n e  t h a t  D r .  rF-1 
t h a t  adequa te  ev idence  d i d  n o t  e x i s t  t o  suppor t  such  a 
r e l a t i o n s h i p .  

gave  h e r  o p i n i o n  

F u r t h e r ,  D r .  0 ' s  conc lus ion  (concurred i n  b y  
Dr. 0) t h a t  t h e r e  w a s  no i n d i c a t i o n  of  a n y  r e l a t i o n s h i p  
between tho i n c i d e n t s  and t h e  surgery was p a r t l y  based on 
M r ,  McCargar 's  s t a t e m e n t  t o  t h e  C l a i m s  Admin i s t r a to r  t h a t  he  
had r ecove red  from t h e  1979 i n j u r y  wi thou t  any f u r t h e r  pa in  
( m e m o  5 . )  She n e g l e c t e d  t o  r e f e r  to meno 1 where M r .  McCargar 
i s  quo ted  as s t a t i n g  t h a t  h i s  back had been s o r e  off and on 
s i n c e  t h e  1979 i n j u r y .  T h e r e f o r e ,  h e r  op in ion  does  n o t  appear  
t o  be based  on t h e  t o t a l i t y  of t h e  ev idence .  As s t a t e d  
ea r l i e r ,  t h e  preponderance  of the ev idence  i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  
M r .  McCargar d i d  e x p e r i e n c e  problems between h i s  t w o  work 
i n j u r i e s .  Thus,  t h e  med ica l  op in ions  t o  be ba l anced  a r e  t h o s r  
of Dr. [ F\-! 
t h a t  of D;.[47 
Although D r .  ' A , ?  
M r .  McCargar's 1979 or 1980 work i n j u r i e s  resulted i n  h i s  
s u r g e r y ,  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he s t a t e d  t h a t  an  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  w a s  
r e s p o n s i b l e  and  t h e  boa rds  of review and Commissioners have 
a c c e p t e d  Mr. McCargar's ev idence  t h a t  h e  had no previous  b a d :  
i n j u r i e s ,  t h e  o n l y  p o s s i b l e  i n j u r i e s  p o s s i b l e  a s  be ing  
r e s p o n s i b l e  would b e  work i n j u r i e s .  

, who based  h e r  op in ion  on a f i l e  r ev iew,  and 
, t h e  s p e c i a l i s t  who performed t h e  s u r g e r y ,  

was n o t  s p e c i f i c  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  

6. The Commissioners s t a t e  t h a t  I p rov ide  no r ea l  argument f o r  
r e l a t i n g  Mr. McCargar's problems t o  a new i n j u r y  o c c u r r i n g  on 
March 28, 1980. They f u r t h e r  s t a t e  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  no b a s i s  for 
a c c e p t i n g  t h a t  any  i n c i d e n t  on t h a t  d a t e  was s i g n i f i c a n t  when 
M r .  McCargar w a s  c l e a r l y  hav ing  problems i n  t h e  prev ious  month 
a n d  t h e  i n c i d e n t  i n  q u e s t i o n  caused no immediate d isab lement  
or need for f u r t h e r  treatment.  

The b o a r d s  of r ev iew dec ided  t o  allow Mr. McCargar 's  appea l  on 
t h e  bas i s  of a new i n c i d e n t  i n  March 1980 which aggrava ted  an  
i n j u r y  s u s t a i n e d  i n  1979. 
c o n c l u s i o n .  The f a c t  t h a t  t h e  1980 i n c i d e n t  cause6  no 
immediate d i sab lemen t  or  need' f o r  f u r t h e r  t r e a t m e n t  i s  
e x p l a i n e d  i n  D r .  [ A ?  's r e p o r t  i n  which he  s t a t e s  t h a t  
M r .  McCargar's c o n d i t i o n  cou ld  have been asymptomatic f o r  
y e a r s  or months depending upon t h e  d e g r e e  of weakness o r  
i n j u r y  from t h e  i n i t i a l  i n s u l t  o r  from t h e  v a r i o u s  changes 
t h a t  o c c u r r e d  r e s u l t i n g  from subsequent  stress and i n j u r i e s .  
N o  o t h e r  i n j u r i e s  i n t e r v e n e d  a s  a p o s s i b l e  cause  f o r  
M r .  McCargar * s  gradual.  d i sab lement  and u l t i m a t e  su rge ry .  

I a g r e e  w i t h  t h e i r  r e a s o n i n g  and 
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B a s e d  on th.2 :!!KIVS, I have conclud-.-ti t h a t  t h e  Board's decision to 
disallow Mr. PlcCiirgar's 1980 claia as a new incident (which 
aggravated h i s  prs-zxisting condition resulting from h i s  1979 
accident) was unjast. 
recommend that  ttiz Board accept Kr. McCargar's 1980 claim. 

Pursuant to  S.22 of the  Ombudsman Act, I 

I would appreciate your response  to ny recommendation at your 
earliest convenience. 

Yours sincerely, 

, 
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June lst, 1984 

To k h a n  It May Concern: 

I have knm Craig McCarger since he started mrking f G r  c. in 1978 and had not noticed any 
problem or l h u t a t i o n s  of work duties w i t h  Craig until 
a work related accident involvrng Cra ig  in the spring of 
1979. 

Shortly after the accident, Craig started walkmg Witn a 
noticeable 1i.q. Also he started complaining a b u t  back 
problems. He s a t  mth considerable discanfort an11 a t  
times was forced to miss w r k  because his back was so 
sore which prevent& him froii driving cars w h i c h  was one 
of his job requirments. 

Crzig was also restricted 
as bunpers, fenders, etc. 

from l i f t ing  heavy i t e m s  such 
because of his back problems. 
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D r .  K a r l  A .  F r i e d m a n n ,  Ombudsman, 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a ,  
#202 - 1 2 7 5  West S i x t h  Avenue, 
V a n c o u v e r ,  B .C. 
V6H 1 A 6  

Dear  Dr. Fr iedmann :  

RE:  C r a i g  McCARGAR 
C l a i m  No. XC79026834 & XC80052233 

Your l e t t e r  of J u l y  1 7 ,  1984, h a s  been  c o n s i d e r e d  by t h e  
C o m m i s s i o n e r s .  

The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  a c c e p t  t h a t  t h e r e  a r e  e v i d e n c e  and  arg i~ment  5 
i n  f a v o u r  of t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  p o s i t i o n ,  n o t a b l y  D r .  r A ]  ' s  
r e p o r t  a n d  t h e  e v i d e n c e  s u g g e s t i n g  c o n t i n u i t y  of symptoms 
f r o m  t h e  1979 i n c i d e n t  onwards .  However,  none of y o u r  argu,sicn1 s 
can a v o i d  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  a l l  b u t  one of t h e  r e p o r t s  r e c e i v e d  
a t  t h e  t i m e  of t h e  1979 i n j u r y  d e s c r i b e  a l e f t  hand  i n j u r y  
a l o n e ,  t h a t  t h e r e  was n o  m e d i c a l  c o n f i r m a t i o n  of back p r o b l  cic15 

u n t i l  F e b r u a r y  1 9 8 0 ,  and  t h a t  t h e  t h r e e  Board Medical  A d v i  S C I - L  

g a v e  o p i n i o n s  c o n t r a r y  t o  t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  p o s i t i o n .  The re  
i s  a l s o ,  n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  y o u r  e x p l a n a t i o n s  i n  p o i n t  2 of 
y o u r  l e t t e r ,  a c o n f l i c t  i n  Mr. M c C a r g a r ' s  e v i d e n c e  r e g a r d i n g  
w h e t h e r  h 6  d i d ,  i n  f a c t ,  h a v e  a c o n t i n u i t y  of symptoms. 

t h a t  t h e  Board  had  no  r e a s o n a b l e  b a s i s  f o r  i t s  d e c i s i o n .  
. T h e  Commiss ione r s  d o  n o t  b e l i e v e  i t  c a n  b e  r e a s o n a b l y  con tended  

You r e l y  s t r o n g l y  on D r .  r!\l ' s  r e p o r t .  I t  seems t o  t h e  
C o m m i s s i o n e r s ,  however ,  t h a t  t h e  e s s e n c e  of t h a t  r e p o r t  
i s  t h a t  t h e  c l a i m a n t ' s  b a c k  c o n d i t i o n  c o u l d  have  o r i g i n a l  e d  
a t  a n y  t i m e  i n  t h e  p a s t  w i t h  a n  i n j u r y  of which h e  was unaware 
a n d  w i t h o u t  a n y  symptoms d e v e l o p i n g  f o r  some t i m e .  T h i s  
r e p o r t  would n o t  seem t o  a s s i s t  M r .  McCargar m a t e r i a l l y  
b e c a u s e  i t  means t h a t ,  w i t h o u t  r e a l i z i n g  i t ,  h e  cou ld  a t  
any  t i m e  have  s u f f e r e d  a work or non-work i n j u r y  p r i o r  o r  
s u b s e q u e n t  t o  t h e  1979 i n c i d e n t  which d i d  no t  immedia t e ly  
p r o d u c e  symptoms b u t  was t h e  c a u s e  of h i s  subsequen t  c o n d i t i o n .  
I t  i s ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  s p e c u l a t i v e  t o  f i x  u p o n  t h e  A p r i l  1 9 7 9  
i n c i d e n t  a s  t h e  s i g n i f i c a n t  o n e .  T h i s  i s  p a r t i c u l a r l y  t h e  
c a s e  when t h e  e v i d e n c e  ove rwhe lmlng ly  i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  i t  
was a l e f t  hand  i n j u r y  o n l y .  

con t i n u  cd . . . . . /2 
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1 2  F e b r u a r y  1985  

J i t h  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  March 1980 i n c i d e n t ,  t h e  e v i d e n c e  i n d i c a t e s  
. h a t  h l r .  McCargar was h a v i n g  p r o b l e m s  t h e  p r e v i o u s  month,  
ind t h a t  t h a t  i n c i d e n t  d i d  not i m m e d i a t e l y  c a u s e  h i m  t o  
seek  t r e a t m e n t  o r  l o s e  t i m e  for work .  The Commiss ione r s  
: o n s i d e r  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  n o  r e a l  b a s i s  f o r  a c c e p t i n g  t h e  1980 
c l a i m .  T h e i r  comments r e g a r d i n g  Dr.[AT 
t o  t h i s  c l a i m  a r e  t h e  same a s  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  t h e  1979  c l a i m .  

's r e p o r t  w i t h  r e s p e c t  

In c o n c l u s i o n ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  s e e  n o  r e a s o n  why t h e y  
s h o u l d  o v e r t u r n  t h e  p r i o r  Board  d e c i s i o n  on t h e  c l a i m  and 
a c c e p t  y o u r  recorrmendat i o n .  

Yours t r u l y ,  

N .  C .  A T T E N E L L  
S e c r e t a r y  t o  t h e  Board  

NCA : md 
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File:  83-50155 

tlarch 14,  1984 

Mr . W. Flesher 
Chairman 
Workers’ Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster Highway 
Richmond, B.C.  
V 7 C  1 C 6  

Dear Mr. Flesher: 

Re: Complaint of Terrence Forrest, Claim No. C 7 0 0 5 8 1 7 7  

I am nearing completion of my investigation of th i s  complaint. 
Pursuant t o  section 16 of the Ombudsman A c t ,  7. enclose m y  
preliminary r epor t  which sets out the grounds upon which I may 
make a recomaendation. 

I would  appreciate  your comments. 

Yours sincerely, 

Encl. (1) 

Karl A. Friedmann / Ombudsman 

.., 
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Y I :E I ,  T M T ?i AF,Y REP (IKT _ _  _ _ _  

Dursuant to St~ction 16 of the 035cdsmsn Act 

Oppor tunlty to make representations 

16. Vriere it appears t o  the  Onbudsman that there may be sufficient 
grounds for nakinp, a r c p o r t  or recomcendation under this Act 
that nay adversely affect an authorj ty or person, the 
Ocbudsan shall inforn the authority o r  person of the grounds 
and shall give the authority or person the opportunity to make 
representations, either orally or in writing at the discretion 
of the Osbudsman, before he decides the matter. 

- Ombudsman Act, R.S.B.C. 1979, c. 306 

Complainant: Nr . Terrence Forrest 
Authority: Workers' Compensation Board 

Background: 

M r .  Forrest injured the right s i d e  of h i s  lower back and right hip 
on August 17, 1970, when he tried to push a l o a d  of 12 panels of 
plywood, which had become jammed. In bracing h i s  feet to push the 
load, he wrenched his back. For two months after the injury, he was 
treated by a chiropractor who reported to the Board that he found 
M r .  Forrest to be suffering from general soreness throughout his 
back, particularly affecting his lower back and right hip. 

, admitted to the Board Rehabilitation Clinic on November 10, 1970 and 
discharged on December 17, 1970. At the time of his discharge from 
the Rehabilitation Clinic, it was noted by the examining physician 
that Mr. Forrest was left with soae chronic back ache in the lower 
lumbar region which did not seen to interfere with the mobility of 
his spine, and that he would require some assistance in obtaining a 
suitable job in the plant where he had been employed for nearly five 
years. 

He was 

Nr. Forrest attempted to return to work on January 11, 1971, but was 
only able to work three days. suggested that Mr, Forrest 
start working a f o u r  hour shift and gradually work up to a full 
shift. 14r. Forrest worked a four hour shift commencing February 16, 
1971 and by March 1, 1971 started an eight hour shift. He continued 
working an eight hour shift until September 30, 1971, when he ceased 
working. 

Dr'. [A]  
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Preliminary Report 

On October 1, 1971 klr. Forrest reported to the Board that he was 
h a v i n g  further trouble with his back and wished to re-open his 
claim. The adjudicator denied Mr. Forrest's request to have his 
claim re-opened a s  he felt that Mr. Forrest had almost completely 
recovered fron his August 17, 1970 injury. H i s  opinion was based on 
the fact that Mr. Forrest returned to h i s  full duties on March 1, 
1971 and because medical reports on file before he returned to work 
lid not indicate any remaining condition tha t  would have rendered 
h i m  incapable of carrying out his duties. 

Mr. Forrest appealed this decision to the boar& of review. 
denied his appeal on the basis that this was not his first attack of 
generalized back pain; and that they could not attribute such 
generalized problems to the act of pushing against a load of 
veneer- Since 1972, Mr- Forrest has been in receipt of Handicapped 
Persons Income Assistance from the hinistry of Human Resources as a 
result of his spinal problems and deafness in one ear. 

They 

Last Decision Level: 

The last decision was that of the boards of review dated Decenber 
22, 1971- 
the Commissioners. 

Nr. Forrest's claim has not previously been considered by 

Issue: 

Did the Board and the boards of review err in refusing to re-open 
Mr- Forrest's claim? 

- 

Employer Notification: 

The employer is i-k and is experience rated- 
Therefore, I have notified the employer of DY findings and possible 
recommendation. 

Grounds for Adverse Findings: 

1- 

.. 

The adjudicator denied Kr. Forrest's claim because he felt that 
Mr. Forrest had almost Completely recovered from his August 17, 
1970 injury as he had returned to his full duties on PIarch 1, 
1971, and because medical reports on file bef0r.e he returned to 
work did not indicate any remaining condition that would have 
rendered him incapable of carrying out his duties. 

2. The above opinion of the adjudicator does not seem to have been 
completely shared by Board medical staff. For exaople: 

a) On October 19, 1970 the Board doctor suggested to 
Mr. Forrest, after examining him, that he should exercise as 
directed by P.T. for the rest of his life. This suggestion 

la 
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does not  convey the impression t h a t  FL. F o r r e s t  was expected 
t o  recover  completely f r o m  h i s  i n j u r y ,  e s p e c i a l l y  i n  vie3 of 
t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he s u f f e r e d  no lower back problems p r i o r  to h i s  
i n  j u r y .  

b )  On December 1 7 ,  1970 the  exanining doc to r  a t  t h e  
R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  C l i n i c  wrote  t h e  following: 

"It would appear  t h a t  t he  workman i s  l e f t  w i t h  
some chron ic  back ache i n  t h e  love r  lumbar 
r e g i o n  which does no t  seem t o  i n t e r f e r e  w i t h  
m o b i l i t y  of the s p i n e  on examination, H i s  
c o n d i t i o n  is e v i d e n t l y  becoming chronic  and i n  
view of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he i s  now under t h e  care 
o f  D r .  rA7  who vill be  s e e i n g  him a g a i n  on 

L -  December 28th,  i t  could go on i n d e f i n i t e l y  ... I 
f e e l  t h a t  he w i l l  r e q u i r e  some a s s i s t a n c e  i n  
o b t a i n i n g  a s u i t a b l e  job i n  the plant  where he 
h a s  been employed f o r  n e a r l y  5 years  and would 
l i k e  a R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  Consul tan t  t o  s e e  him i n  
t h a t  r ega rd .  ** (my emphasis) 

* 
If t h e  d o c t o r  f e l t  t h a t  Nr. F o r r e s t  would recover  completely 
from t h e  e f f e c t s  of h i s  i n j u r i e s ,  i t  i s  d i f f i c u l t  t o  understand 
why he would sugges t  t ha t ' )& .  F o r r e s t  change t h e  type  of work he 
had been doing p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n j u r y .  

3. D t .  @] stated in h i s  r e p o r t  of December 23, 1970 that: 

"He states that  a t  t h e  p re sen t  time h i s  p a i n  i s  
a lmos t  and sometimes completely absent  on 
rising in the morning. 
g e t t i n g  up, however, t h e  pa in  comes on a g a i n  

Within h a l f  a n  hour of 

and con t inues  as t h e  day proceeds.  The p a i n  i s  
a m r a v a t e d  on s i t t i n g  and on walking." (my 
emphasis ) 

' .  
Dr. [A )  
improve s a t i s f a c t o r i l y  and t h a t  he  would e v e n t u a l l y  r e t u r n  t o  
h i s  j o b  wi thou t  any s u r g i c a l  procedure being necessa ry ,  

concluded %hat  he  would expect  t h a t  Mr. For res t  would 

4 .  According t o  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  s t a t e c e n t ,  taken on November 5 ,  1971, 
a f t e r  an i n i t i a l  two weeks of l i g h t  work on a f o u r  hour d a i l y  
b a s i s ,  Nr. F o r r e s t  then  turned  s h e e t s  on the  sp reade r  on an 
e i g h t  hour b a s i s .  H e  s t a t e d  t h a t  he walked approximately eight  
m i l e s  a s h i f t  on t h a t  job.  He has t o l d  my i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t  
much of the  walking was i n  f a c t  running.  The re fo re ,  i t  would 
appea r  t h a t  t h e  job  Flr. F o r r e s t  was perforninp, r equ i r ed  
movements which D r  . [ A ]  
Hr. F o r r e s t ' s  pain.  

noted on December 23, 1980 aggravated 
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5 .  Nr. For;est a l s o  informed my i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t  after two weeks 
of doing " l i g h t  work" on a four  hours  d a i l y  basis, he was to ld  
by t h e  employer 's  Personnel Nanager t h a t  he e i t h e r  r e t u r n  t o  an 
e i g h t  hour s h i f t  or r e t u r n  t o  compensation. Mr. F o r r e s t  decided 
t o  r e t u r n  to an e i g h t  hour s h i f t  because he was managing with a 
four hour shift and because he states t h a t .  a Soard employee t.oSd 
him that i f  a problem recurred, h i s  c la im would be re-opened. 
He s ta tes  t h a t  i n  his job as a s h e e t  t u r n e r ,  he was i n s t r u c t e d  
by the foreman to have o t h e r  employees push any l oads .  
s t a t e d  he pushed some s m a l l  l o a d s ,  f i r s t  on a r e l i e f  basis, and  
t h e n  s t e a d i l y  f o r  t h e  l a s t  three. months. 

He 

A phone call from t h e  employer, recorded jn a memo da ted  
February 18, 1971, two days a f t e r  Mr. Forrest s t a r t e d  on four 
hour shifts, demonst ra tes  t h a t  the employer was inconvenienced 
by t h e  f o u r  hour s h i f t .  The memo states it, par t :  

"It w a s  agreed t h a t  t h i s  man was considered 
p a r t i a l  d i s a b l e d  and t h a t  a fou r  b o u r  day d id  
appear  reasonable .  Nr . - i nd ica t ed  he 
would t r y  t o  work something o u t .  
t h a t  p u t t i n g  him on a fou r  hour day created 
many problems as this m i l l  works s h i f t  work 
t h a t  is, a full eight-hour s h i f t  and not j u s t  
four-hour sh i f t s .  He s a i d  he would work 
something o u t  w i th  t h e  c la imant  and we w i l l  be 
advised  .'* 

He i nd ica t ed  

I i n f e r  t h a t  t h e  employer p r e f e r r e d  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  r e t u r n  t o  
an kight hour s h i f t  or leave work. 

. 6 .  There remains t h e  q u e s t i o n  of Mr. Forrest's condition between 
Harch 1, 1971 and l a t e  August, 1971, and the  fact  t h a t  lfr. 
F o r r e s t  sought  no medical  a t t e n t i o n  during t h i s  per iod .  
following is r e l e v a n t :  

The 

a) Although Mr. F o r r q s t  s t a t e d  on November 5 ,  197.: t h a t  he d i d  
not seek medical a t t e n t i o n  during t h i s  p e r i o d ,  in his answcr 
t o  the a d j u d i c a t o r ' s  l e t t e r  of October 20, 1971 he s t a t e d  
t h a t  he sought  medical  a t t e n t i o n  on March 3, 1971 from h i s  
c h i r o p r a c t o r .  

b) My i n v e s t i g a t o r  spoke wi th  D r .  [8] , Mr. Forrest's doctor .  
H e  has treated Mr. Forrest since October 1969. He stated 
t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  is not  a conplaining t y p e  of person, but 
would tend t o  "put up" with p a i n  u n t i l  i t  go t  intolerable- 
H e  s t a t e s  t h a t  i n  fact Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  wife, rather than 
Mr. Forrest h imse l f ,  came t o  see Dr. [@] a few times t o  
say t h a t  M t .  Forrest was suffering from pain.  
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c )  Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  r t . l u c t n n c e  t o  c o n s u l t  a doc to r  for anyth ing  IJUL 
comple te ly  disab1ip.g pa in  nay  be p a r t i z l l y  due  t o  t h e  
e x p e r i e n c e  he d ~ r . c r i h = d  i n  t h e  statemen1 t ie  gave t o  the Board 
on November 5 ,  1971. He s t a t e d  t h a t  he te lephoned D r .  ,'.A; 
j u s t  a f t e r  he  r e t u r n e d  t o  work (probably i n  J anua ry ,  1971) ,  
and had missed a d a y  of  work because of h i s  back.  H i s  
u n d e r s t a n d i n g  f r o n  h i s  union r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  w a s  t h a t  if h i s  

61 , b u t  w a s  t o l d  t h a t  h i s  word t h a t  he 
back bo the red  h i m ,  
h e  c o n t a c t e d  Dr. 
had missed work coul-  n o t  be taken  over t h e  te lephone .  H i s  
w i f e  te lephoned D r  - 
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  back as h u r t i n g  him, and D r .  [A] suggested 
t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  make an appointment .  
and t h e n  s t a t e d  t h a t  h e  was zclvised by Dr. t h a t  he d i d  
n o t  have  t ime t o  b o t h e r  w i t h  " t h a t  type  of t ing"  and that  h e  
could n o t  have Mr. F o r r e s t  coDing i n  everyday i n  a l i t t l e  
p a i n .  

sl ioald l e t  h i s  doc to r  know. The re fo re ,  

sone t ime l a t e r  t o - a d v i s e  t h a t  LA' 
Mr. F o r r e s t  d id  so,  

P i  Mr. F o r r e s t  s t a t e d  h e  neve r  r e t u r n e d  t o  or phoned Dr. 
a f t e r  t h i s  i n c i d e n t .  M r .  F o r r e s t  s a i d  i n  his s t a t e m e n t  t .a t  he  
d i d  not t h i n k  t o  see a n o t h e r  doc to r  because t h e r e  was n o t  m u c h  
d i s c o m f o r t  a f t e r  t h a t ,  and  because h e  ' j u s t  "got  f e d  up" a n d  
" s t u c k  i t  o u t  a t  work". 

7 .  I n  i ts  d e c i s i o n  l e t t e r  of  December 2 2 ,  1 9 7 1  t o  Mr. F o r r e s t ,  t h e  
boa rds  of r ev iew s t a t e d :  

"We cannot  f e e l  t h a t  any  s e r i o u s  i n j u r y  t o  your 
back occur red  on August 1 7 ,  1970,  when you f e l t  
some p a i n  i n  t h e  r i g h t  lumbar a r e a  w h i l e  
a t t e m p t i n g  t o  push a l o a d  of  veneer .  The claim 
was a c c e p t e d  and p a i d  on t h e  basis of  a s t r a i n  
t o  t h e  lumbar area as a r e s u l t  of t h i s  a n d  we 
feel  t h a t  t h i s  c o n s t i t u t e d  t h e  full measure of 
Board r e s p o n s i b i l i t y .  Th i s  op in ion  is based  on 
t h e  fac t  t h a t  t h i s  w a s  not t h e  f i r s t  a t t ack  of  
such  g e n e r a l i z e d  back p a i n  for which you have 
been t r e a t e d  and o t h e r s  have been 
non-compensable. It would appear  t h a t  your 
compla in t s  range  f r o b  p a i n  i n  t h e  lower neck t o  
pa in  a s  low in- t h e  s a c r o i l i a c  a r e a .  
a t t r i b u t e  such g e n e r a l i z e d  p r o b l e a - t o  the  act  
of pushing a g a i n s t  a l o a d  of veneer ."  

We cannot  

8 .  From a rev iew of Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  claim f i l e ,  i t  a p p e a r s  t h a t  m st 
of t h e  r e f e r e n c e s  t o  " g e n e r a l i z e d  back pain" a r e  from Ilr.[C] 
t h e  c h i r o p r a c t o r  who t r e a t e d  Mr. F o r r e s t .  Mr. Forrest maintains  
t h a t  a f t e r  his work i n j u r y ,  he  conpls ined  o n l y  of h i s  low back.  
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My inves t iga  o contacted Mr. [ c ]  t o  c l a r i f y  the  discrepancy 
between Hr. kc3 ' s  r epor t s  that M r .  Forrest  had "generalized 
back pain" and Mr. For res t ' s  statement tha t  he only complained 
of low back pain. M r .  [c .  
a s  a ch i roprac tor ,  i f  M r .  Forrest  complained of problem w i t h  
h i s  back, he also had problem i n  h i s  neck. Therefore,  
according t o  Mr.[c] 
r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  low back, he had a problem with h i s  neck whether 
he knew i t  o r  not. H e  s t a t e d  tha t  although i t  was the  low back 
which d isab led  Mr. Forres t  and wh ch was the focus of h i s  
complaints, the  bas i s  fo r  Mr. [C.i report ing t h a t  he had 
general ized back problems w a s  h i s  knowledge t h a t  everyone w i t h  a 
low back problem t h e o r e t i c a l l y  ha5 a neck problem. 

9. The only o the r  references,  other  than those of Mr. 

explained t h a t ,  from h i s  viewpoint 

, although Mr. Forrest ' s  bas ic  complaint 

general ized back pain were: 

a )  Memo dated October 19, 1970 - D r .  - s t a t e d  "he has also 
noted s i n c e  the  ch i rop rac t i c  treatments t h a t  he  has sozie p a j n  
now between the scapulae and a l s o  i n  the c e r v i c a l  spine", ( iny  
emphasis ) 

b)  Report from Dr. [8] dated Rovernber 1 6 ,  1970 r e f e r s  to pain 
between shoulder blades.  

c)  Treatment Record a t  Board Rehabi l i ta t ion C l i n i c  - November 
10, 1970: "He has tenderness between the scapulae medial t o  
the  l e f t  scapulae d i s t a l  third." 

10. There is no fu r the r  re ference  t o  anything but M r .  For res t ' s  low 
back by both t h e  Board and outs ide  doctors u n t i l  October 6 ,  
1971, when Kr. [C] 
and sore ,  w i t h  impaired mobil i ty  of neck, lower back and legs". 
Mr.  Fo r re s t ,  i n  h i s  ex tens ive  statement of November 5 ,  1971, 
only r e f e r s  to low back, low h i p  and l e g  pain as h i s  complaints. 

again reported "whole back and neck spasmtd 

11. Therefore, i t  would appear that the references to eneralized 
back pain by M r .  [C] 'were y d e  because of Hr. [Cj ' s  
ch i rop rac t i c  knowledge of t h e  interconnection between the neck 
and the rest of the  spine r a t h e r  than because of any  spec i f i c  
complaints on the  pa r t  of Mr. Forrest  concerning h i s  neck. 
Further ,  i t  would appear t h a t  Mr. Forres t  d i d  no t  note any 
ce rv ica l  o r  scapulae pain u n t i l  he had had ch i rop rac t i c  
treatment t o  t h i s  a r ea ,  and t h a t  these symptoms d id  not manifest 
themselves a t  the  time of the  injury.  Moreover, the  symptoms 
ceased s h o r t l y  a f t e r  ch i roprac t ic  treatments were discontinued 
a s  can be seen by the f a c t  t h a t  there  a r e  no more references to  
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1 2  - 

13. 

14. 

t h e s e  ;Ireas a f t e r  t h i s  t ime.  A. well, Dr. fg] 
i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t  t h e  shou lde r  t11,~de problem which h e  repor ted  
on Novenber 1 6 ,  1970 was n o t  a s i g n i f i c a n l  f a c t o r  i n  prevent jng  
Plr. F o r r c s t  from r e t u r n i n g  t o  uorl.. 

D r .  rf!] 
t h a t  Mrl F o r r e s t  e v e r  r ecove red  from h i s  1970 i n j u r y  because h e  
worked w i t h  g r e a t  d i f f i c u l t y .  He s t a t e d  t h a t ,  i n  h i s  op in ion ,  
t h e r e  w a s  no r e a s o n  t o  f e e l  t h a t  t h e  1970 i n j u r y  was n o t  
s i g n i f i c a n t .  

i n f o m e d  my 
1 

also informed ny investigatox t h a t  he was not  SUYC'  

I n  a memo d a t e d  December 2 2 ,  1971 t h e  boards of review s t a t e d  
t h a t  " t h e  o r i g i n  of  Fir.  F o r r e s t ' s  g e n e r a l i z e d  back  pain i s  
anybody's guess ,  b u t  q u i t e  p o s s i b l y  o f t e n  a re  ( s i c )  due t o  
o f f - the - job  a c t i v i t y .  T h i s  was t h e  case i n  J a n u a r y ,  1970." 

The boa rds  of  rev iew w e r e  a p p a r e n t l y  r e f e r r i n g  t o  n o t a t i o n s  i n  
t h e  f i l e  t h a t ,  p r i o r  t o  h i s  work a c c i d e n t ,  MK. F o r r e s t  had 
s u f f e r e d  a p a i n f u l  neck i n  Janua ry ,  1970 when he s tepped  i n  il 
h o l e  and f e l l  f l a t .  L'hen t h 2  c h i r o p r a c t o r  i n i t i a l l y  r epor t ed  t o  
t h e  Board r e g a r d i n g  Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  August 1.7, 1970 a c c i d e n t ,  he 
s t a t e d  t h a t  h e  had t r e a t e d  Fi r .  F o r r e s t  f o r  a s i m i l a r  c o n d i t i o n  
i n  J a n u a r y  t o  March, 1970. Kr, [c. advised my i n v e s t i g a t o r  
t h a t  a l t h o u g h  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  neck would have been h i s  main focus  
o f  a t t e n t i o n ,  a t  t h a t  t ine ,  h e  would have checked h i s  e n t i r e  
s p i n e .  As i n d i c a t e d  ea r l i e r ,  k.[C] ' s  v iewpo in t  of t h e  c l o s e  
r e l a t i o n s h i p  between t h e  nzck ar?d t h e  whole  s p i n e  would account  
f o r  h i s  s e e i n g  t h e  problems of J a n u a r y ,  1970 a n d  of August, 1370 
as  r e l a t e d ,  even though Nr. F o r r e s t  complained of pa in  i n  t h e  
neck  from t h e  f i rs t  i n j u r y  and  of p a i n  i n  h i s  l o w  back from t h e  
second i n j u r y .  * 

T h e r e f o r e ,  t h e r e  is no ev idence  t o  suppor t  t he  s t a t e m e n t  t h a t  
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  g e n e r a l i z e d  back p a i n  is p o s s i b l y  due t o  of f - the- job  
a c t i v i t y .  
p a i n ,  excep t  f o r  a t h r e e  week p e r i o d  a f t e r  h i r o p r a c t i c  t r ea tmen t s  
t o  h i s  neck, Secondly,  accord ing ,  t o  Dr. [A) 
2 3 ,  1970,  c h i r o p r a c t i c  t r e a t m e n t  eased t h e  pain a t  t h i s  t i n e .  

F i r s t l y ,  Mr. F o r r e s t  d i d  n o t  complain o f  g e n e r a l i z e d  back 

' s  l e t t e r  of December 
/ 

Eased on t h e  above, I may conclude  t h a t  t he  Board's d e c i s i o n  t o  
r e f u s e  t h e  re-opening of Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  c l a im i n  Oc tobe r ,  1971 was 
u n j u s t  as  i t  f a i l e d  t o  c o n s i d e r  r e l e v a n t  f a c t o r s .  These r e l e v a n f  
f a c t o r s  i n c l u d e  t h e  f a c t s  t h a t  t h e  Board doc to r  f e l t  t h a t  
Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  c o n d i t i o n  was beconin2 ch ron ic  upon h i s  d i scha rge  from 
t h e  X e h a b i l i t a t i o n  C l i n i c ;  t h a t  he  r e tu rned  t o  a j o b  t h a t  
n e c e s s i t a t e d  walk ing  e i g h t  rni lcs  a l a y ,  a movement which D r .  
no:c.d aggrav,?ted Hr. F o r r e s t ' s  p a i n ;  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  d i d  not 
co:.plain of i e n e r a l i z e d  back p a i n  except  for n t h r c e  week per iod;  
arid t h a t  t h e r e  is no ev idence  t o  sugges t  t h a t  h i s  p a i n  I J ~ ~ S  due to  
of f - the -  job z : c t i v i t y .  

CAI 
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Preliminary Kcport 

Possible Reconmendation: 

I have not yet reached a final conclusion on this complaint, and I 
would a p p r e c i a t e  your comments on the grounds s e t  o u t  a b o v e .  T a m  
considering the following reconn3ndation: 

That the Board re-open Mr. Forrest's 1970 claim effective 
October 1, 1971 and assess him for a disability award.  

fd4 Karl A. Friedmann -ELL- 
Onbudsnan / March 14, 1984 
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Ombudsman * ' . I . .._. . 
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B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a  

D e a r  D r ,  F r i e d m a n n :  

R e :  T e r r e n c e  FORREST 
C l a i m  No. C70058177  

Your l e t t e r  of March 14, 1984, has b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  b y  t h e  
C o m m i s s i o n e r s .  

You a r e  q u e s t i o n i n g  t h e  B o a r d  of R e v i e w ' s  d e c i s i o n  of 
December 2 2 ,  1 9 7 1 ,  n o t  t o  r e - o p e n  t h e  claim for  problems 
e x p e r i e n c e d  i n  October,  1 9 7 1 .  Mr. F o r r e s t  w a s  pa id  wage 
l o s s  f r o m  A u g u s t  1 7 ,  1 9 7 0 ,  t h e  d a t e  of h i s  i n j u r y  u n t i l  
F e b r u a r y  28, 1 9 7 1 ,  when a f t e r  a p e r i o d  o f  l i g h t  w o r k ,  h e  
r e t u r n e d  t o  n o r m a l  e m p l o y m e n t  u n t i l  September 30 ,  1 9 7 1 .  
The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  a r e  u n a b l e  to agree  w i t h  your  p r o p o s a l s  
t h a t  f u r t h e r  b e n e f i t s  be p a i d .  

I n  p a r a g r a p h s  2 t o  3 o n  pages 2 a n d  3 of y o u r  l e t t e r ,  you  
q u o t e  from t h r e e  d o c t o r s '  r e p o r t s .  You r e l y  o n  t h e s e  
r e p o r t s  t o  c o n t r a d i c t  t h e  C l a i m s  A d j u d i c a t o r ' s  dec i s ion  
t h a t  M r .  F o r r e s t  h a d  r e c o v e r e d  f r o m  h i s  i n j u r y  b y  March 
1, 1 9 7 1 .  I t  seems t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  t h e s e  q u o t a t i o n s  
do  n o t  s u p p o r t  y o u r  p o s i t i o n  s i n c e  t h e y  were all made i n  
1 9 7 0 ,  more t h a n  2 m o n t h s  p r i o r  t o  M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  r e t u r n  
t o  w o r k .  F u r t h e r m o r e ,  i n  D r .  [A] 's r epor t  of December 
23, 1 9 7 0 ,  t h e  l a s t  of t h e  r e p o r t s  q u o t e d ,  i t  i s ,  a s  you 
n o t e ,  s t a t e d  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  wou ld  r e c o v e r  a n d  r e t u r n  t o  
h i s  j ob .  

. - . / 2  
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yo, LA I s u g g e s t  i n  p a r a g r a p h s  4 and 5 of y o u r  l e t t e r  t h t j t  t h c  
n a t u r e  of M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  work  i n  t h e  p e r i o d  f o l l o w i n g  I J , a r c h ,  
1971, w o u l d  h a v e  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  c o n d i t i o n .  Hoi,;ever, i t  
a p p s a r s  t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  t h i s  is p u r e l y  s p e c u l a t j  ve. 
NK-. F o r r e s t  has, a s  f a r  a s  t h e y  c a n  s e e ,  n e v e r  r e f e r r e d  
h i s  l a t e r  cornplaints  t o  h i s  work i n  t h i s  p e r i o d .  T h e y  r e f e r  
y o u  i n  p a r t i c u l a r  t o  page 4 o f  t h e  i n t e r v i e w  w i t h  him o n  
November  5 ,  1 9 7 1 ,  w h e r e  h e  s t a t e s  t h a t .  t h e r e  was n o  new 
i n c i d e n t  o r  o c c u r r e n c e  i n  t h i s  p e r i o d .  H e  w a s  j u s t  d o i n g  
h i s  n o r m a l  d u t i e s .  

The  C o r n m i s s i o n e r s  n o t e  y o u r  e x p l a n a t i o n s  i n  p a r a g r a p h  G of 
y o u r  l e t t e r  r e g a r d i n g  M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  f a i l u r e  t o  s e e k  m e d i c a l  
t r e a t m e n t  i n  t h e  per iod f o l l o w i n g  M a r c h ,  1 9 7 1 ,  b u t  do not. 
f ee l  t h a t  t h i s  w o u l d  j u s t i f y  a n y  c h a n g e  i n  t h e  b o a r d  of 
r e v i e w ' s  d e c i s i o n .  They  w o u l d  a g a i n  d r a w  y o u r  a t t e n t i o n  to 
t h e  i n t e r v i e w  w i t h  M r .  F o r r e s t  i n  November, 1 9 7 1 ,  p a g e s  3 to 
2 ,  w h e r e  h e  s t a t e s  t h a t  p r i o r  t o  t h e  e n d  of A u g u s t ,  3.971, h e  
h a d  o n l y  v e r y  o c c a s i o n a l  ;,sin. It w o u l d  seem more reasonable 
t o  c o n c l u d e  t h a t  h e  d i d  n o t  s e e k  t r e a t m e n t  b e c a u s e  h e  
e x p e r i e n c e d  no  r e a l  problems t h a t  w o u l d  h a v e  r e q u i r e d  h i m  t o  
do so. 

~ I n  p a r a g r a p h s  7 t o  11 of y o u r  l e t t e r ,  you  d e a l  w i t h  t h e  
Board of R e v i e w ' s  c o n c l u s i o n  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  h a d  g e n e r a j j z e d  
b a c k  problems, n o t  res t r ic ted t o  t h e  low b a c k ,  w h i c h  cou1.d 
n o t  b e , t h e  r e s u l t  of t h e  A u g u s t ,  1 9 7 0 ,  l o w  b a c k  i n j u r y .  
T h e y  n o t e  y o u r  e x p l a n a t i o n  r e g a r d i n g  D r .  [Cj I s  r e f e r e n c e s  
t o  n e c k  compla in t s .  However ,  when t h e y  e x a m i n e  t h e  s p e c j f i c  
words set  o u t  i n  D r .  re-! 
e x p l a n a t i o n  d i f f i c u l t - t o  accept .  H e  u s e s  s u c h  terms a s  
" g e n e r a l  s o r e n e s s  t h r o u g h o u t  b a c k " ,  " g e n e r a l  b a c k  a n d  n e c k  
s t i f f n e s s " .  T h e s e  words a r e  d e s c r i b i n g  neck s y m p t o m s ,  n o 1  
j u s t  a n  u n d e r l y i n g  n e c k  c o n d i t i o n .  F u r t h e r m o r e ,  your  
e x p l a n a t i o n  does n o t  a c c o u n t  f o r  t h e  r e f e r e n c e s  t o  t h e  u p p e r  

and D r ,  0. b a c k  b y  t h e  C l i n i c  Doctor, Dr'. 16; 
D r .  _'s r e p o r t  of J u l y  3 ,  1 9 7 4 ,  is of s i g n i f i c a n c e  
i n  t h a t  i t  s u g g e s t s  t h a t  b y  t h a t  t i m e  a t  l e a s t  t h e  u p p e r  
back c o m p l a i n t s  w e r e  a major f a c t o r .  You s u g g e s t  t h a t  t h e  
n e c k  s y m p t o m s  ceased s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h e  c h i r o p r a c t i c  t r e a t m e n t  
ceased, b u t  t h i s  seems u n t r u e  h a v i n g  r e g a r d  t o  D r . 0 ' ~  
r e p o r t .  

I s  r e p o r t ,  t h e y  f i n d  t h i s  

c 

P a r a g r a p h  1 4  of y o u r  l e t t e r  d e a l s  w i t h  t h e  non-work i n j u r y  
M r .  F o r r e s t  expe r i enced  i n  J a n u a r y ,  1970. A g a i n  the 
C o m x i s s i o n c r s  h a v e  d i f f i c u l t y  w i t h  Dr. [c;' ' c; r e c e n t  
c o m m e n t s  c i t e d  b y  you  h a v i n g  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  a c t u a l  words  of 
h i s  A u g u s t  2 1 ,  1 9 7 0 ,  r e p o r t .  
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R e :  C l a i m  No. C70058177 2 M a y  1984 

In conclusion, t h e  Commissioners do not consider t h a t  y o u  
h a v e  presented a case for overturning the Board of R e v i e w ' s  
1971 decision. T h e y  feel t h a t  t h e  decision was a reasonable 
one for which t h e r e  was supporting evidence. 

Secretary t o  the Board 

KCA : hb 
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Dear F l r .  F l e she r :  

Re:  Mr. Terrence F o r r e s t '  W.C.B 

F j l e :  83-50155 

October 24, 1984 

Mr. W .  Fleshe r  
C h a i  rnan 
Workers' Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster Highway 
Richmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Claim N o .  C70058179 

I have  r ece ived  Mr, A t t e w e l l ' s  l e t t e r  of-Yay 2 ,  1984 concerning 
Nr. F o r r e s t .  I have considered t h e  Conniss ioners '  comzents 
r e g a r d i n g  my proposed recornendat ion  t h a t  the Board re-open 
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  1970 c la im e f f e c t i v e  October I., 1971 and a s s e s s  him 
f o r  a d i s a b i l i t y  award. I d i s a g r e e  w i t h  t h e  Commissioners' 
comments f o r  t h e  fo l lowing  reasons :  

1. The Commissioners s t a t e d  t h a t  t he  t h r e e  doctors' r e p o r t s  from 
which I quoted t o  c o n t r a d i c t  t h e  claims a d j u d i c a t o r ' s  dec is ion  
t h a t  Nr. F o r r e s t  had recovered from h i s  i n j u r y  by March 1, 
1971 do n o t  suppor t  my p o s i t i o n .  
r e p o r t s  w e r e  a l l  made i n  1970, nore than two months p r i o r  t o  
M r .  'Forrest's r e t u r n  t o  work and because i n  t-he l as t  of the  
r e p o r t s  quoted ,  t h a t  of D r .  [A} , i t  i s  s t a t e d  t h a t  
Mr. F o r r e s t  would r ecove r  an  r e t u r n  t o  h i s  job.  

They s t a t e  this because t h e  

F i r s t l y ,  I do n o t  ag ree  t ha t  t h e  fact  t h a t  t he  f i r s t  two 
r e p o r t s  were made more than  two months p r i o r  t o  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  
r e t u r n  t o  work i n v a l i d a t e s  t h e i r  c o n t e n t ,  Rather ,  t hese  
r e p o r t s  are impor tan t  as they  show t h a t ,  over t h e  course  of 
Mr, F o r r e s t ' s  t rea tment  p r i o r  t o  h i s  r e l u r n  t o  work, t h e  Board 
d o c t o r s  d i d  no t  expect  him t o  recover  completely from h i s  
i n j u r y .  Although D r .  [ A ]  s t a t e d  in his Deccnber 23, 1970 
r e p o r t  t h a t  he  expected t h a t  Elr. F o r r e s t  would improve 
s a t i s f a c t o r i l y  and t h a t  he would e v e n t u a l l y  r e t u r n  t o  his job 
without  any s u r g i c a l  procedure being necessa ry ,  D r .  r&f 
a l t e r e d  h i s  op in ion  in h i s  subsequent r e p o r t  of J a n u a r y  lS, 
1971 i n  which D r .  [,A3 s t a t e d  t n a t  M I - .  F o r r e s t  had returned 
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t o  work for t h r e e  d a y s ,  and t h a t  h i s  p a i n  had r e t u r n e d  and 
r ena ined  w i t h  him. As a r e s u l t  Dr. !/$I recornended a 
pe r iod  of p a r t i a l  compensat ion 2nd s t a t e d  t h a t  t h i s  could  be 
a r r anged  a t  h i s  work. D r .  '1.; h a s  r e c e n t l y  a d v i s e d  my 
i n v e s t i g a t o r  t h a t  a t  t h e  ti;? Yr- F o r r e s t  r e t u r n e d  t o  work, i t  
w a s  Dr. r/-' 
on. 
w a s  g e t t i n g  worse,  i t  appeared  t h a t  i t  was p o s s i b l e  t o  a r r ange  
l i g h t  work f o r  him. D r .  [A,] expec ted  t h a t ,  by t a k i n g  the  
l i g h t  work and by u s i n g  h i s  back s u p p o r t  whic.h had been 
r e c e n t l y  m a d e  for him t h a t  Nr. F o r r e s t  w o u l d  be able t o  c a r r y  
on .  T h e r e f o r e ,  D r .  (A; ' s  l a s t .  r e p o r t  I.s c o n s i s t e n t  wi th  
t h e  ear l ie r  r e p o r t s  b e f o r e  M r .  F o r r e s t  a t tempted  to  r e t u r n  t o  
work, i .e.  t h a t  M r .  F o r r e s t  w a s  l e f t  w i t h  a c h r o n i c  backache, 
and  t h a t  h e  was not  c a p a b l e  of r e t u r n i n g  t o  his u s u a l  work, 
b u t  t h a t  he  shou ld  o b t a i n  a "suitable" or " l i g h t "  job .  It i s  
a l s o  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  t h e  employer 's  phone call, r eco rded  i n  a 
memo d a t e d  February  18, 1971, two days  a f t e r . M r .  F o r r e s t  
s t a r t e d  on f o u r  hour s h i f t s ,  t h a t  " i t  was agreed  t h a t  t h i s  man 
w a s  c o n s i d e r e d  p a r t i a l  ( s i c )  d i s a b l e d  and t h a t  a f o u r  hour d a y  
d i d  appea r  reasonable. . '  

D r .  L'B,1 has a l s o  adv i sed  my i n v e s c i g a t o r  t h a t  R e  d i d  not  
a g r e e  w i t h  D r .  - of t h e  Baard 's  R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  C l i n i c  
t h a t  M r .  F o r r e s t  was c a p a b l e  of r e t u r n i n g  tro h i s  w o r k  when s h e  
t e l ephoned  Dr. on December 15, 1970. 

+- - b  

' s  impress ion  t h a t  he  would be a b l e  t o  c a r r y  
He fu r<he r  s t a t e d  t h a t  w h e n  M r .  Forrest r e p o r t e d  t h a t  he 

Secondly ,  a l though  i n  h i s  l a s t  r e p o r t  of Janua ry  18, 1971, 
D r .  [A] 
resume h i s  u s u a l  work, and h e  recommended a p e r i o d  of p a r t i a l  
compensat ion,  Mr. F o r r e s t  o n l y  performed " l i g h t  work" f o r  t he  
f o l l o w i n g  two weeks. As I n o t e d  i n  my p r e l i m i n a r y  r e p o r t ,  t h e  
reason t h a t  M r .  F o r r e s t  r e t u r n e d  t o  a n  e i g h t  hour  s h i f t  a f te r  
d o i n g  " l i g h t  work" f o r  two weeks w a s  n o t  n e c e s s a r i l y  because 
he f e l t  or w a s  f u l l y  c a p a b l e  of performing t h i s  job,  b u t  
because  he  s ta tes  he  w a s  t o l d  by t h e  employer 's  P e r s o n n e l  
Manager t h a t  h e  e i t h e r  r e t u r n  t o  a n  c i g h t  hour s h i f t  o r  
" r e t u r n  t o  compensation".  T h i s  s t a t emen t  is s u p p o r t e d  by t h e  
i a c t  t h a t ,  two days a f t e r  M r .  ' F o r r e s t ' s  commencement of h i s  
l i g h t  work on a f o u r  hour  s h i f t ,  t h e  employer i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  a 
!ou r  hour  d a y  c r e a t e d  many problems f o r  t he  m i l l  and t h a t  he 
"would work something o u t "  w i t h  t he  c l a iman t .  

gave t h e  o p i n i o n  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  was n o t  able t o  

The Commissioners s t a t e  t h a t  my s u g g e s t i o n  t h a t  t h e  n a t u r e  of 
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  work i n  t h e  p s r i o d  fo l lowing  March, 1971 would 
have aggrava ted  h i s  c o n d i t i o 3  i s  p u r e l y  s p e c u l a t i v e .  They 
f u r t h e r  s t a t e  t h a t  M r .  F o r r e s t  has  never  r e f e r r e d  h i s  l a t e r  
c o n p l a i n t s  t o  h i s  work i n  t h i s  p e r i o d ,  and r e f e r  m e  t o  
Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  s t a t emen t  t h a t  t he re  was no new i n c i d e n t  o r  
occur rence  i n  t h i s  p e r i o d ,  b u t  r a t h e r  he  was j u s t  doing his 
normal d u t i e s .  



i t : 

W i e r i  one c o n s i d e r s  t h e  facts t h a t  Nr. F o r r e s t  had n o t  f u l l y  
recovered from h i s  i n j u r i e s  when h e  r e tu rned  t o  work; t h a t  two 
d o c t o r s  recommended t h a t  he  s e e k  " s u i t a b l e "  o r  " l i g h t "  work; 
t h a t  Flr. F o r r e s t  on ly  performed l i g h t  work f o r  two weeks and 
t l i e n  performed heav ie r  work t o  convenience t h e  employer; and 
that t h e  work he  pe r fo rced  c o n s i s t e d  of e i g h t  m i l e s  of walking 
(:.uniting) p e r  s h i f t  d e s p i t e  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Dr. [A3 had 
s t a t e d  t h a t  h i s  pain was aggrava ted  by s i t t i n g  and walking,  i t  
i s  r e a s o n a b l e  t o  conclude,  o n  a ba l ance  of p r o b a b i l i t i e s ,  t h a t  
Nr. F o r r e s t ' s  work a f t e r  March, 1971 would have aggrava ted  h i s  
c o n d i t i o n .  

F u r t h e r ,  D r .  [ A ]  
Mr. F o r r e s t  *s work a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  c o n d i t i o n ,  his p a i n  would be 
g r a d u a l l y  worsening d u r i n g  t h e  t i m e  he was performing h i s  
job. I n  h i s  i n t e r v i e w  w i t h  t h e  Board on November 5 ,  1971, 
M r .  F o r r e s t  d e s c r i b e d  how h e  would s u f f e r  p a i n  i n f r e q u e n t l y  a t  
f i r s t ,  b u t  by t h e  end of  August,  1971 t h e  pain w a s  on a d a i l y  
basis ,  worsening  so t h a t  t h e  p a i n  became c o n s t a n t .  Thjs l e n d s  
f u r t h e r  s u p p o r t  t o  t h e  p r o b a b i l i t y  t h a c  IZr. F o r r e s t ' s  j o b  
a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  c o n d i t i o n  r e s u l t i n g  f r o 3  h i s  work a c c i d e n t ,  
which had n o t  completely r e s o l v e d  i t s e l f  when Ilr. F o r r e s t  
r e t u r n e d  t o  h i s  j o b  i n  February ,  1971. 

h a s  s ta ted t o  my o f f i c e  t h a t  i f  

The f a c t  t h a t  h e  d id  n o t  r e f e r  h i s  l a te r  compla in ts  to h i s  
work i n  t h i s  pe r iod  is n o t  s u r p r i s i n g  i n  view of t h e  f a c t  that .  
M r .  F o r r e s t  w a s  no t  a sked  what he r e f e r r e d  h i s  compla in ts  t o ,  
a n d  he d i d  n o t  comment on  t h i s  i s s u e  one way or t h e  o t h e r .  
However, i t  would seem t h a t  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  
c o n t a c t e d  t h e  Board i n  September,  1971 because of  h i s  
i nc r ' ea s ing  p a i n  a t  work and r e q u e s t e d  a re-opening of h i s  
c l a i m  would demonst ra te  h i s  b e l i e f  t h a t  his p a i n  w a s  r e l a t e d  
to e i t h e r  h i s  work a c t i v i t y ,  h i s  p rev ious  work a c c i d e n t ,  or a 
combina t ion  of t h e  two. F u r t h e r ,  Mr. F o r r e s t  s t a t e d  t o  t h e  
Board t h a t  after h i s  p a i n  i n c r e a s e d  and he r e p o r t e d  t o  the  
employer i n  the middle  of September,  he  was t aken  o f f  his j ob  
of  t u r n i n g  s h e e t s  and g i v e n  a job for one week which j u s t  
i nvo lved  s t a n d i n g  and no  p h y s i c a l  a c t i o n .  He found t h a t  w i t h  
t h i s  l i g h t e r  work, h i s  p a i n  W A S  n o t  as bad a t  t h e  end of t h e  
s h i f t .  A f t e r  t h e  one week of l i g h t  work, he s t a t e d  t h a t  he  
w a s  t o l d  t o  r e t u r n  t o  h i s  preirious job  of turning s h e e t s ,  a n d  
a t  the  end of t h e  shift t h e  p a i n  " s t a r t ed  t o  g e t  p r e t t y  s t r o n g  
a g a i n "  and worsened. The f a c t  t h a t  t h e r e  was no new i n c i d e n t  
a f t e r  March, 1971 should  no t  p r o h i b i t  t he  Board from a l lowing  
a re-opening of  M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  c l a im on t h e  b a s i s  t h a t  h i s  
worsened c o n d i t i o n  a f t e r  September,  1 9 7 1  was a r e s u l t  of h i s  
p r e v i o u s  work i n j u r y ,  from which he had not f u l l y  r ecove rcd ,  
combined wi th  a work a c t i v i t y  vhich  aggrava ted  t h i s  unresolved 
c o n d i t i o n .  

0 0 0 0 6 8  
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3. T h e  Commissioners f i n d  i t  d i f f i c u l t  t o  accept  my e x p l a n a t i o n  
rcgar 'd ing  D r .  [CJ 
c o n p l a i n t s .  I had stated i n  my p re l imina ry  r e p o r t  t h a t  
F i r .  F o r r e s t  d i d  not  n o t e  any c e r v i c a l  or sci ipular  pa in  u n t i l  
h e  h a d  had c h i r o p r a c t i c  t r ea tmen t  t o  t h i s  a r e a ,  and t h a t  t h e s e  
symptoms d i d  n o t  m a n i f e s t  t h e a s e l v e s  a t  the  t i n e  of t he  
i n j t l r p .  I also s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e r e  is no evidence t o  support  
t h e  Loi i rd  of r e v i e w ' s  s t a t e m s n t  t h a t  M r .  Forrest's gene ra l i zed  
back pa in  is p o s s i b l y  due t o  of f - the- job  a c t i v i t y .  

' 5 ,  r e f e r e n c e s  t o  MK. Forrest's neck 

I wocld p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  Fir. F o r r e s t  o n l y  r e f e r r e d  t o  h i s  low 
back ,  low h i p  and leg p a i n  as h i s  compla in t s  r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  
1970 work a c c i d e n t .  
p a i n  t o  h i s  a c c i d e n t .  Whether or n o t  h i s  s c a p u l a r  and neck 
p a i n  i s  due  t o  c a u s e s  o t h e r  t h a n  h i s  work a c c i d e n t  should no t  
be of conce rn  as i t  i s  o n l y  h i s  low back,  low h i p  and l e g  pa in  
t h a t  Mr, F o r r e s t  re la tes  t o  h i s  work a c c i d e n t .  The 
C o m i s s i o n e r s  have p r e v i o u s l y  s t a t e d  i n  o t h e r  cases t h a t  t h e  
Board does  n o t  have t o  prove t h a t  a c l a i m a n t ' s  c o n d i t i o n  i s  
due  t o  some o t h e r  cause  i n  o r d e r  to conclude t h a t  t h e  
c o n d i t i o n  is n o t  r e l a t e d  t o  a work i r l j u r . y .  Converse ly ,  t h e  
Board shou ld  n o t  have  t o  de te rmine  t h e  cause of M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  
s c a p u l a r  and neck  c o n d i t i o n  or  symptorns i n  o r d e r  t o  conclude 
t h a t  h i s  l o w  back p a i n  a f t e r  March, 1971 is r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  
a c c i d e n t .  As I no ted  ea r l i e r ,  i n  h i s  e x t e n s i v e  s t a t e m e n t  o f  
November 5, 1971,  Mr. F o r r e s t  on ly  r e f e r s  t o  low back,  low h j p  
and  leg p a i n  a s  h i s  c o m p l a i n t s  between Karch and September,  
1971. These  worsening  p a i n s  were t h e  b a s i s  of h i s  r e q u e s t  
that  t h e  Board re-open his c la im.  The fact t h a t  he may have 
also had neck and  s c a p u l a r  d i scomfor t  o r  t h a t  t h i s  may have 
beeq a n  u n d e r l y i n g  c o n d i t i o n  should n o t  a f f e c t  t h e  Board's 
c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of h i s  r e q u e s t  r e g a r d i n g  his  low back  pain.  I n  
my o p i n i o n ,  the boa rds  of review e r r e d  i n  c o n s i d e r i n g  t h a t  
because  Mr. F o r r e s t  had "gene ra l i zed  back pain",  t h a t  none of  
h i s  s p e c i f i c  areas o f  p a i n  cou ld  be r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  work 
a c c i d e n t .  The Commissioners d i d  n o t  c o r r e c t  t h i s  e r r o r  when 
t h e y  accep ted  t h e  boa rds  of rev iew's  recommendation. 

fie neve r  a t t r i b u t e d  h i s  s c a p u l a r  and neck 

- 

I wish  a l s o  t o  comment on t h e  employer 's  l e t t e r  of A p r i l  13,  
1984,  a copy of which h a s  been ' forwarded  t o  you. 
states: "The ev idence  on f i l e  i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  k l r .  F o r r e s t  was 
invo lved  i n  a r a t h e r  i n s i g n i f i c a n t  i n c i d e n t  a t  work on August 
1 7 ,  1970 and t h e  p h y s i c a l  f i n d i n g s  were minimal ... We f e e l  i t  
is unreasonab le  t o  assume t h a t  t h e  compla in ts  i n  t h e  F a l l  of 
1971 are r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  August 17, 1970 i n j u r y .  I n  f a c t ,  t h e  
i n c i d e n t  on August 1 7 ,  1970 was so minor i n  n a t u r e  i t  was not  
r e p o r t e d  t o  o u r  F i r s t  A i d  Room u n t i l  August 1 9 ,  1971." 
F i r s t l y ,  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  App l i ca t ion  f o r  compensat ion i n d i c a t e s  
t h a t  he r e p o r t e d  t h e  a c c i d e n t  t o  t h e  foreman on August lS, 
1970. 

The employer 

As w e l l ,  t h e  Employer 's  Report a s  w e l l  a s  the F i r s t  A i d  
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K t p o r t  s tates t h a t  Nr. F o r r e s t  f i r s t  r epor t ed  h i s  i n j u r y  on 
August 1 9 ,  1970. Therefore, t h e  d e l a y  of one y e a r  i n  
r e p o r t i n g  h i s  i n j u r y  a:; a t t r i b u t e d  t o  Nr. F o r r e s t  by t h e  
employer i s  e r roneous .  Secondly,  I do i i o t  a g r e e  t h a t  
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  work a c c i d e n t  w a s  " r a t h e r  i n s i g n i f i c a n t "  or 
"minor i n  n a t u r c "  i n  view of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  Board 
c o n s i d e r e d  him t o t a l l y  d i s a b l e d  from this a c c i d e n t  from 
August,  1970 t o  Febroary ,  1973., and when he had n o t  recovered 
by November, 1970,  a d n i t t e d  him t o  its R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  C l i n i c  
f o r  t h e r a p y  which cont inued  for  over  a month. 

The employer f u r t h e r  states: "Fur ther  evidence on  f i l e  
i n d i c a t e s  p r e v i o u s  back problems r e l a t i n g  t o  a f a l l  i n  January 
of 1970 and  medica l  f i n d i n g s  i n d i c a t i n g  a p r e - e x i s t i n g  
s p o n d y l o l i s t h e s i s " ,  I n o t e  t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  "p rev ious  back 
problems" r e l a t e d  t o  his c e r v i c a l  and scapu la r  area,  and not  
h i s  low back area, which w a s  t h e  main focus  of h i s  complaints  
a f t e r  h i s  work i n j u r y .  F u r t h e r ,  t h e  d i a g n o s i s  of 
" p r e - e x i s t i n g  s p o n d y l o l i s t h e s i s "  g iven  by Dr. [A]  i n  h i s  
l e t t e r  o f  December 23, 1970 i s  d i spu ted  by the x-ray r e p o r t  of 
November 10, 1970 i n  which t h e  Board r e d i o l o g i s t  g i v e s  t h e  
o p i n i o n  t h a t  "...I do n o t  see any ev idence  of 
s p o n d y l o l i s t h e s i s ,  a l t h o u g h  i n  the  .ob l ique  v lews  t h e r e  is a 
s u s p i c i o n  of  a d e f e c t  i n  t h e  pa r s  i n t e r a r t i c u l a r i s  of L.5 on 
the l e f t  s i d e . "  Even i f  t h e r e  were a,  p r e - e x i s t i n g  
s p o n d y l o l i s t h e s i s ,  t h e r e  is  no evidence  t h a t  t h i s  cond i t ion  
d i s a b l e d  M r ,  F o r r e s t  p r i o r  t o  h i s  work a c c i d e n t  o r  t h a t  i t  was 
r e s p o n s i b l e  f o r  t h e  r e c u r r e n c e  of h i s  pain in 1 9 7 1 .  

Based on  the above, I have  concluded tha t  t h e  Board 's  d e c i s i o n s  t o  
r e f u s e  the re-opening of  Fix, F o r r e s t ' s  claim i n  October ,  1971 and 

. t o  a c c 6 p t  t h e  boa rds  of r ev iew r e c o m e n d a t i o n  were u n j u s t  as they 
f a i l e d  to c o n s i d e r  r e l e v a n t  f a c t o r s .  These r e l e v a n t  f a c t o r s  
i n c l u d e  t h e  fac t s  that  Mr, F o r r e s t ' s  c o n d i t i o n  had n o t  reso lved  
when he r e t u r n e d  to h i s  work; t h a t  E e d i c a l  op in ions  p r i o r  t o  and 
a f t e r  h i s  r e t u r n  to work w e r e  t o  the e f f e c t  t h a t  h e  should seek 
" s u i t a b l e "  or " l i g h t "  work; t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  only performed l i g h t  
work f o r  two weeks be fo re  b e i n g  t o l d  by t h e  employer to r e t u r n  t o  
a h e a v i e r ,  e ight  hour  s h i f t ;  t h a t  ' th i s  j o b  n e c e s s i t a t e d  walking 
e i g h t  m i l e s  a day ,  a movement which Dr. noted  aggrava ted  
M r .  F o r r e s t ' s  p a i n .  F u r t h e r ,  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  Mr. Farrest may 
have had a neck and s c a p u l a r  c o n d i t i o n  o r  problem p r i o r  : o  and 
af te r  h i s  work a c c i d e n t  should  n o t  be r e l e v a n t  i n  t h e  B:Vsrd's 
d e t e r m i n i n g  i f  h i s  s p e c i f i c  low back compla in ts ,  which have been 
c o n s i s t e n t  s i n c e  h i s  work a c c i d e n t  and a b s e n t  b e f o r e  h i s  work 
a c c i d e n t ,  are r e l a t e d  to h i s  work i n j u r y .  

[A] 

P u r s u a n t  to S e c t i o n  22  of t h e  hbudsrnan A c t ,  I recommcnd t h a t  the 
Eoard re-open Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  1970 c l a i n  e f f e c t i v e  October  1, 1971 
and assess him f o r  a d i s a b i l i t y  award. 



I look forward to your reply a t  your earliest convenience.  

Yours s i n c e r e l y ,  

Karl A.  Friedmann J Ombudsman 
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1)r .  Karl A .  F r i e d m a n n ,  
Ombud srmn , 
L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly of  B r i t i s h  C o l u m b i a ,  
#202 - 1 2 5 5  V e s t  S i x t h  Avenue,  
Vancouver ,  B .C. 
V 6 H  1 A 6  

Dear  D r .  F r i e d m a n n :  

RE : T e r r e n c e  FORREST 
C l a i m  No. XC70058177 

0 0 0 0 .  

Your l e t t e r  o f  O c t o b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  b y  
t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s .  

E n c l o s e d  i s  a copy  of a l e t t e r  d a t e d  November 1 6 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  
r e c e i v e d  f r o m  M r .  F o r r e s t  ' s  e m p l o y e r .  

The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  you have  n o  s i g n i f i c a n l  
new i n f o r m a t  i o n  o r  a rgument  t h a t  would j u s t i f y  t h e i r  c h a n g i n g  
t h e i r  d e c i s i o n .  T h e i r  comments on t h e  p o i n t s  you r a i s e  a r e  
s e t  o u t  b e l o w ,  

1.  T h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  Board  d o c t o r ' s  comments r e g a r d i n g  
t h e  l o n g  t e r m  n a t u r e  of  Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  p r o b l e m  were  made 
i n  1 9 7 0  d o e s  n o t  n e c e s s a r i l y  i n v a l i d a t e  them as  e v i d e n c e  
in d e c i d i n g  w h e t h e r  h e  h a d  r e c o v e r e d  by March 1 9 7 1 .  However, 
t h e i r  s i g n i f i c a n c e  d o e s  become q u e s t i o n a b l e  i f ,  a s  o c c u r r e d  
i n  t h i s  c a s e ,  e v i d e n c e  is l a t e r  r e c e i v e d  showing t h a t  t h e r e  
w a s ,  i n  f a c t ,  a r e c o v e r y  by  t h a t  d a t e .  

D r .  [ A ]  ' s  r e p o r t  of J a n u a r y  1 8 ,  1981,  d o e s  n o t  i n d i c a t e  
t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  t h a t  h e  h a d  * a l t e r e d  h i s  p r i o r  o p i n i o n  
t h a t  Mr. F o r r e s t  would e v e n t u a l l y  r e c o v e r  and  r e t u r n  t o  
h i s  o l d  job. The most r e a s o n a b l e  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n  o f  t h a t  
r e p o r t  i s  t h a t  t h e  d o c t o r  i s  s i m p l y  recommending a p r o c e d u r e  
f o r  a t t a i n i n g  r e c o v e r y .  The C o r m , i s s i o n e r s  n o t e  t h e  r e c e n t  
c o n v e r s a t i o n  which one of y o u r  i n v e s t i g a t o r s  h a d  w i t h  Dr .  

, s u g g e s t i n g  t h a t  h e  e x p e c t e d  K r .  F o r r e s t  t o  r e t u r n  
t o  l i g h t  work .  However ,  t h e y  can c n l y  p o i n t  o u t  t h a t  hlr. 
F o r r e s t  d i d  r e t u r n  t o  h i s  no rma l  w o r k  and was a b l e  t o  d o  t h i s  
w o r k  f o r  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  s i x  rlionths. 

/ 

[ A ]  

c o n t i n u e d  ..... / 2  
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2 .  \ !hi le  t h e r e  may h e  v a r i o u s  r e a s o n 5  f o r  e x p e c t i n g  t h a t  
Mr. F o r r e s t ' s  n o r m a l  work i n  t h e  p e r i o d  f o l l o w i n g  March 
1981 migh t  h a v e  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  c o n d i t i o n ,  t h e r e  i s  e v i d e n c e  
t h a t  i t  d i d  no t  d o  s o .  I n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  
would p o i n t  t o  t h e  l a c k  of c o m p l a i n t s  b y  Mr. F c r r e s t  p r i o r  
t o  t h e  e n d  of August 1 9 7 1 .  The e n i p l o y e r ' s  l e t t e r  of November 
1 6 ,  1 9 6 4 ,  a l s o  s u g g e s t s  t h a t  t h e  work K r .  F o r r e s t  was d o i n g  
was n o t  r e a l l y  t h a t  h e a v y .  You i e f e r  t o  a n  i n c i d e n t  i n  Sep lember  
1 9 7 1 ,  when t h e  p a i n  w a s  r e d u c e d  w h i l e  d o i n g  l i g h t e r  work 
f o r  a week a n d  t h e n  i n c r e a s e d  when h l r .  F o r r e s t  r e t u r n e d  
t o  h e a v i e r  w o r k .  T h i s  d o e s  n o t  seem t o  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  
t o  b e  n e c e s s a r i l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  s i n c e  p r i o r  t o  t h a t  t i m e  h5r.  
F o r r e s t  ' s  b a c k  c o m p l a i n t s  h a d  a l r e a d y  a g a i n  become s i g n i f i c a r r l .  
I f  someone a l r e a d y  h a s  s e r i o u s  b a c k  c o m p l a i n t s ,  t h e y  w i l l  
c l e a r l y  f l u c t u a t e  a c c o r d i n g  t o  t h e  t y p e  of work d o n e ,  b u t  
t h a t  d o e s  n o t  mean t h a t  t h e  work c a u s e d  t h o s e  c o m p l a i n t s .  

3. I t  i s  t r u e  t h a t ,  j u s t  b e c a u s e  Kr. F c r r e s t  h a s  non-compensab le  
u p p e r  b a c k  c o m p l a i n t s ,  d o e s  n o t  n e c e s s a r i l y  mean t h a t  h i s  lower  
b a c k  c o m p l a i n t s  a r e  a l s o  non-co rnpensab le .  If , h o w e v e r ,  h e  
h a s  u p p e r  b a c k  p r o b l e m s  f r o m  n a t u r a l  c a u s e s ,  i t  d o e s  sugges t  
t h a t  h i s  l o w c r  b a c k  p r o b l e m s  c o u l d  b e  o f  t h e  same g e n e r a l  
o r i g i n .  T h e  c h i r o p r a c t o r  c l e a r l y  seems t o  r e g a r d  t h e  p r o b l e m s  
t h r o u g h o u t  h i s  w h o l e  s p i n e  a s  b a s i c a l l y  t h e  same a n d  s t a t e s  
t h a t  h e  t r e a t e d  Kr. F o r r e s t  f o r  a s i m i l a r  p r o b l e m  p r i o r  
t o  h i s  i n j u r y .  T h e r e  i s  e v i d e n c e  of  a p r e - e x i s t i n g  s p o n d y l o l i s -  
t h e s i s ,  e v e n  t h o u g h  t h i s  d i a g n o s i s  may no t  b e  t o t a l l y  c e r t a i n .  

The C o m m i s s i o n e r s  must  c o n c l u d e  t h a t ,  h a v i n g  r e g a r d  t o  t h e  
p r e v i o u s  p r o b l e m s  Mr. F o r r e s t  h a d  i n  h i s  b a c k  a n d  t h e  e v i d e n c e  
of  a p r c - e x i s t i n g  c o n d i t i o n ,  t h e  r e l a t i v e l y  m i n o r  n a t u r e  
o f  t h e  o r i g i n a l  i n c i d e n t ,  h i s  retpurn i o  h i s  n o r m a l  work 
f o r  a p e r i o d  of s i x  months b e f o r e  h e  h a d  f u r t h e r  p r o b l e m s ,  
t h e  B o a r d ' s  e x i s t i n g  d e c i s i o n  i s  a r e a s o n a b l e  o n e .  Though 
a r g u m e n t s  t o  t h e  c o n t r a r y  may t e  p o s s i b l e ,  t h e  b a l a n c e  of 
t h e  e v i d e n c e  i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  t h e  i n j u r y  w a s  a t e m p o r a r y  a g g r a v a t i o n  
of a p r e - e x i s t  i n g  p r o b l e m  f r o m  w h i c h  L r .  F c r r e s t  r e c o v e r e d .  
The C o r r m i s s i o n t r s  h a v e  d e c i d e d  t o  r e j e c t  y o u r  r ecommenda t ion .  

c o n t i n u e d . .  . . . / 2  
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Y o u r s  t r u l y  , . .  

N. C. ATTEWELL 
Secre tary  t o  t h e  Board 

ECA : md 



F i l e :  83-50763 

The Chairman, 
Workers' Compensation Board, 
6951 Westminster Highway, 
Richmond, B.C. 
V7C 1C6 

Dear S i r :  

Re: Complaint of Mr, llilhelmus Chatrer, W . C . B .  Claim Nos. 
62010991, 62036126, 63073077, 65022541, 66041784, 
67009565, A73048561 and XI178075094 

I am nearing completion of my investigation of this complaint, 
Pursuant to section 16 of the Ombudman A c t ,  I enclose my 
preliminary report which sets out the grounds upon which I may 
make a recommendation. 

1 would appreciate your comments. 

Yours s incere ly ,  

Karl A. Friedmann 
Ombudsman 

# 

Encl. (1) 
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Reyox- t of Inves t  i ~ r l  t i o n  - 

Complainant: Nr. WilhelmKs J .  Cha t re r  

Autliori ty : Workers * Cornpensat ion  Board 

Background: 

Mr. Cha t re r  h a s  had e i g h t  conpensable i n j u r i e s  i nvo lv ing  h i s  low 
back, all of which have. been accepted  by t h e  Board. Mr. Chatrer  
f f r s t  i n j u r e d  h i s  low back i n  February 1962 when he was l i f t i n g  a 
flywheel r e p o r t e d  as weighing 75  t o  80 pounds and f e l t  "something 
snap  i n  h i s  back". An x-ray t aken  t h e  day of t h e  i n j u r y  showed 
minimal  degene ra t ion ,  desc r ibed  by t h e  Board A s s i s t a n t  Medical 
Director  as "nothing very  remarkable about  t h i s  i n  a man 39 yea r s  
of  age". 
r e c e i v e d  wage loss b e n e f i t s  for approximately t h r e e  weeks. 
According t o  Dr, H i l l ' s  l e t t e r  of September 13,  1966, M r .  Chat re r  
" r e t u r n e d  t o  work i n  two t o  t h r e e  weeks but  s i n c e  t hen  h i s  back 
h a s  n o t  f e l t  r i g h t .  
of  p a i n  i n  t h e  back i n  response  t o  s t r a i n  movements such as  
bending, l i f t i n g  and so f o r t h ,  H e  has  had c h i r o p r a c t i c  
a d j u s t n e n t s  from t i m e  to time which have t empora r i ly  r e l i e v e d  h i s  
symptoms but  l a t e l y  t h e s e  also have been i n e f f e c t u a l " ,  
Mr. C h a t r e r  i n j u r e d  h i s  back a g a i n  on J u l y  3, 1962 when he 
s l i p p e d  on c l e a n i n g  s o l u t i o n .  

H e  had had no p rev ious  back problems or t rea tment .  H e  

H e  h a s  cont inued t o  have r e c u r r i n g  episodes 

In  1963  Mr, C h a t r e r  i n j u r e d  his back at work aga in .  
Was back s t r a i n  w i t h  a p o s s i b l e  d i s c  l e s i o n .  
loss for  one week. 
work. 
d e f i n i t e  r e d u c t i o n  of t h e  d i s c  space between L5 and t h e  sacrum 
approximate ly  SO'! of normal. The c l a i m  w a s  accepted and 
M r .  C h a t r e r  w a s  p a i d  wage loss  for approximately t h r e e  weeks. 

The d iagnos is  
He r ece ived  wage 

I n  1965 M r .  C h a t r e r  a g a i n  tw i s t ed  h i s  back a t  
An x-ray taken  s h o r t l y  a f t e r  t h i s  a c c i d e n t  showed a 

I n  1966 Mr, C h a t r e r  s u f f e r e d  ano the r  back s t r a i n .  The claim was 
a c c e p t e d  by t h e  Board on a no-time-loss bas i s .  D r .  H i l l  r epor ted  
t o  the Board t h a t  M r .  C h a t r e r  w a s  hav ing ' inc reased  i n c a p a c i t y  as a 
r e s u l t  of s t r u c t u r a l  changes a t  t h e  lumbosacral  l e v e l  which dated 
back to t h e  1962 i n j u r y ,  and t h a t  Mr. C h a t r e r  would u l t i m a t e l y  
r e q u i r e  t h e  removal of t h e  lumbodacral d i s c  and a f u s i o n .  

I n  1967 M r ,  C h a t r e r  aga in  t w i s t e d  h i s  back at work. On A p r i l  19,  
1967 t h e  boards of  review denied  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h e  fus ion  on 
t h e  b a s i s  t h a t  t h e  d i s c  degenera t ion  was ev iden t  p r i o r  t o  the  1962 
a c c i d e n t .  On June  30, 1967 Mr. Chat rer  underwent a f u s i o n  of 
L4-S1, On October 10,  1967 t h e  C o m i s s i o n e r s  a l s o  re fused  
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  for t he  fus ion .  In 1973 Mr. Chat rer  s l i p p e d  on 
g r e a s e ,  t w i s t i n g  h i s  back and p e l v i s .  
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In 1978 Mr. Chatter injured his IOU back when he slipped d o m  a 
ladder. He received wage loss for approximately s i x  weeks. In 
1 9 7 9  his attending physician reported tha t  he had worsening back 
and knee pain, Nr. Chatrer was reassessed for pension purposes on 
F:ay 23, 1980. This exam was primarily for the purpose of 
determining whether Mr. Chatrer's knee disability had worsened. 
On July 7, 1980 the Disability Awards Officer wrote to Mr. Chatrer 
that as his knee condition had deteriorated since last assessed, 
he would be entitled to an upward revision of his pension. The 
Disability Awards Officer also stated that as his low back 
impairment had returned to the state it was in following his 
non-conpensable surgery, no award was indicated for this 
impairment. 

Last Decision Level: 

The last relevant decision was that of the Conmissioners dated 
October 10, 1967 as noted above. 

Issue: - 
Did the Commissioners err in refusing to accept responsibility for 
the fusion to Mr. Chatrer's low back, as communicated in their 
decision of October 10, 1967? 

Endover Notification: 

The employer has not been notified as he had not objected to this 
claim, and because if the Board accepts my recommendation, it will 
be the Disability Awards Officer who will decide on any pension to 
be awarded to Mr. Chatrer. This decision will be appealable by 
the employer if he objects to it. 

Grounds for Adverse Findings: 

In my opinion, this complaint may be substantiated on the 
following grounds: 

1. The Commissioners, in decidiqg on October 10, 1967 to refuse 
responsibility for Nr. Chatrer's fusion, did not consider 
whether the 1962 and/or subsequent back injuries had 
permanently aggravated the condition of Hr. Chatrer's spine so 
that a fusion was required. Instead, both the boards of 
review and the Commissioners restricted their consideration of 
this issue to the fact that there was x-ray evidence of 
degenerative disc disease which preceded Hr. Chatrer's 1962 
claim. 

2.  To demonstrate this deficiency in the decisions of the boards 
of review and the Commissioners to deny responsibility for Nr. 
Chatrer's fusion, the following is noted: 
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Meno P3 (1367 claim) to L : ~ . i t  Head and Board of Review: 

I n  regard to the back f u s i o n ,  it is noted as far back 
as 1963, remarks were m a d e  of a two level fusion (Memo 
k 5  on claim 63073077). On each succeeding back claim, 
remarks were made by the various doctors that a fusion 
would probably be necessary. In view of this, I do 
not feel that the operation now proposed should be a 
responsibility of this man's employer in 1967. 
event the proposed operation should be authorized by 
the board of revieu in view of the fact that P.E. has 
been applied on previous claims. 

In any 

The notations on file regarding the boards of review's 
consideration of whether the Board was responsible for the 
fusion consisted of: 

He seems adept at reporting an accident but I fail to 
see how bumping his head on the frame would  cause 
injury to low back and right knee. I would disallow 
the claim. 

I would allow knee (arthrotomy) but not the fusion. 

The former statement does not adequately.address the 
question of whether the need for a fusion is related to 
Mr. Chatrer's 1967 injury. Rather, it questions the 
validity of the entire claim, which had already been 
accepted by the Board. 

.In referring the claim to the Commissioners for their 
decision regarding the Board's responsibility for the 
fusion, the following is stated: 

The 

Claimant is appealing the refusal to accept 
responsibility for the spine fusion. Responsibility 
was restricted on the x-ray evidence of degenerative 
disc disease which preceded his back claim. The 
boards of review would not change this limitation. 

Commissioners, in deciding to deny the appeal, noted 
only on the file that: "Board responsibility- does-not 
extend to fusion". 

Therefore, it is clear that in denying responsibility for 
Mr. Chatrer's fusion, no consideration was given to whether 
the 1962 and/or subsequent accidents permanently aggravated 
his pre-existing disc degeneration. 



tJ 

0 0 0 0 ? 9  

3 .  P r i o r  t o  1968 t h e  rele-.,Jr1: provision of the A r t  was S e c t i o n  
7( 5) wt l ich  s t a t e d :  

Where t h e  p e r s o n a l  i n j u r y  c o n s i s t s  of i n j u r y  or d i s e a s e  i n  
p a r t  due t o  t h e  employment and i n  p a r t  due t o  c a u s e s  o t h e r  
t h a n  t h e  employment o r  where t h e  pe r sona l  i n j u r y  
a g g r a v a t e s ,  a c c e l e r a t e s  or a c t i v a t e s  a d i s e a s e  or 
c o n d i t i o n  e x i s t i n g  p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n j u r y ,  conpensa t ion  s h a l l  
be a l lowed f o r  such  p r o p o r t i o n  of t h e  d i s a b i l i t y  a s  may 
r e a s o n a b l y  be a t t r i b u t e d  t o  t h e  pe r sona l  i n j u r y  s u s t a i n e d ,  

The r e l e v a n t  med ica l  e v i d e n c e  on f i l e  c o n s i s t s  o f :  

C )  

September 13, 1966: Dr. H i l l :  "This p a t i e n t  i s  having 
i n c r e a s i n g  i n c a p a c i t y  a s  a r e s u l t  of s t r u c t u r a l  change a t  
t h e  lumbosacra l  l e v e l  which i n  my opin ion  d a t e s  back t o  
t h e  i n j u r y  he s u s t a i n e d  as  desc r ibed  above. I b e l i e v e  
t h a t  t h i s  p a t i e n t  w i l l  u l t i m a t e l y  r e q u i r e  removal of h i s  
l umbosac ra l  d i s c  and f u s i o n  of t h e  l u n b o s a c r a l  
i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s c  s p a c e  i n  view of an i n c r e a s i n g  
synptomatology which is r e s u l t i n g  i n  i n c a p a c i t y  and work 
impairment .  " 

Memo 6 2  d a t e d  A p r i l  21, 1965 (1965 c la im)  by a Board 
d o c t o r  r e g a r d i n g  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  of S e c t i o n  7(5)  of  Act: 
"It i s  noted  i n  t h e  x- rays  of February 26, 1962, t h a t  d i s c  
is narrowed a t  L4-L5 and o n l y  s m a l l  bony s p u r s  p r e s e n t .  
As t h e  changes  are m i l d ,  I would doubt if P.E, would be 
a p p l i c a b l e  from t h e  U.M.O." 

September 27, 1966: D r ,  Hayes of t h e  Board responded t o  
t h e  q u e s t i o n  of whe the r  t h e  Board had f u r t h e r  
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  r e g a r d i n g  a f u s i o n  by s t a t i n g :  

I n  1962 t h i s  worker shoved no evidence of disc 
e x t r u s i o n  and had d e g e n e r a t i v e  changes a t  two l e v e l s .  
H e  now h a s  sciatica and I would relate h i s  problem t o  
t h e  1966 s t r a i n  r a t h e r  t han  1962 i f  c l a i m s  c o n s i d e r  
t h e  1966 s t r a i n  adequate .  

The Board dec ided  t h a t  t h e  1966 a c c i d e n t  would n o t  r e s u l t  
i n  t h e  problems r e p o r t e d  by D r .  H i l l ,  

It is n o t  correct t h a t  t h e r e  was no ev idence  of d i s c  
e x t r u s i o n  i n  1962. The surgeon ' s  f i r s t  r e p o r t  da t ed  March 
3, 1362 g i v e  " h e r n i a t e d  d i s c "  a s  a diagnosis. 

4. T h e r e f o r e ,  of t h e  med ica l  ev idence  r e f e r r e d  t o  above,  only 
D r .  H i l l  a d d r e s s e s  t h e  q u e s t i o n  of t h e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  of t h e  
1962 a c c i d e n t  t o  t h e  x-ray changes a t  t h e  lumbosacra l  l e v e l ,  
and t h e  n e c e s s i t y  f o r  a f u s i o n .  D r .  Mayes, i n  his opinion 
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t h a t  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  need f o r  2 f u s i o n  was n o t  related t o  h i s  
1962  a c c i d e n t ,  d i d  not a p p e a r  t o  c o n s i d e r  t h e  q u e s t i o n  of 
whether  t h e  1962 a c c i d e n t  h a d  permanent ly  aggrava ted  or 
a c c e l e r a t e d  t h e  p r e - e x i s t i n s  d i s c  degene ra t ion .  

5 .  Mr. C h a t r e r  h a s  provided m e  w i t h  a r e p o r t  by D r .  Lai, h i s  
f a d l y  p h y s i c i a n .  D r .  L a € ' s  o p i n i o n  i s  t h a t  Br. C h a t r e r ' s  
back i n j u r i e s  cou ld  have had  a cumula t ive  e f f e c t  r e s u l t i n g  i n  
advancement of h i s  c u r r e n t  d e g e n e r a t i v e  d i s c  d i s e a s e .  A copy 
of  t h i s  r e p o r t  i s  enc losed .  

5 .  M r .  C h a t r e r  h a s  informed my o f f i c e  t h a t  a l though  the employer 
r e p o r t e d  the weight  of t h e  f lywhee l  i n  t h e  1962 a c c i d e n t  as 75 
pounds,  and  M r .  C h a t r e r  h imse l f  r e p o r t e d  t h e  weight  as 60 t o  
80 pounds, h e  h a s  r e c e n t l y  l e a r n e d  from t h e  P a r t s  Department 
of Cummins Diesel  t h a t  such  a f lywhee l  would weigh 150 
pounds. He states t h a t  h e  o r i g i n a l l y  r epor t ed  i t  as 60 t o  80 
pounds as tha t  is what h e  w a s  t o l d  i t  weighed by his 
employer .  
in formed her t h a t  t h e  f l y w h e e l  f o r  a n  NH220 e n g i n e  would weigh 
100 t o  180 pounds, depending on  t h e  t y p e  of c l u t c h  t h a t  w a s  
u sed ,  The fac t  t h a t  t h e  f lywhee l  probably  weighed more than  
first r e p o r t e d  t o  t h e  Board may be s i g n i f i c a n t  when 
c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  s e v e r i t y  o f  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  1962 a c c i d e n t  and 
i ts  r e l a t i o n  t o  t h e  p r o g r e s s i o n  of h i s  subsequent  d i s a b i l i t y .  

My i n v e s t i g a t o r  c o n t a c t e d  Cummins Diesel who 

7. My i n v e s t i g a t o r  s t a t e d  i n  h e r  l e t t e r  of November 9 ,  1983 t o  
t h e  D i s a b i l i t y  Awards Manager t h a t  d e s p i t e  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t h e  
Board a p p l i e d  " P r o p o r t i o n a t e  En t i t l emen t "  to  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  
claims, M r .  C h a t r e r  w a s  n e v e r  a s s e s s e d  for  a pens ion  t o  which 
" P r o p o r t i o n a t e  Ent i t lement* '  cou ld  be app l i ed .  The D i s a b i l i t y  
Awards Manager r e p l i e d  on  November 17 ,  1983 t h a t :  "The 
D i s a b i l i t y  Awards O f f i c e r ' s  d e c i s i o n  l e t t e r  d a t e d  J u l y  7,  1980 
s p e c i f i c a l l y  den ied  a permanent p a r t i a l  d i s a b i l i t y  award f o r  
M r .  C h a t r e r ' s  sp ine .  It w a s  de te rmined  t h a t  he  had re turned  
to h i s  pre-1967 i n j u r y  state as t h e  medica l  examinat ion  for a 
permanent p a r t i a l  d i s a b i l i t y  i n d i c a t e d  t h e  f i n d i n g s  wi th  
r e s p e c t  t o  t h e  back w e r e  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  a per son  having  a two 
l e v e l  f u s i o n .  I n  o t h e r  words it w a s  determined t h a t  M r .  
C h a t r e r  s u f f e r e d  a temporary a g g r a v a t i o n  only  and t h i s  
d e c i s i o n  w a s  c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  KO. 31.30 of t h e  C l a i m s  
A d j u d i c a t i o n  Manual and Dec i s ion  P270 of t h e  Workers? 
Compensation Reporter" ,  
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8. Although t h e  Board de te rmined  on Ju ly  7 ,  1980 t h a t  Mr. Cha t re r  
s u f f e r e d  a temporary a g g r a v a t i o n ,  t h i s  w a s  on ly  i n  r e spec t  t o  
t h e  1978 work i n j u r y ,  and not  t h e  i n j u r i e s  e a r l i e r  than  1978. 
I n  f a c t ,  t h e  D i s a b i l i t y  Awards O f f i c e r  s t a t e d  i n  h e r  l e t te r  of 
J u l y  7 ,  1980: "It I s  noted  t h a t  your low back impairment has  
r e t u r n e d  t o  t h e  s t a t e  I t  was i n  fo l lowing  your non-compensahle 
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surgery, therefore, n o  ai.;'*rd is indicated f o r  this 
ir!pnirment". Therefore, although the d e c i s i o n  of July 7, 1980 
may have been consistent with 31.30  of the Claims Adjudication 
Manual  and Decision # 2 7 0  of the Workers' Co-pensation 
Reporter, the decision is licitcd to the 1978 injury and does 
not apply to previous cornpensable injuries. 

9. In order to consider whether proportionate entitlement would 
apply to any pension awarded to Mr. Chatrer on the basis that 
his injuries permanently aggravated his pre-existing 
condition, Reporter Decision E270 is relevant. Paragraph (b) 
of this Decision states: 

In cases where the precipitating event or activity, and 
Its immediate consequences, were of a moderate or minor 
significance, and where there is only x-ray evidence and 
nothing else showing a moderate or advanced pre-existing 
condition or disease, Proportionate Entitlement should not 
be applied. 

10. Decision 8270 a l so  states: 

Finally, this directive will apply to all 
Permanent-Partial Disability Awards assessed on or after 
March 15, 1978. 

In his letter of November 17, 1983, the Disability Awards Maiiager 
stated that since the decision by the Commissioners in October, 
1967 not t o  accept the spinal fusion was made prior to the writing 

present method of determining proportionate entitlement would not 
have applied. 

. of Vorkers' Compensation Reporter Decision 8270, the Board's 

However, as noted in Point 6 above, Mr. Chatrer has never been 
assessed for a disability award on the basis of the spinal fusion 
and Its consequences. Therefore, if he were to be assessed for a 
pension on this basis, it should be according to the principles of 
Decision $270. 

Based on the above findings I may conclude that the Board's 
decision to refuse responsibility for Mr. Chatrer's fusion was 
unjust as it failed to consider a relevant factor. The evidence 
relied on by the Board to conclude that Mr. Chatrer's fusion was 
not related to h i s  work Injuries uas that the 1962 x-ray showed 
pre-existing disc degeneration. The Commissioners did not 
consider whether the 1962 and/or subsequent accidents had 
permanently aggravated Mr. Chatrer's condition. 
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Report of Investigation 

P o s s i b l e  R e c o m e n d a t i o n s :  

I have not yet reached a f i n a l  conclusion on this complaint, anc! I 
would appreciate  your comments on the grounds set out above. 
order to  assist you i n  focusing your response I am considering the 
fo l lowing  recosmendation: 

In 

That t h e  Board consider whether Mr. Chatrer's 1962 and/or 
subsequent injuries permanently aggravated his pre-exist ing 
condi t ion  and so contributed to  h i s  requiring a sp ina l  fusion 
i n  1967, and i f  so, to assess Mr. Chatrer for a d i s a b i l i t y  
award. 

Ombudsrran 
DecernSer 2 2 ,  1983 



0 0 0 0 8 3  

Dr. K a r l  A .  Friedmann 
Ombud s m a n 

i Legislative Assembly 
# 2 0 2  - 1275 West 6th Ave. 
Vancouver, B.C. 
V6H 1A6 

Dear Dr. Friedmann: 

Re : Wilhelmus CHATRER 
Claim No. XC67009565 

Your letter dated December 2 2 ,  1983, h a s  been considered 
by the Commissioners. 

The Commissioners have had Mr. Chatrer’s f i l e  reviewed by 
the Board’s Orthopaedic Consultant. Rt the meeting t h e y  
had with Mr. Bucher on March 29, 1984, members of your 
staff were provided with a copy of the Consultant’s r e p o r t  

. of March 8, 1984. 

In light of this report, the Commissioners have concluded 
that there a r e  insufficient grounds for their reconsidering 
the previous Board decisions that the spinal fusion carrjed 
out in 1967 was not the r e s u l t  of the 1962 or subsequent 
in juries. 

N.C. ATTEKELL 
Secretary to the Board 

NCA : hb 



c 0 0 0 0 8 4  

Re: Wilhelnus CHATPER 
C1.r" XC67009565 

I have gone over t h i s  m a n ' s  voluminous f i l e  in considerable de ta i l  and  
I t h i n k  probably t h e  e a s i e s t  way t o  give s m e  meaningful comr;l?rrt would 
be t o  go over t h e  l e t t e r  wri t ten by S o n j a  Hadley, F i l e  83-50763, item 
by i ten. 

Nr. Cha t r e r  h u r t  h i s  low back i n  1962 ,  l i f t i n g  a flywheel. The w i g h t  
was sa id  t o  be between 75 a n d  80 pounds b u t  apparently the man h a s  
subsequently come up w i t h  information t h a t  i t  would weigh actual ly  
about twice t h i s  amount. T h i s  point ,  which migh t  have some influence 
on lay persons, i s  of course of no significance.  The question i s ,  
did h e  do anything i n  the way of damage t o  his low back a t  t h a t  time. 
He l o s t  three weeks of work and an x-ray taken a t  t h i s  t i n e  showed 
some changes which were reported as follows: "degenerative change i n  
the  disc a t  the L.4-5 level i s  noted and possibly l e s se r  degree of 
degeneration o f  the  d i sc  a t  L.5-S.1." 
these degenerative changes precede his episode of February 26, 1962. 
T h i s  i s  c e r t a i n l y  not unusual i n  a man of 39 years. 
f inding degenerative changes i n  t h e  spine s t a t i s t i c a l l y  a re  a t  l ea s t  
205 i n  t h i s  age group. Between t h e  ages of 40 and 60 the chances of 
finding degenerate changes i n  control s e r i e s  of asymptonatic persons 
goes up  t o  60%. 

I t  i s  therefore  quite clear  t h a t  

The chances of 

Dr. Hill s t a t e s  t h a t  th is  man's back was never r i g h t  a f t e r  h i s  i n i t i a l  
injury of 1962 and t h a t  he was having t o  get chiropract ic  manipulations 
from time t o  time because of chronic back discomfort. There i s  no 
question t h a t  chronic ligamentous stress can result from heavy 
occupations and I don ' t  t h i n k  there i s  any a pr ior i  reason t o  a t t r i b u t e  
this  man's intermittent back pain t o  his injury of 1962. Dr. Hill 
f u r t h e r ' s t a t e d  t h a t ,  " s t ruc tura l  change had been caused by th i s  in jury  
i n  1962," T h i s  i s  no t  borne out by the information a t  the time of 
t h i s  man's sp ina l  fusion when asymmetry of the lurnbosacral face ts  was 
noted. T h i s  i s  a well known congenital anomaly or atopy which i t s e l f  
predisposes very d e f i n i t e l y  t o  degenerative changes wi th 'o r  without 

,injury. There i s  very scant  information throughout t h i s  man's f i i e  
t h a t  there was ever any neurological d e f i c i t .  Only on one annotation 
1 noted t h a t  s l i g h t  diminution of the l e f t  ankle je rk  had been noted. 

. 

T h e  n e x t  episode concerns liovember 25, 1963, when Mr. Chatrer was 
pushing a steam cleaner and twisted his low back. T h i s  was diagnosed 
as a back s t r a i n  and a possible  d i sc  les ion bu t  there  was no evidence 
produced t o  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h i s  was a d i sc  les ion and t h e  man returned 
t o  work on December 3rd. 
man could n o t  h a v e  ruptured a d i sc  with nerve root compression i f  he 
h a d  been able t o  return t o  work i n  t h i s  br ief  period of t i ne .  

I would say without hes i ta t ion  t h a t  this 

H i s  symptoms did contince,  however, i n  the  ear ly  p a r t  of 1964 a n d  he 
saw Dr. J o h n  G l a t t ,  b u t  Or. Watt deccribes no leg pain and a negative 
neurological examination, so the presence o f  any nerve root coapression 



I,1Ef40 T O :  Dr . A .  [ I .  I k D o u g a l  1 
Executiv? Director 
Medical Services -3 -  

0 0 0 0 8 5  

8 t'larch 1924 

Re: W i l h e l n u s  C H A T R E R  
C1.# XC67009565 

Cont'd. . . 
there  i s  any substance in permanent agcjravation in any pathology o f  
the d i sc s ,  which I recognize. I n  short ,  1 d o n ' t  think t h a t  t h i s  
mn 's  1962 or o ther  i n j u r i e s  have had  any real connection w i t h  the 
necessi ty  f o r  h i s  spinal fusion. 

J.G. Nob v-F e, M.D., B . S . ,  F.R.C.S.(C) - 
Orthopedic Consultant 
JGN: s s  
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F i l e :  83-50763 

M r .  W. F l e s h e r  
Chairman 
Workers '  Compensation Board 
6951 Westminster  Highway 
Richmond, B. C. 
V7C 1 C 6  

Dear M r .  F l e s h e r :  

Re: Mr. Wilhelrnus C h a t r e r ,  C l a i m  bXC67009565 

I have  r e c e i v e d  Mr. A t t e w e l l ' s  l e t t e r  of April 11, 1984 as well as 
a copy of D r .  Noble 's  r e p o r t  of Plarch 8 ,  1984, As a r e su l t  o f  D r .  
Noble's r e p o r t ,  t h e  Commissioners have concluded t h a t  t h e r e  a r e  
i n s u f f i c i e n t  grounds f o r  t h e i r  r e c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  p r e v i o u s  Board 
d e c i s i o n s  t h a t  t h e  spinal.  f u s i o n  c a r r i e d  o u t  i n  1967 was no t  t h e  
r e s u l t  of t h e  1962 or subsequent  i n j u r i e s .  

I have  forwarded a copy of Dr. Noble 's  report t o  both D r .  Hill and 
D r .  Wat t ,  as Dr .  Noble s t a t e d  t h a t  Dr .  H i l l ' s  o p i n i o n  was n o t  
b o r n e  o u t  by t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  at the t i m e  o f  t h e  f u s i o n  and because 
t h e  f i n d i n g s  a t  t h e  t i m e  of t h e  f u s i o n  performed by D r .  Watt were 
a d e f i n i t e  c o n s i d e r a t i o n  i n  D r .  Noble 's  conclus ion .  I have now 
r e c e i v e d  r e p l i e s  from both Dt. H i l l  and Dr. Watt and am w r i t i n g  
this l e t te r  p u r s u a n t  t o  S e c t i o n  22 of t h e  Ombudsman A c t .  

I do not agree w i t h  the Commissioners t h a t  there a r e  i n s u f f i c i e n t  
g rounds  for the i r  r e c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  p rev ious  Board d e c i s i o n s  t h a t  
t h e  s p i n a l  f u s i o n  c a r r i e d  o u t  i n  1967 was n o t  the result of t h e  
1962  o r  subsequent  i n j u r i e s .  The b a s i s  for my disagreement is a s  
f o l l o w s :  

1. On page 1 of h i s  op in ion ,  D r .  Noble s t a t e d  t h a t  "Dr. H i l l  
f u r t h e r  s t a t e d  t h a t  ' s t r u c t u r a l  change had been caused  by t h i s  
i n j u r y  i n  1962'. Th i s  is n o t  borne o u t  by t h e  in fo rma t ion  a t  
t h e  t i m e  of t h i s  man's s p i n a l  f u s i o n  when asymmetry of t h e  
lumbosacra l  f a c e t s  was no ted .  Th i s  is a w ' e l l  known congen i t a l  
anomoly or  a t o p y  which i t s e l f  p red i sposes  very  d e f i n i t e l y  t o  
d e g e n e r a t i v e  changes wi th  or  wi thout  i n ju ry . "  Ily 



0 

i n v e s t i [ : . i t o r  asked  D r .  L ' ; l t t  h i s  op in ion  of the. s i p , n i f i c a n c e  of 
t h e  a s y n r a ~ t r y  of t h e  lur~! , ;~sncra l  f a c e t s  found a t  s u r g e r y  as i t  
p e r t a i n s  t o  t h e  i s s u e  of whether  M r .  C h a t r e r ' s  1962  and or 
subsequea t  a c c i d e n t s  perniariently aggrava ted  o r  a c c e l e r a t e d  h i s  
p r e - e x i s t i n g  disc degene rn r lon .  D r .  Watt r e p l i e d ,  "I fee l  
t h i s  rn.-ia h z d  asymmetr ica l  f a c e t  j o i n t s  a t  h i s  l u u t o s a c r a l  
l e v e l  and ttiis would prcB-dispose t o  e a r l y  d e g e n e r a t i v e  changes 
i n  t-hese - j o i n t s .  The a c t u t i l  abnormal i ty  i s  a c o n g e n i t a l  one, 
o r  a developmental one b u t  the degene ra t ion  can  be aggrava ted  
by i n j u r i e s  such  as t h i s  m a n  had on m u l t i p l e  o c c a s i o n s .  I 
t h i n k  d e g e n e r a t i o n  i n  t h e  f a c e t  j o i n t s  i s  an  accompaniment of 
d i s c  degene ra t ion .  Tie d i s c  i s  i n t e r i o r  and t h e  f a c e t  j o i n t s  
are  p o s t e r i o r  t o  t h e  sac  c c n t a i n i n g  t h e  nerves".  

2. D r .  Noble s t a t e d  on page 2 of h i s  memo t h a t  "I t h i n k  we may 
s a f e l y  assume t h a t  t h i s  man's f u s i o n  was done on t h e  b a s i s  of 
s p i n a l  i n s t a b i l i t y . "  My i n v e s t i g a t o r  asked D r .  Watt  whether 
h e  ag reed  w i t h  t h i s  s t a t e m e n t .  D r .  Watt r e p l i e d ,  "This man's 

- f u s i o n  w a s  done t o  r e l i e v e  h i s  low back pa in ,  which I f e l t  was 
due  t o  t h e  d e g e n e r a t i v e  d i s e a s e  i n  h i s  back. I f e e l  t h a t  t he  
d e g e n e r a t i o n  was aggrava ted  by h i s  work acc iden t s " .  
emphas i s )  

(my 

3. On page 2 o f  h i s  memo D r .  Noble s t a t e d ,  "I b e l i e v e  t h a t  t h e  
o n l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  i n j u r y  which a d i s c  can s u s t a i n  which leads 
t o  permanent a g g r a v a t i o n  o f  a s i t u a t i o n ,  i s  a d i s t i n c t  d i s c  
r u p t u r e  which,  t o  be d i a g n o s a b l e ,  would r e a l l y  mean t h e  
p r e s e n c e  o f  n e r v e  r o o t  i r r i t a t i o n  or compression and a t r u e  
s c i a t i c a  w i t h  proper  n e u r o l o g i c a l  s i g n s  and t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  
symptoms. Flr- Cha t re r  h a s  neve r  had any of t h e s e  such a t t a c k s  
and  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  he  d i d  n o t  have a nerve  root e x p l o r a t i o n  a t  
t h e  t i m e  of h i s  s u r g e r y  i n d i c a t e s  t h a t  t h e  su rgeon  a t  any 
ra te ,  f e l t  p e r f e c t l y  happy tha t  t h e r e  was no such n e r v e  roo t  
compromise". My i n v e s t i g a t o r  asked D r .  Watt i f  h e  agreed  wi th  
t h e s e  s t a t e m e n t s  and if n o t ,  what his o p i n i o n  was. D r .  Watt 
r e p l i e d ,  ''I d o  n o t  a g r e e  with Dr. Noble 's  s t a t e m e n t  i.e. I 
feel  t h a t  a d i s c  can d e g e n e r a t e  and l o s e  i t s  s u p p o r t i v e  
a b i l i t y ,  w i t h o u t  a c t u a l l y  p r o t r u d i n g  and i r r i t a t i n g  t h e  nerve,  
i .e- ,  I t h i n k  t h a t  d i s c  d e g e n e r a t i o n  can  cause  low back pa in ,  
w i t h o u t  c a u s i n g  any l e g  p a i n  or sciat ica" .  
W a t t ' s  r e p o r t  i s  a t t a c h e d  f o r ' y o u r  in fo rma t ion .  

A copy of D r .  

4. S i n c e  D r .  Noble s t a t e d  t h a t  D r .  H i l l ' s  op in ion  t h a t  s t r u c t u r a l  
change had been caused by Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  i n j u r y  i n  1962 was not  
b o r n e  ou t  by t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  a t  t h e  t ime of Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  
s p i n a l  f u s t i o n  when asymmetry of  t h e  lumbosacral  f a c e t s  was 
n o t e d ,  my i n v e s t i g a t o r  c o n t a c t e d  Dr. H i l l  t o  a s c e r t a i n  whether 
t h e  f i n d i n g s  of the  o p e r a t i o n  had a l t e r e d  t h e  o p i n i o n  he  had 
h e l d  i n  1962,  or  whether  h i s  op in ion  remained t h e  same. A 
c o p y  of  D r .  Hill's r e p l y  i s  a t t a c h e d .  Dr. Hill conc ludes ,  
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"I also f i r m l y  b e l i e v e  t h a t  P:r. C h a t r e r ' s  occupation was p a r t  
a n d  p a r c e l  of  t h e  aggrava t ion  with change o f  t h e  d i s c  
subs t ance  a v e r  t he  yea r s  a n d  secondary t o  micro traumata as 
w?ll as more f l o r i d  t r a u m a  t o  t h e  d i s c  which vas evidenced by 
t h e  s e v e r a l  c la ims which he had i n  t h e  several i n t e r v e n i n g  
years .  Therefore ,  i n  c l o s i n g  the re  i s  no a l t e r a t i o n  i n  my 
o p i n i o n  as I f e e l  t h a t  Mr. Ckat rer  should  be s e r i o u s l y  
cons idered  f o r  a compensation coverage of his back d i s a b i l i t y  
and the  formal t r ea tmen t  t h a t  i t  u l t i m a t e l y  necess i t a t ed" .  

There i s  a l s o  t h e  op in ion  of Dr. L a i  which I provided wi th  my 
l e t te r  o f  December 22, 1983. Dr. L a i ' s  opio ion  i s  t h a t  M r .  
Chatrer's back i n j u r i e s  could have had  a cumulative e f f e c t  
r e s u l t i n g  i n  advancement of h i s  c u r r e n t  degenera t ive  d i s c  
d i s e a s e .  

I n o t e  that  Dr. Watt, Dr. Hill and D r .  t a i  bad a l l  examined 
Mr. Cha t re r  b e f o r e  reaching  t h e i r  op in ions ,  whereas D r .  
Noble 's  op in ion  w a s  based on a review of the  f i l e  m a t e r i a l .  

The re fo re ,  in view of  a l l  t h e  medical  op in ions ,  I have concluded 
tha t  t h e  preponderance of t h e  medical  ev idence  suppor t s  t h e  
c o n c l u s i o n  t h a t  M r .  Cha t r e r ' s  f u s i o n  w a s  aggravated by h i s  work 
a c c i d e n t s .  Pursuant  t o  Sec t ion  2 2  of the Ombudsman Act I 
recommend t h a t  t h e  Board: 

(1) assess M r .  Cha t r e r  f o r  a d i s a b i l i t y  award t o  compensate 
him f o r  any d i s a b i l i t y  as a r e s u l t  of t h e  sp ina l  f u s i o n  in 
1967, 

(2) re imburse  Mr. Cha t re r  f o r  h i s  medica l  expenses assoc ia ted  
w i t h  h i s  s p i n a l  f u s i o n ,  and pay any wage loss b e n e f i t s  due him 
as a r e s u l t  of t h e  fus ion .  

I look forward t o  your r e p l y  a t  your  earliest  convenience. 

Yours s i n c c r e l y ,  . 

/ Karl A. Friedmann 
Ombud snan 

I 

/' 
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Dzar M s .  Had1ey:- 

RE: M r .  Wilhelmus Cha t r e r .  
Your f i l e  N o .  83-50763. 

I n  answer t o  your  q u e s t i o n s  posed i n  your l e t t e r  of  t h e  18th  of h p r i l ,  
1 9 8 4 ,  I have t h e  f o l l o w i n g  t o  say:-  

(1) I f e e l  t h i s  man had asymmetr ical  f a c e t  j o i n t s  a t  h f s  lumSosacra3 l e v e l  
and t h i s  would pre-d ispose  t o  e a r l y  degene ra t ive  changes i n  t h e s e  j o i n t s .  The a c t u a l  
abnorma l i ty  is a c o n g e n i t a l  one ,  o r  a developmental  one b u t  t h e  degenerat ion can b e  
aggrava ted  b y  i n j u r i e s  such a s  t h i s  man had on m u l t i p l e  occas ions .  I th ink  degcnera t ion  
i n  t h e  f a c e t  j o i n t s  is  an accompaniment of  d i s c  degene ra t ion .  The d i s c  j s  a n t c i . j o r  a n d  
t h e  f a c e t  j o i n t s  a r e  p o s t e r i o r  t o  t h e  s a c  c o n t a i n i n g  t h e  nerves. 

( 2 )  This man's f u s i o n  w a s  done t o  r e l i e v e  h i s  low hack p a i n ,  which J f e l t  
w a s  due t o  t h e  d e g e n e r a t i v e  d i s e a s e  i n  h i s  back. I f e e l  t h a t  t h e  degenera t ion  was 
aggrava ted  by h i s  work a c c i d e n t s .  

( 3 )  I don ' t  ag ree  w i t h  D r .  Noble ' s  s t a t emen t  i . e . ,  I f e e l  t h a t  a d i s c  can 
d e g e n e r a t e  and l o s e  i t s  s u p p o r t i v e  a b i l i t y ,  w i thou t  a c t u a l l y  p r o t r u d i n g  and i r r j  t :a t ing 
t h e  ne rve ,  i . e . ,  I. t h i n k  t h a t  d i s c  degene ra t ion  can cause low back p a i n ,  without: caus ing  
any l e g  p a i n  o r  s c i a t i c a .  

JOHNJG. WATT, M . D . ,  F.R.c.s.) ( c >  
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K E N N E T H  C H I L L ,   hi.^). - R O S S  E. CURRIE, M U  T.R.C.S.K) 

S U I T E  314 - 490.3 KI%CCJWAY 

BURNABY. B.C. v5n Z E ~  

TELEPHONE 435-7022  

The O f f  i c e  of t h e  Ombudu.o.311, 

Vaiicouver , B . C .  
\ '6H 1 A 6  

202-1275 West S i x t h  A V ~ ~ I U C  , 

i . t t n :  Soil j a Hadley 

Dear Madam, 

R e :  Wilhelmus Chatrer .  F i l e  No. 83-50763 

T h i s  acknowedges r e c e i p t  of your  communication and documents of A p r i l  l a t h ,  1984. 

I f i n d  i t  s t r a n g e  t h a t  I have been asked  t o  comment on t h i s  man i n  as muc)) a s  I 
was not  t h e  a t t e n d i n g  o r thopaed ic  surgeon b u t  merely p e r i p h e r a l  i n  terms of a n  
op in ion  and I would sugges t  t h a t  Dr. John Watt be t h e  Surgeon who provides  a l o t  
of t h i s  i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  you have asked of s e .  

!w c o n t a c t  w i t h  Mr. Chatrer  has  been s i n g u l a r l y  on e x m i n a t i o n  da ted  September 
1 2 t h ,  1966 and d e a l i n g  w i t h  the  i s s u e  which  you have r a i s e d .  

I t  w a s  my op in ion  g a t h e r i n g  from t h i s  l e t t e r  a t  that  time tha t  I f e l t  t h a t  Mr. 
Chartrer ' s  i n j u r d o f  1962 was r e l a t i v e  t o  h i s  d i s a b i l i t y  and t h e r e f o r e  should  be 
cornpensable i n  as much as the i n j u r y o f  1962 and i n  f a c t  t h e  s e v e r a l  i n j u r i e s  which  
fo l lowd t h i s  were compensation re la ted .  I f i n d  i t  r a t h e r  s t r a n g e  t h a t  t h e  Workers 
Compensation Board covered  him f o r  a l l  theee i n j u r i e s  and  then  i n  t h e  f i n a l  a n a l y s i s  
re jec ted  his c la im f o r  t h e  f i n a l  f u s i o n  which he underwent. 

# I  pAroRf 
D r .  Noble s ta tes  t h a t  there  is a-tY r eason  t o  a t t r i b u t e  t h i s  man ' s  i n t e r m i t -  
t e n t  back p a i n  t o  h i s  i n j u r y  of 1962'' h i s t o r i c a l l y  d i s - a s s o c i a t e s  t h e  man'a com- 
p l a i n t s  following t h i s  e p e c i f i c  i n j u r y  and  which cont inued on u n t i l  he u l t i m a t e l y  
underwent a s p i n a l  f u s i o n  Borne y e a r s  l a t e r ,  t h e r e f o r e  I t h i n k  t h i s  comment is i n -  
c o r r e c t .  From the  documents con ta ined  t h e r e i n ,  the  s t r u c t u r a l  changes nhjch were 
a p p a r e n t l y  p r e s e n t  i n  the  x-rays of 1962 were margina l  b u t  i n  1966 my no tes  i n d i c a t e  
t h a t  t h e  s t r u c t u r a l  change8 n e r e  obv ious ly  q u i t e  prominent on x-ray. Thcpefore 
I do n o t  unde r s t and  Dr. Noble's  statement,  t h e  only s t r u c t u r a l  change e v i d e n t  was 
an asymmetry of  the lumbo s a c r a l  f a c e t s  whyn i n  f a c t  t h e r e  was a d e f i n i t e  change 
i n  t h e  s t r u c t u r a l  anatomy of the i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s c s  between the  L4/5 and L5/S1 
l e v e l s ;  s o  much so that Dr. Watt f e l t  a f u s i o n  should be under taken .  I agree 
w i t h  D r .  Noble that I do not t h i n k  that  t h e  f a c e t  j o i n t  change was of any s i g n i f -  
icarice.  I also f i r m l y  b e l i e v e  that  Mr. Chat rer ' s  occupat ion was p a r t  and  pa rce l  
of t h e  a g g r a v a t i o n  w i t h  change of t h e  d i e c  subs t ance  over t h e  y e a r s  arid secor rdary  
t o  micro traumata as well as more f l o r i d  t r auma  t o  the  d i e c  which was evidenced 
bv t h e  s e v e r a l  c l a ims  t h a t  he had i n  t h e  i n t e r v e n i n g  y e a r s .  T h e r e f o r e ,  i r l  c los ing  
t h e r e  is no a l t e r a t i o n  i n  my opiniori  as I f e e l  t h a t  Mr. C h a r t r e r  should be eeriously 
cons idered  f o r  a compensation coverage of h i s  back d i s a b i l i t y  arlri t h e  formal t r e a t -  
merit t h a t  i t  u l t ima t . e ly  n e c e s s i t a t e d .  
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Your l e t t e r  d a t e d  J E l y  1 7 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  h a s  b e e n  c o n s i d e r e d  by  
t h e  Cornrni s s i o n e r s .  

I n  y c l u r  l e t t e r  of December 2 2 ,  1 9 8 3 ,  you p r o p o s e d  t h a t  t h e  
Board  c o n s i d e r  w h e t h e r  Mr. C h a t r e r ' s  1 9 6 2  o r  s u b s e q u e n t  
i n j u r i e s  p e r m a n e n t l y  a g g r a v a t e d  h i s  p r e - e x i s t i n g  d e g e n e r a t i v e  
c o n d i t i o n  a n d  so c o n t r i b u t e d  t o  t h e  p e r f o r m a n c e  of t h e  s p i n a l  
f u s i o n .  T h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  a g r e e d  t o  d o  t h i s  a n d  h a d  Dr. 
h ' o t l e  r e v i e w  t h e  f i l e .  However ,  on t h e  b a s i s  c i  h i s  r e p o r t  
d a t e d  k r c h  8 ,  1 9 8 4 ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  d e c i d e d  t o  r e a f f i r m  
t h e  B o a r d ' s  p r e v i o u s  d e c i s i o n .  You were  a d v i s e d  o f  t h i s  
i n  my l e t t e r  o f  A p r i l  2 1 ,  1 9 8 4 .  

The  C o n m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  c o n c l u d e d  t h a t  b y  c b t a i n i n g  D r .  N o b l e ' s  
r e p o r t  a n d  c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  q u e s t i o n  r a i s e d  i n  y o u r  l e t t e r  
o f  December 2 7 ,  1983 ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  h a v e  r e c t i f i e d  a n y  
f a u l t  t h a t  may h a v e  e x i s t e d  i n  t h e  p r i o r  Board d e c i s i o n .  
They  n o t e  t h e  f u r t h e r  corrnnents y o u  h a v e  o b t a i n e d  f r o m  D r .  
kat t  a n d  D r .  H i l l  a n d  t h e i r  d i s a g r e e m e n t  w i t h  D r .  Kobl.e,  
b u t  can  s e e  n o  g r o u n d s  f o r  d e p a r t i n g  from t h e i r  p r e v i o u s  
d e c i s i o n .  They  f e e l  t h a t  Dr. N o b l e ' s  o p i n i o n  i s  a r e a s o n a b l e  
one  which  is s u p p o r t e d  by t h e  a v a i l a b l e  e v i d e n c e .  Whi l e  
h e  may n o t  h a v e  p e r s o n a l l y  examined  Kr. C h e t r e r ,  t h i s  i s  
n o t  s o  m a t e r i a l  w h e n  t h e  i s s u e  i s  c a u s a t i o n .  H e  h a d  an a d v a n t a g e  
o v e r  Drs .  Watt a n d  l i i l l  i n  h t v i n g  f u l l  a c c e s s  t o  t h e  B o a r d ' s  
f i l e s .  

I n  t h e  r e s u l t ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  have  d e c i d e d  t c  r e j e c t  
y o u r  r e c o r , n i e n d a t i o n :  Mr. C h a t r e r . ' $  _ .  c l a i m  b - i l l  n o t  b e  r e - o p e n e d .  

Yours  t r u l y A  n ./... . 




